
 

 

 
 

 

 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA PACKAGE 

 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – JUNE 21, 2016 - 1:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

Trustees: Ernest Carrera - Chairman; Derwin Bright - Trustee; Karl Craig - Trustee; Steve 
Kenny - Trustee;  Julio Muniz - Trustee; Sonya Little - Chief Financial Officer 

 

Supporting Staff: Natasha Neagu, Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  Justin Vaske - 
Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney;  Terrie Williams - Accounting 
Operations Manager;  Rosie Santos - Pension Relationship Accountant;  Tammy 
Shaw - Accounting Technician I 

 

Consultants:  Jason Pulos and Nathan Burk- Asset Consulting Group;  Stephen Lambert Oswald 
and Bruce Crosswhite - AON/Hewitt 

 
Location and Time: City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, Florida 33602,  
 June 21, 2016, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Board of Trustees with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will 
need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  In accordance with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special 
accommodations to participate in this meeting should contact the General Employees Retirement Fund at least 48 hours prior to 
the date of the meeting. 

 

Page Numbers 
I. Roll Call 

 
II. Public Comments -  Ten (10) Minutes Total – Three (3) Minutes per Speaker 

 
III. Approval of Minutes 

1) Minutes for Regular Board Meeting on May 17, 2016 (Motion) ....................................... 4 - 10 
2) Minutes for the Forfeiture Hearing on June 7, 2016 (Motion) ..................................... 11 - 12 
 

IV. Disability Retirement Hearing 
1) Shannon Edge (Motion) ........................................................................................ Handout 

 
V. Staff Report 

1) Update on Demetrio Rivera Forfeiture Matter – Luis Santos, Ford & Harrison ........ Discussion 
2) Portfolio Performance Review – May 2016 – Jason Pulos, ACG ...................................... 13 - 17 
3) Resolution 2016-04 for LMCG Investments Contract (Motion) ....................................... 18 - 33 
4) Q3 FY16 Cash Flow Projection .......................................................................................... 34 - 35 

a) June Liquidity Needs (Motion) 
b) LMCG Investments Funding (Motion) 

 
5) Waddell & Reed Organizational Update .......................................................................... 36 - 38 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 1 of 89



GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – JUNE 21, 2016  

 

 
 

 
Page Numbers 

 
6) Small Cap Equity Manager Presentations 

 
a) Wellington ................................................................................................................... 39 - 63 

Thomas Egan – Vice President  
 

b) Clarivest  ..................................................................................................................... 64 - 74 
Robert Zimmer, CFA – Client Portfolio Manager 
Matt Stuart – Senior Institutional Client Portfolio Specialist 

 
7) Summary of Real Estate Manager Presentations from May 2016 (Motion) - ACG ...... Handout 

a) JP Morgan 
b) Blackstone 

 
8) Actuarial Valuation Report  – Stephen Lambert-Oswald, AON-Hewitt ......................... Handout 
9) DROP Rate of Return for Period Oct. 1 – Mar. 31, 2016 – Option 1 (Motion) ................ 75 - 76 
10) DROP Rate of Return for Period Oct. 1 – Mar. 31, 2016 – Option 2 (Motion) ................ 77 - 78 
11) JP Morgan Money Market Daily Rate of Return – June 1, 2016 (Motion)....................... 79 - 80 
12) FL Commission on Ethics Statement of Financial Interests Form 1 (2015) ................... Handout 

 
VI. Old Business 

1) Retirement Education Plan 
2) Forfeiture Procedures, Hearing Officer and Education Plan 
3) Outstanding Disability Applications:  Job Yulee, Edwin Cirino 
4) Disability Re-Examination Audit 

 
VII. Consent Agenda (Motion) 

 
Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  
Longevity Retirements, DROP Entrants, DROP to Longevity, Deferred Retirements,  Survivor 
Benefits, Estate Payments, Reinstatement of Pension Benefits……….. ......................................... 81 

 
Monthly Invoices: 
 
1) City of Tampa Reimbursement – May 2016 - $17,984.46……………………………………………………82  

 
Quarterly Invoices: 

 
1) GW Capital, Inc. – P21756 - $6,996.79 .................................................................................... 83 

 
Miscellaneous Invoices: 
 
1) Chameleon Custom Solutions - #111183 - $1,512.71 ............................................................. 84 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 2 of 89



GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – JUNE 21, 2016  

 

 
 

Page Numbers 
 

2) Ford & Harrison - #657009 - $12.00 ........................................................................................ 85 
3) Ford & Harrison - #657012 - $678.50 ...................................................................................... 86 
4) Ford & Harrison - #657004 - $275.00 ...................................................................................... 87 
5) Kenaday Medical  - $34.25 ...................................................................................................... 88 
6) Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick - #520476 - $157.50 ................................................................... 89 
 

VIII. Adjournment 
 

Upcoming Meeting Schedule – City Council Chambers: 
Tuesday, July 19, 2016 – 1:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 

 
Scheduled Topics for Regular July Board Meeting: 

Disability Retirement Hearing 
ACG Monthly Report 

Monthly Liquidity Needs 
Retirement Education Plan 
Forfeiture Education Plan 
Annual Report Proposal 

 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 3 of 89



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – MAY 17, 2016 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 
 

 

The Board of Trustees for the General Employees Retirement Fund convened in a regular session at 1:00 
p.m. on this 17th day of May 2016 in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy Blvd., 
Tampa, FL 33602.   
 
Support Staff:  Natasha Neagu, Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  Justin Vaske, Assistant 
City Attorney and Board Attorney;  Terrie Williams, Accounting Operations Manager;   Rosie Santos, 
Pension Relationship Accountant; and Karencia Ciagala, Office Support Specialist III. 
 
Consultants to Board: Jason Pulos and Nathan Burk, Asset Consulting Group;  Stephen Lambert Oswald 
and Bruce Crosswhite, AON/Hewitt. 

 
I. ROLL CALL  

 
Mr. Carrera, Chairman, presiding, brought the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.   
 
Board Members Present Included:  Ernest Carrera, Chairman; Derwin Bright, Trustee; Steve Kenny, 
Trustee; and Karl Craig, Trustee.  Board members absent include:  Alan Weiner, Vice Chairman; Sonya 
Little, Chief Financial Officer; and Julio Muniz, Trustee. 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Ten (10) Minutes Total – Three (3) Minutes per Speaker 

 
None. 

  
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Ms. Neagu requested the Board approve the minutes from the April 19, 2016 meeting.    
 
MOTION: (Kenny /Craig) Motion was made by Steve Kenny to approve the minutes with one correction: 
that the date be changed on page 3, 2nd paragraph, section 2, from 2004 to 2014.  Motion was seconded 
by Karl Craig to approve the minutes from the April Board meeting with the above mentioned correction. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
   

IV. STAFF REPORT 

 
Ms. Neagu advised the Board that the agenda for the meeting today is being revised due to the need for 
a Trustee to leave early.  Upon his departure we would not have a quorum at that time.  These minutes 
will reflect the changed Agenda.   

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 4 of 89



GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY - MAY 17, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

  
 

1. Q3 FY16 Cash Flow Projection – May Liquidity Needs 
 
Ms. Neagu advised the Board that we would start with item 3 under the Staff Report and asked the Board 
members to turn to pages 18 – 19 in the Board Agenda Package.  She informed the Board that we need 
to liquidate $4.3 million dollars to fund benefit payments for the month of May.  The recommendation 
from ACG was to liquidate assets from the CBRE-Clarion Global REITS portfolio.    
 
MOTION: (Kenny /Bright) A motion was made by Steve Kenny to approve the liquidation of funds in the 
amount of $4.3M from CBRE-Clarion to fund May 2016 benefit payments.   Motion seconded by Derwin 
Bright.  MOTION CARRIED.   
 

2. Resolution 2016-03 for AON Hewitt Contract Amendment 
 
Ms. Neagu requested the Board approve the AON Hewitt Contract Amendment to expand the scope of 
actuarial services to include the annual member statements.  This was this first year this initiative was 
implemented and will be an annual project going forward.  Ms. Neagu directed the Board to pages 20 – 
24 of the Board Agenda Packages for further details.   
 

MOTION: (Kenny /Craig) On a motion made by Steve Kenny to approve Resolution 2016 -03 to amend 
our contract with Aon Hewitt.   Motion Seconded by Karl Craig.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

3. Division A Survivor Remarriage Audit Procedures 2nd Reading 
  

Ms. Neagu advised that this was a second reading of this proposed procedure and summarized the 
procedures for the Board.  Ms. Neagu advised the Board that she included a proposed change from a 
Trustee to expand the list of counties to search for marriage records in the following counties:   
Hillsborough, Pasco, Pinellas, and Polk County Clerks’ websites.    Chairman, Ernest Carrera requested 
that we also include Manatee County.  Ms. Neagu advised she would make the change. 
 

MOTION: (Bright /Kenny) On a motion made by Derwin Bright to approve the procedure For Division A 
Survivor Remarriage Audits, including the change to add Manatee County.   Motion seconded by Steve 
Kenny.   MOTION CARRIED. 
 

4. Overpayment Procedures 2nd Reading  
 

Ms. Neagu advised this is the second reading of the overpayment procedures and summarized the 
proposed procedures for the Board.  She directed the Board to pages 27 – 31 of the Board Agenda 
Packages for further details.  The section on overpayments that result from pension forfeitures was 
removed as it will be addressed when Justin Vaske and Ms. Neagu present the Forfeiture Policies and 
Procedures to the Board at a future meeting.  
 

MOTION: (Kenny /Bright) Motion was made by Steve Kenny to approve the overpayment procedures.                            
Motion seconded by Derwin Bright.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

5. Member Handbook for General Employees Proposal  
 

Ms. Neagu advised that our first annual benefit statements will be distributed to our active employees on 
Thursday and Friday of this week, and thus far we have received a lot of positive feedback.  Ms. Neagu 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 5 of 89



GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY - MAY 17, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

  
 

thanked the Board for approving this initiative, and stated she would like to now move on to our next 
initiative of enhancing retirement education offerings for our members.     
 

Ms. Neagu advised that the General Employees Retirement Fund does not have a Member Handbook.  
The department lacks this type of documentation for its members and we frequently receive questions 
and requests for this type of literature.  The Member Handbook would be a plain English document of the 
retirement law, written in non-technical and non-legal terms.  This will tell the employees about the 
benefits and policies of the retirement fund, and inform them about their rights.    Membership in the 
General Employees Retirement Fund is an important benefit, and it is our responsibility as fiduciaries to 
make sure this information is available to our members.   
 

The Member Handbook is going to be based on the Retirement Plan for City of Tampa General Employees 
Retirement Fund, Chapter 23559, Special Act of 1945. 
 
Approximately 3,000 books are to be printed and handed out to all employees as well as the DROP 
participants.  We have approximately 2,300 members and the additional copies will be given to Human 
Resources to pass out during new employee orientation.  Ms. Neagu will prepare the text for the 
document and Justin Vaske, Board Attorney will conduct a legal review of the content.  We will employ 
the services of an external graphic designer and printer at an estimated cost of $6,000.00.  The handbook 
would contain language on the forfeiture policy, process, and law to educate employees about 
retirement benefits and their rights. 
 
MOTION: (Kenny /Bright and Craig) Motion was made by Steve Kenny to approve the Member 
Handbook project as outlined in the proposal.    Motion seconded by both Derwin Bright and Karl Craig.  
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Ms. Neagu advised that the Consent Agenda has been reviewed and the items listed are true, correct, 
and have been evaluated and audited for accuracy.   Justin Vaske has also reviewed all the legal invoices.   
 

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  
Longevity Retirements, DROP Entrant, DROP to Longevity, Deferred Retirements,  Disability 
Retirement, Survivor Benefits, Estate Payments, Lump Sum Death Benefit……….. ....................................32 
 

Quarterly Invoices: 
1) Aberdeen - #76677 - $56,513.78 ..........................................................................................................33 
2) CBRE Clarion – $53,133.00 ....................................................................................................................34 
3) Clarivest Asset Management - #120853 - $29,084.05 ..........................................................................35 
4) Dodge & Cox - #34680 - $75,179.40 .....................................................................................................36 
5) Fisher Investments - #IG5218-0001 - $102,253.79 ...............................................................................37 
6) JP Morgan - #820346 - $49,400.77 .......................................................................................................38 
7) State Street Global Advisors - #SSGABA2272241 - $8,585.54 ..............................................................39 
8) Taplin, Canida & Habacht - $34,520.06 ................................................................................................40 
9) Waddell & Reed - #304470 - $108,968.47 ............................................................................................41 
10) Wellington - #20160331-96246-A - $39,157.41....................................................................................42 
 

Deducted from Account 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 6 of 89



GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY - MAY 17, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

  
 

1) Brandywine Global - #20160331-482-4233-A - $67,114.45 .................................................................43 
2) Marathon-London – Jan. 2016 - $16,627.00 .........................................................................................44 
3) Marathon-London – Feb. 2016 - $16,274.00 ........................................................................................45 
4) Marathon-London – Mar. 2016 - $17,182.00 .......................................................................................46 
5) UBS  - $106,299.34 ................................................................................................................................47 

 

Miscellaneous Invoices: 
1) Ford & Harrison - #653704 - $324.00 .............................................................................................48 
2) Ford & Harrison - #653705 - $1,985.00 ..........................................................................................49 
3) Ford & Harrison - #653706 - $5,789.00 ..........................................................................................50 
4) Ford & Harrison - #653930 - $9,644.25 ..........................................................................................51 
5) Tampa Occupational Health Services – Ethelda Oliver - $750.00 ..................................................52 
6) Tampa Occupational Health Services – Shannon Edge - $1,400.00 ...............................................53 
7) Tampa Occupational Health Services – Job Yulee - $300.00 ..........................................................54 
8) Victor Valentin, M.D., P.A. – Eliab Delgado - $25.00 ......................................................................55 
9) City of Tampa Reimbursement – April 2016 - $22,739.38 .............................................................56 
 
Chair, Ernest Carrera, asked about the procedure for reviewing the Consent Agenda, and whether or not 
Accounting was reviewing it.  And he asked if there were certain members for reviewing it on a month to 
month basis?  Natasha Neagu advised that the Consent Agenda is reviewed/audited by her, and that she 
signs off on it.   
 
MOTION: (Craig/Kenny) Motion was made by Karl Craig to approve the Consent Agenda.    Motion 
seconded by Steve Kenny.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

VI. STAFF REPORT (CONTINUED) 
 
6. Real Estate Manager Presentations 
 
ACG invited two open end Core Plus Real Estate managers to present to the Board for the Board’s 
consideration to enhance the overall allocation to Real Estate.  Jason Pulos of Asset Consulting Group 
introduced the two firms presenting today: 
 

a) JP Morgan Asset Management 
Peter Kenny – Vice President 
Mike Kelly – Managing Director and Head of Debt Capital Markets 
Alexia Gottschalch – Managing Director and Head of Business Development 
 

b) Blackstone   
Al Agarwal – Senior Managing Director, Head of BPP US 
Andrew Fenet – Principal 

 
 

JP Morgan Asset Management – Special Situation Property Fund 
 
Peter Kenny asked the Board to refer to his packet, to review their bios on page two.  He will be the 
primary contact for the relationship. They currently have thirty-five public pension plans in Florida ($52 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 7 of 89



GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY - MAY 17, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

  
 

Billion).  And 72% of that pool is represented by real estate.  They have been a member of the FPPTA 
since 2009, and will be in Orlando (FPPTA Conference) in June.     
 

Alexia Gottschalch referred to page 11 – about their value added investing since 1988.  Their investment 
committee has been in existence for over 45 years, and know that it works.  We have about 240 
employees and seven offices nationwide.   And about a thousand clients worldwide. 
 

Mike Kelly referred to page 18 - graphs CMBS –and stated although acquisitions have gotten small it is 
still a robust market.  Mr. Kelly stated that new development, is not doing as much, and they are now 
looking at redevelopment instead of from the ground up.   
 

Board Trustee, Steve Kenny left the meeting at 1:20 p.m..  Assistant City Attorney, Justin Vaske advised 
the Board no longer had a quorum and would not be able to vote on anything from this moment on. 
 

Mike Kelly referred to page 29.  Real Estate was soft in February, and when  you look at page 19, it shows 
it had more impact on capital flows in real estate.  We still see closely related to stock market, economy, 
Alexia explained the percentages, and she will explain further. 
 

Alexia (referring to page 31) stated that the goal of the fund is to acquire value added assets and de-risk 
them (3 to 7 years and then sell them.)  Our target leverage is 40 – 50% LTV.  Chair Ernest Carrera asked 
how it all correlates with the general stock market.   Michael Kelly, asked the Board to look at page 19, 
showing the US Equities, and said it will show some correlation, and that if we go in to recession we will 
have issues.  If you look at total market, real estate was up 5.8%.   
 

Slide 33 shows  a risk wheel, higher risk is depicted in orange, lower risk is represented by green.  Can 
manage during the different cycles, wheel today is greener than it had been a few years ago.  Need to de-
risk funds at this point in time.   We have shifted funds and number of assets, to de-risk funds. 
 

Alexia (page 34) stated the annual total gross returns is 3.1% compared to a year ago, when returns were 
19.3%.    We think that will come down to about 12 to 15% going forward.  The fund is $5.3 Billion.  
Invested $13 million, and $40 million in sales, open ended fund, non-binding queue, option to leave or 
get back of the line, in six to nine months, $349 million to call in next nine months, and changes in 
market.  People were over evaluated, so we honored $42 million of redemption requests, and the market 
has settled down. 
 

Alexia stated funds to target are in urban, seeking terms of 300 to 500 basis points (page 36). Returns are 
about 1%.  There are no disposition fees, 1.25% fee, 1.4% fee, cash and debt, on (page 43), 15 basis 
points on the cash.  Referring to page 53, during downturn hit pretty hard.  We learned a lot of lessons 
about what assets perform.  We reallocated fund, we learned what works over last five years. 
 

In relation to correlation, compares the ODCE index, these managers will have a little more risk, 
compared to public dark blue line is much smoother, much more correlation to the stock market.  Lag 
public markets, 2009 declines in private real estate.    
 

BLACKSTONE – Property Partners US Fund 
 
Andrew Fenet, thanked the Board for their time to explain the Core Plus Strategy.   There are three 
distinct strategies, opportunist, buy it/fix it/ sell it strategy.  (A three to seven year strategy)  The second 
strategy  ---$11 billion under management.  Exceeded returns, with no losses.  This information begins on 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 8 of 89



GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY - MAY 17, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

  
 

page two.  The third strategy Blocks and Property Partners.  Today at Blackstone there are only two 
strategies at this time.  Core plus intends to generate  250 to 350 basis points over the ODCE index.  More 
leverage, with a cap at 50%.   
 

Core plus sector leverage 40 to 60%, opportunistic risky 70 to 80%, ODCE core funds capped at 40%.  We 
are capped at 40 to 50%.  With Blackstone for 25 years.  We are buying assets in New York City and 
Washington.  We buy substantial stable assets, and don’t do development.  We have found buying assets 
below physical replacement costs gives us a basis to protect capital.  Buy where tenants in place and 
rents are below market.  Open ended has easy liquidity.  Largest manager, sourcing we are largest buyer, 
seller, in America.   
 

We own more than anyone else, retail.   Investment, we have one investment committee and have 23 
partners, led by Steve Swarzman and Tony James.  All transactions are approved by those 23 today.  We 
use speed to acquire.  We are largest globally.  We own more real estate than any other agency, except 
for government.  We buy larger transactions, and have fewer competitors for a better price.  Much less 
competition.   See page six for an example of multi-family asset.  Larger transaction, better price, fewer 
competitors.  Page 6 example…$5.3 billion, no competitor, and we paid less than $500.00 per sq. ft.    
 

Page two summary of assets owned in US, we are largest , own 73 million sq. ft.; 127 million sq. ft. in 
retail.  Page two is fund, and we have $4.5 billion in capital.  Own more than $8 billion (50) assets.  
Occupancy is at 95%.  In place rents increase NOI.  Gross returns up both 2016 and 2017.   Important to 
know how to allocate investment and buy assets for less than replacement cost.  Roughly 50%, with 12% 
equity appreciation.  In last 12 months, we set a goal to generate target of 9 to 11%, and we have actually 
generated 22% return.  We do not suggest we will do the same in 2017, but closer to the 9 to 11%.    
 

Chair Ernest Carrera, apologized on behalf of the Board that they were unable to vote today, and will 
address that at the next meeting.   Chair asked Jason Pulos, about small windows of growth within next 
couple years, what kind of defense can we take.   
 

Jason Pulos directed the Board to look at his handout.  Strategically, 19 to 20% returns, not what is 
expected over time, 8 to 12%.  Tail end of real estate market, more.  Neither is risk, both open end.  
Blackstone, because of size can buy, risk reducing strategy in itself.  Unlike public, they aren’t going to 
take your capital unless they can put it to work.  JP Morgan has a two year queue.  Self-policing, risk.  
Coming to end of market cycle, what other types of investment?  Real Estate, as an inflation hedge, not 
sure overall concern, portfolio 25 to 50% income is risk reducing.  We are doing some things to long, 
addressed some lenders, we are doing some things.  I think long term is good.  We have gone through a 
year where markets are down.     
 

A decision on selection of a Core Plus Real Estate manager was deferred to a future meeting and ACG to 
make a recommendation at June meeting. 
 
7. Portfolio Performance Review – Q1 2016 and April 2016 – ACG 
 
ACG reviewed the quarter report for the period ending 3/31/16 along with the monthly report for the 
period ending 4/30/16. As of 4/30/16 the market value of the Total Fund (“Fund”) at the end was 
approximately $646.7 million which was up from the prior month as all asset classes advanced higher. 
The first four months of the year were volatile with equity markets beginning the year sharply down, but 
recovering modestly through the end of April.  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 9 of 89



GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY - MAY 17, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

  
 

 
The Fund’s longer-term performance is tracking about in-line with the policy index.  Over the trailing 
three years ending April 30, 2016, the Fund is up 5.59% annualized compared to the Policy Index which is 
up 5.54% annualized.  Over the five year period ending April 30, 2016 the Fund is up 6.1% annualized 
compared to the Policy Index of 6.17% annualized.  
 

VII. MEETING SCHEDULE 
The next Forfeiture Hearing will be held at 1:00pm, Tuesday, June 7, 2016, in City Council Chambers for 
Marvin Campbell. 
 

The next Regular Board Meeting will be held at 1:00pm, Tuesday, June 21, 2016, in City Council 
Chambers. 
 

VIII. Adjournment 

 
There being no further business, Chair Carrera adjourned the meeting at 2:16 p.m.  
 
 
 
                  __________________________________________ 
       CHAIRMAN – Ernest P. Carrera 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      PENSION PLAN SUPERVISOR – Natasha Neagu, CPA 

& RECORDING SECRETARY 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 10 of 89



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

FORFEITURE HEARING – MARVIN CAMPBELL 
TUESDAY – JUNE 7, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

Trustees Present: Ernest Carrera - Chairman; Derwin Bright - Trustee; Steve Kenny - Trustee; Karl Craig 
– Trustee; Julio Muniz - Trustee 

 

Supporting Staff: Natasha Neagu - Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  
  Justin R. Vaske - Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney; Terrie Williams - 

Accounting Operations Manager; Karencia Ciagala, Office Support Specialist III 
 
Location and Time: City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, Florida 33602,  
 June 7, 2016, 1:00 P.M. 
 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Board of Trustees with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will 
need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  In accordance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to 
participate in this meeting should contact the General Employees Pension Office at least 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting. 

 

 
I. Roll Call       

Members Present:  Ernest Carrera, Chairman; Steve Kenny, Trustee; Derwin Bright, Trustee;  and Karl  
Craig, Trustee;   and Julio Muniz, Trustee. 
 
Members Absent:    Alan Weiner, Vice Chairman; Sonya Little, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Let the record reflect these individuals are also present: Natasha Neagu, General Employees’ Pension 
Plan Supervisor;  Justin R. Vaske, Assistant City Attorney;  Luis Santos, Independent Counsel from 
Ford & Harrison; Nancy Swartz, Court Reporter with Anthem Court Reporting;  Terrie Williams, 
Accounting Operations Manager;  Respondent Marvin Campbell;  Respondent’s Attorney, Robert 
Ford;  Detective Daniel Hinsz; Adriana Colina, Solid Waste Administrative Chief; and Karencia Ciagala, 
Office Support Specialist III. 
 

II. Independent Counsel: Opening Statement  (10 minutes maximum) 
 
Mr. Santos gave his opening statement. 
 

III. Respondent Counsel:  Opening Statement (10 minutes maximum) 
 
Attorney Robert Ford gave his opening statement. 
 

IV. Independent Counsel:  Presentation of Evidence. 
 
Mr. Santos presented his evidence; Adriana Colina gave testimony.  Marvin Campbell was 
questioned.   

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 11 of 89



BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
FORFEITURE HEARING – MARVIN CAMPBELL 

TUESDAY – JUNE 7, 2016 
 

 
 

 
V. Respondent:  Presentation of Evidence. 

Attorney Robert Ford presented his evidence.  Detective Daniel Hinsz, Adriana Colina and Marvin 
Campbell were questioned. 
 

VI. Independent Counsel:  Rebuttal evidence will be presented, if any. 
 
Cross examination. 
 

VII. Independent Counsel:  Closing Statement (15 minutes maximum, with  time reserved for rebuttal) 
 
Mr. Santos gave his closing statement reserving  time for rebuttal. 
 

VIII. Respondent Counsel:  Closing Statement (15 minutes maximum) 
 
Attorney Robert Ford gave his closing statement.  
 

IX. Independent Counsel:  Rebuttal 
 
Mr. Santos gave his rebuttal to the closing statement by the Respondent. 
 

X. Board Deliberations and Motion 
Trustee, Karl Craig, asked City of Tampa Attorney, Justin Vaske for a clarification in regards to the 
respondent not being found guilty in the criminal case.   Mr. Vaske reminded the Board members 
that the fact that the State did not prosecute is irrelevant.  The admission to the theft requires that 
you shall forfeit the pension. 
 
Motion to approve forfeiture as presented was made by Karl Craig, and seconded by Steve Kenny. 
Motion passed with Derwin Bright opposing. 
 

XI. Adjournment 
There being no further business, Chair Carrera adjourned the meeting at 4:03 p.m.  

 
 
 
                  __________________________________________ 
       CHAIRMAN – Ernest P. Carrera 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      GE PENSION PLAN SUPERVISOR - Natasha Neagu 
      & RECORDING SECRETARY 

 
 
 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 12 of 89



 P
re

lim
in

ar
y

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

M
ar

ke
t

Va
lu

e
($

00
0s

)

A
ct

ua
l

A
llo

ca
tio

n
(%

)

Ta
rg

et
A

llo
ca

tio
n

(%
)

O
ve

r/
Un

de
r

(%
)

To
ta

l P
or

tfo
lio

64
4,

75
9

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

Eq
ui

ty
39

0,
53

2
60

.5
7

60
.0

0
0.

57
55

.0
0

65
.0

0

  
  
 U

S
 L

a
rg

e
 C

a
p

 E
q

u
it

y
1

9
4

,8
2

8
3

0
.2

2
2

5
.0

0
5

.2
2

2
0

.0
0

3
0

.0
0

  
  
 U

S
 S

m
a

ll 
C

a
p

 E
q

u
it

y
4

9
,6

4
5

7
.7

0
1

0
.0

0
-2

.3
0

7
.0

0
1

3
.0

0

C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s' 

Re
tir

em
en

t F
un

d
Fo

r t
he

 P
er

io
ds

 E
nd

in
g 

M
ay

 3
1,

 2
01

6

Ra
ng

e
M

in
 - 

M
ax

(%
)

30.22%

7.70%

18.72%

3.93%

28.95%

6.08%

0.13%

4.12%

0.15%

25.00%

10.00%

20.00%

5.00%

30.00%

7.00%

3.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0
.0

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

2
0
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

4
0
.0

0
%

U
S 

La
r g

e
 C

a
p

 E
q

u
it
y

U
S 

Sm
a

ll 
C

a
p

 E
q

u
it
y

In
t'
l D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 

E
q

u
it
y

E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 E

q
u

it
y

Fi
xe

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

C
o

re
 R

e
a

l E
st

a
te

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
is

ti
c

 R
e

a
l E

st
a

te
G

lo
b

a
l R

E
IT

s
C

a
sh

 a
n

d
 E

q
u

iv
a

le
n

ts

A
ct

ua
l v

s.
 Ta

rg
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n

A
c

tu
a

l A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
Ta

rg
e

t 
A

llo
c

a
ti
o

n

p
q

y

  
  
 I
n

t'
l D

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 E
q

u
it

y
1

2
0

,7
1

3
1

8
.7

2
2

0
.0

0
-1

.2
8

1
7

.0
0

2
3

.0
0

  
  
 E

m
e

rg
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 E
q

u
it

y
2

5
,3

4
7

3
.9

3
5

.0
0

-1
.0

7
3

.0
0

7
.0

0

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
18

6,
66

0
28

.9
5

30
.0

0
-1

.0
5

23
.0

0
37

.0
0

Re
al

 A
ss

et
s

66
,6

17
10

.3
3

10
.0

0
0.

33
7.

00
13

.0
0

  
  
 C

o
re

 R
e

a
l E

st
a

te
3

9
,1

9
9

6
.0

8
7

.0
0

-0
.9

2
5

.0
0

1
2

.0
0

  
  
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

is
ti

c
 R

e
a

l E
st

a
te

8
3

3
0

.1
3

3
.0

0
-2

.8
7

1
.0

0
5

.0
0

  
  
 G

lo
b

a
l R

E
IT

s
2

6
,5

8
5

4
.1

2
0

.0
0

4
.1

2
0

.0
0

5
.0

0

C
as

h 
an

d 
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

s
95

1
0.

15
0.

00
0.

15

M
ar

ke
t

Va
lu

e
($

00
0s

)

A
ct

ua
l

A
llo

ca
tio

n
(%

)

1
M

on
th

(%
)

YT
D

(%
)

FY
TD

(%
)

1
Ye

ar
(%

)

3
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

5
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

10
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

Si
nc

e
In

ce
pt

io
n

(%
)

To
ta

l P
or

tfo
lio

 (0
7/

85
)

64
4,

75
9

10
0.

00
0.

34
1.

66
5.

04
-2

.1
1

5.
80

6.
35

5.
77

8.
52

Po
lic

y 
In

d
ex

 1
0.

33
2.

62
5.

93
-1

.2
5

5.
85

6.
38

5.
71

--
1

Th
e

 P
o

lic
y
 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

s 
o

f 
3
0
%

 B
a

rc
la

y
s 

U
S 

A
g

g
re

g
a

te
, 
2
0
%

 M
SC

I 
E
A

FE
, 
2
5
%

 R
u

ss
e

ll 
1
0
0
0
, 
1
0
%

 R
u

ss
e

ll 
2
0
0
0
, 
5
%

 M
SC

I 
E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
, 
5
%

 N
FI

 O
D

C
E
 n

e
t 

a
n

d
 5

%
 F

TS
E
 E

P
R

A
/N

A
R

E
IT

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 R
E
. 
P

rio
r 

to
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
4
, 
th

e
 P

o
lic

y
 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

e
d

 o
f 

3
0
%

 

B
a

rc
la

y
s 

U
S 

A
g

g
re

g
a

te
, 
1
8
%

 M
SC

I 
E
A

FE
, 
2
9
%

 R
u

ss
e

ll 
1
0
0
0
, 
7
%

 R
u

ss
e

ll 
2
0
0
0
, 
3
%

 M
SC

I 
E
A

FE
 S

M
ID

 N
e

tD
iv

, 
3
%

 M
SC

I 
E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
, 
5
%

 N
FI

 O
D

C
E
 n

e
t 

a
n

d
 5

%
 F

TS
E
 E

P
R

A
/N

A
R

E
IT

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 R
E
. 
 P

rio
r 

to
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
0
0
9
, 
th

e
 P

o
lic

y
 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

e
d

 o
f 

3
0
%

 

B
a

rc
la

y
s 

U
S 

A
g

g
re

g
a

te
, 
1
8
%

 M
SC

I 
E
A

FE
, 
3
2
%

 R
u

ss
e

ll 
1
0
0
0
, 
8
%

 R
u

ss
e

ll 
2
0
0
0
, 
3
.5

%
 M

SC
I 
E
A

FE
 S

m
a

ll 
C

a
p

, 
3
.5

%
 M

SC
I 
E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
, 
a

n
d

 5
%

 N
FI

 O
D

C
E
 n

e
t.

 

 ©
 2

01
6 

A
ss

et
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
 A

ll R
ig

ht
s R

es
er

ve
d

 1

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 13 of 89



 P
re

lim
in

ar
y

M
ar

ke
t

Va
lu

e
($

00
0s

)

A
ct

ua
l

A
llo

ca
tio

n
(%

)

1
M

on
th

(%
)

YT
D

(%
)

FY
TD

(%
)

1
Ye

ar
(%

)

3
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

5
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

10
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

Si
nc

e
In

ce
pt

io
n

(%
)

To
ta

l P
or

tfo
lio

 (0
7/

85
)

64
4,

75
9

10
0.

00
0.

34
1.

66
5.

04
-2

.1
1

5.
80

6.
35

5.
77

8.
52

Po
lic

y 
In

d
ex

 1
0.

33
2.

62
5.

93
-1

.2
5

5.
85

6.
38

5.
71

--
US

 L
ar

ge
 C

ap
 E

qu
ity

 (0
4/

02
)

19
4,

82
8

30
.2

2
2.

07
0.

89
7.

29
-1

.3
4

11
.6

1
11

.7
6

7.
65

7.
49

S&
P 

50
0

1.
80

3.
57

10
.8

6
1.

72
11

.0
6

11
.6

7
7.

41
6.

49

US
 S

m
al

l C
ap

 E
qu

ity
 (0

1/
99

)
49

,6
45

7.
70

3.
03

1.
75

5.
81

-4
.8

8
6.

96
8.

86
6.

92
10

.6
2

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0

2.
25

2.
28

5.
96

-5
.9

7
6.

93
7.

86
6.

27
7.

37

N
on

 U
S 

Eq
ui

ty
  (

03
/0

3)
14

6,
06

0
22

.6
5

-0
.5

2
-0

.3
5

4.
29

-9
.5

1
0.

68
1.

13
2.

87
8.

34
N

on
 U

S 
Eq

ui
ty

 In
d

ex
 2

-1
.3

7
-0

.0
8

3.
85

-1
0.

81
1.

47
1.

62
2.

56
8.

87

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
(1

0/
84

)
18

6,
66

0
28

.9
5

-1
.1

9
4.

17
3.

42
1.

51
1.

97
3.

31
5.

08
6.

84
Ba

rc
la

ys
 U

S 
A

gg
re

ga
te

0.
03

3.
45

2.
86

2.
99

2.
91

3.
33

4.
97

7.
42

Re
al

 A
ss

et
s 

(0
7/

02
)

66
,6

17
10

.3
3

-0
.3

3
2.

58
6.

19
7.

16
9.

45
9.

32
6.

44
8.

32
Re

a
l A

ss
et

s C
om

p
os

ite
 In

d
ex

 3
0.

02
3.

78
7.

73
8.

69
9.

82
10

.0
9

6.
00

--

C
as

h 
an

d 
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

s 
(0

6/
93

)
95

1
0.

15
0.

02
0.

13
0.

18
0.

33
0.

26
0.

26
1.

32
3.

02
US

 T
-B

ills
 9

0 
D

a
y

0.
01

0.
11

0.
14

0.
15

0.
08

0.
08

1.
08

2.
76

2 3

Th
e

 N
o

n
 U

S 
E
q

u
it
y
 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

s 
o

f 
8
0
%

 M
SC

I 
E
A

FE
 a

n
d

 2
0
%

 M
SC

I 
E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 I
n

d
e

x.
 P

rio
r 

to
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
4
, 
th

e
 N

o
n

 U
.S

. 
E
q

u
it
y
 P

o
lic

y
 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

e
d

 o
f 

7
5
%

 M
SC

I 
E
A

FE
, 
1
2
.5

%
 M

SC
I 
E
A

FE
 S

M
ID

 N
e

tD
iv

, 
a

n
d

 1
2
.5

%
 M

SC
I 
E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 I
n

d
e

x.

h
 

l 
t

 C
it

 
d

 
i

t
 

f 
0
%

 
 O

C
 

t 
d

 
0
%

 
S

 
/

 
l

d
 

 
d

Fo
r t

he
 P

er
io

ds
 E

nd
in

g 
M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
6

C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s' 

Re
tir

em
en

t F
un

d

3
Th

e
 R

e
a

l 
A

ss
e

ts
 C

o
m

p
o

si
te

 I
n

d
e

x 
c

o
n

si
st

s 
o

f 
5
0
%

 N
FI

 O
D

C
E
 n

e
t 

a
n

d
 5

0
%

 F
TS

E
 E

P
R

A
/N

A
R

E
IT

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 R
E
 I
n

d
e

x.

 ©
 2

01
6 

A
ss

et
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
 A

ll R
ig

ht
s R

es
er

ve
d

 2

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 14 of 89



 P
re

lim
in

ar
y

M
ar

ke
t

Va
lu

e
($

00
0s

)

A
ct

ua
l

A
llo

ca
tio

n
(%

)

1
M

on
th

(%
)

YT
D

(%
)

FY
TD

(%
)

1
Ye

ar
(%

)

3
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

5
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

10
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

Si
nc

e
In

ce
pt

io
n

(%
)

US
 L

ar
ge

 C
ap

 E
qu

ity
 (0

4/
02

)
19

4,
82

8
30

.2
2

2.
07

0.
89

7.
29

-1
.3

4
11

.6
1

11
.7

6
7.

65
7.

49
S&

P 
50

0
1.

80
3.

57
10

.8
6

1.
72

11
.0

6
11

.6
7

7.
41

6.
49

   
W

ad
de

ll 
& 

Re
ed

 In
ve

st
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t (
12

/0
4)

98
,1

98
15

.2
3

2.
02

-1
.6

1
6.

08
0.

30
13

.3
7

12
.3

3
9.

27
9.

32
Ru

ss
el

l 1
00

0 
G

ro
w

th
1.

94
1.

76
9.

21
1.

61
12

.5
0

12
.1

1
8.

78
8.

39
   

Do
dg

e 
& 

C
ox

 In
co

rp
or

at
ed

  (
04

/0
2)

96
,6

29
14

.9
9

2.
13

3.
56

8.
55

-3
.0

5
9.

59
10

.9
3

5.
85

7.
71

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0 

V
a

lu
e

1.
55

5.
39

11
.3

2
-0

.0
6

9.
23

10
.7

0
6.

11
6.

74

US
 S

m
al

l C
ap

 E
qu

ity
 (0

1/
99

)
49

,6
45

7.
70

3.
03

1.
75

5.
81

-4
.8

8
6.

96
8.

86
6.

92
10

.6
2

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0

2.
25

2.
28

5.
96

-5
.9

7
6.

93
7.

86
6.

27
7.

37

   
W

TC
 S

C
 2

00
0 

(0
1/

99
)

34
,7

23
5.

39
2.

94
2.

70
7.

48
-2

.9
4

10
.7

0
11

.1
2

9.
60

11
.0

3
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0
2.

25
2.

28
5.

96
-5

.9
7

6.
93

7.
86

6.
27

7.
37

   
C

la
riV

es
t A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (

07
/0

7)
14

,9
21

2.
31

3.
23

0.
42

5.
01

-5
.5

1
10

.3
9

10
.6

5
--

5.
24

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

G
ro

w
th

2.
69

-1
.1

4
3.

13
-9

.1
3

7.
68

8.
15

7.
20

6.
23

N
on

 U
S 

Eq
ui

ty
 (0

3/
03

)
14

6,
06

0
22

.6
5

-0
.5

2
-0

.3
5

4.
29

-9
.5

1
0.

68
1.

13
2.

87
8.

34
N

on
 U

S 
Eq

ui
ty

 In
d

ex
 2

-1
.3

7
-0

.0
8

3.
85

-1
0.

81
1.

47
1.

62
2.

56
8.

87

In
t'l

 D
ev

el
op

ed
 M

ar
ke

ts
 E

qu
ity

   
M

ar
at

ho
n-

Lo
nd

on
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l F

un
d 

(0
8/

15
)

60
,2

40
9.

34
-0

.0
3

-1
.0

4
4.

77
--

--
--

--
-5

.1
5

C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s' 

Re
tir

em
en

t F
un

d
Fo

r t
he

 P
er

io
ds

 E
nd

in
g 

M
ay

 3
1,

 2
01

6

M
SC

I E
A

FE
-0

.7
8

-0
.7

5
3.

96
-9

.2
4

2.
45

2.
58

2.
40

-8
.5

3
   

Fi
sh

er
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (0

7/
03

)
60

,4
73

9.
38

0.
36

-2
.2

9
2.

58
-1

1.
09

1.
76

2.
21

3.
27

7.
72

M
SC

I E
A

FE
-0

.7
8

-0
.7

5
3.

96
-9

.2
4

2.
45

2.
58

2.
40

7.
15

M
SC

I E
A

FE
 V

a
lu

e
-1

.4
3

-1
.3

5
1.

33
-1

3.
26

0.
77

1.
44

1.
28

-1
2.

06
M

SC
I E

A
FE

 G
ro

w
th

-0
.1

6
-0

.1
6

6.
53

-5
.2

2
4.

05
3.

66
3.

45
7.

38

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 E
qu

ity
   

A
be

rd
ee

n 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (

06
/0

8)
25

,3
47

3.
93

-3
.6

6
6.

49
7.

38
-1

0.
72

-4
.2

7
-0

.7
7

--
3.

23
M

SC
I E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
a

rk
et

s
-3

.7
1

2.
40

3.
15

-1
7.

33
-4

.6
2

-4
.5

0
3.

44
-2

.3
1

 ©
 2

01
6 

A
ss

et
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
 A

ll R
ig

ht
s R

es
er

ve
d

 3

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 15 of 89



 P
re

lim
in

ar
y

M
ar

ke
t

Va
lu

e
($

00
0s

)

A
ct

ua
l

A
llo

ca
tio

n
(%

)

1
M

on
th

(%
)

YT
D

(%
)

FY
TD

(%
)

1
Ye

ar
(%

)

3
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

5
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

10
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

Si
nc

e
In

ce
pt

io
n

(%
)

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
(1

0/
84

)
18

6,
66

0
28

.9
5

-1
.1

9
4.

17
3.

42
1.

51
1.

97
3.

31
5.

08
6.

84
Ba

rc
la

ys
 U

S 
A

gg
re

ga
te

0.
03

3.
45

2.
86

2.
99

2.
91

3.
33

4.
97

7.
42

   
Ta

pl
in

, C
an

id
a 

& 
Ha

ba
ch

t (
03

/9
7)

67
,7

83
10

.5
1

-0
.0

3
3.

69
3.

08
1.

96
2.

67
3.

74
5.

31
5.

86
Ba

rc
la

ys
 U

S 
A

gg
re

ga
te

0.
03

3.
45

2.
86

2.
99

2.
91

3.
33

4.
97

5.
51

   
St

at
e 

St
re

et
 G

lo
ba

l A
dv

iso
rs

 (0
6/

03
)

59
,4

24
9.

22
0.

03
3.

46
2.

88
3.

02
2.

93
3.

36
5.

09
4.

34
Ba

rc
la

ys
 U

S 
A

gg
re

ga
te

0.
03

3.
45

2.
86

2.
99

2.
91

3.
33

4.
97

4.
26

   
Br

an
dy

w
in

e 
(0

2/
12

)
59

,4
53

9.
22

-3
.6

6
5.

46
4.

36
-0

.4
3

0.
34

--
--

1.
91

C
iti

gr
ou

p
 W

or
ld

 G
ov

t B
on

d
-1

.5
1

6.
80

5.
49

7.
00

1.
22

0.
49

3.
73

-0
.3

3

Re
al

 A
ss

et
s 

(0
7/

02
)

66
,6

17
10

.3
3

-0
.3

3
2.

58
6.

19
7.

16
9.

45
9.

32
6.

44
8.

32
Re

a
l A

ss
et

s C
om

p
os

ite
 In

d
ex

 3
0.

02
3.

78
7.

73
8.

69
9.

82
10

.0
9

6.
00

--

C
or

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
   

UB
S 

G
lo

ba
l A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (

09
/0

0)
39

,1
99

6.
08

0.
00

2.
07

5.
15

11
.9

4
11

.8
3

11
.3

8
6.

74
8.

55
N

FI
 O

D
C

E 
N

et
0.

00
1.

97
5.

14
12

.6
4

12
.5

9
12

.2
0

5.
38

7.
18

O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
   

Pr
iv

at
e 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

(0
6/

04
)

83
3

0.
13

-0
.5

1
2.

41
3.

99
16

.5
5

26
.0

1
20

.1
2

0.
37

2.
46

G
lo

ba
l R

EI
Ts

C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s' 

Re
tir

em
en

t F
un

d
Fo

r t
he

 P
er

io
ds

 E
nd

in
g 

M
ay

 3
1,

 2
01

6

   
C

BR
E 

C
la

rio
n 

(0
7/

09
)

26
,5

85
4.

12
-0

.5
0

3.
39

7.
70

1.
90

5.
94

6.
46

--
12

.8
2

FT
SE

 E
PR

A
/N

A
RE

IT 
D

ev
 R

E
0.

03
5.

43
10

.0
7

4.
29

6.
64

7.
29

4.
98

13
.7

0

C
as

h 
an

d 
Eq

ui
va

le
nt

s 
(0

6/
93

)
95

1
0.

15
0.

02
0.

13
0.

18
0.

33
0.

26
0.

26
1.

32
3.

02
Pr

iv
at

e 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Re

sid
ua

l C
as

h
0

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

D
a

te
s 

re
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 f
irs

t 
fu

ll 
m

o
n

th
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

.

FY
TD

: 
Fi

sc
a

l 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
in

g
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r.

 ©
 2

01
6 

A
ss

et
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
 A

ll R
ig

ht
s R

es
er

ve
d

 4

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 16 of 89



1
M

on
th

(%
)

YT
D

(%
)

FY
TD

(%
)

1
Ye

ar
(%

)

3
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

5
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

10
Ye

ar
s

(%
)

Eq
ui

ty
 M

ar
ke

ts
 - 

C
or

e
S&

P 
50

0
1.

80
3.

57
10

.8
6

1.
72

11
.0

6
11

.6
7

7.
41

Ru
ss

el
l 1

00
0

1.
75

3.
51

10
.2

3
0.

78
10

.8
9

11
.4

4
7.

50
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0
2.

25
2.

28
5.

96
-5

.9
7

6.
93

7.
86

6.
27

Ru
ss

el
l 2

50
0

2.
11

4.
02

7.
43

-4
.3

0
8.

23
9.

00
7.

33
Ru

ss
el

l M
id

 C
ap

1.
64

5.
02

8.
82

-1
.9

7
10

.1
8

10
.3

3
8.

03
Eq

ui
ty

 M
ar

ke
ts

 - 
G

ro
w

th
S&

P 
50

0 
G

ro
w

th
2.

67
1.

91
9.

92
2.

62
12

.8
8

12
.7

2
9.

00
Ru

ss
el

l 1
00

0 
G

ro
w

th
1.

94
1.

76
9.

21
1.

61
12

.5
0

12
.1

1
8.

78
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0 
G

ro
w

th
2.

69
-1

.1
4

3.
13

-9
.1

3
7.

68
8.

15
7.

20
Ru

ss
el

l 2
50

0 
G

ro
w

th
2.

48
0.

71
4.

55
-7

.3
1

8.
89

9.
03

7.
99

Ru
ss

el
l M

id
 C

ap
 G

ro
w

th
1.

64
2.

17
6.

37
-3

.7
0

10
.0

8
9.

63
8.

08
N

A
SD

A
Q

 C
om

p
3.

62
-1

.1
9

7.
10

-2
.4

1
12

.7
1

11
.7

8
8.

55
Eq

ui
ty

 M
ar

ke
ts

 - 
Va

lu
e

S&
P 

50
0 

V
al

ue
0.

91
5.

31
11

.6
8

0.
45

9.
00

10
.5

1
5.

71
Ru

ss
el

l 1
00

0 
V

al
ue

1.
55

5.
39

11
.3

2
-0

.0
6

9.
23

10
.7

0
6.

11
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0 
V

al
ue

1.
83

5.
76

8.
80

-2
.7

5
6.

10
7.

55
5.

25
Ru

ss
el

l 2
50

0 
V

al
ue

1.
77

7.
20

10
.1

8
-1

.4
3

7.
56

8.
89

6.
52

Ru
ss

el
l M

id
 C

ap
 V

al
ue

1.
64

7.
89

11
.2

5
-0

.3
1

10
.2

2
10

.9
2

7.
76

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l M
ar

ke
ts

M
SC

I E
A

FE
-0

.7
8

-0
.7

5
3.

96
-9

.2
4

2.
45

2.
58

2.
40

M
SC

I W
or

ld
 e

x 
US

-1
.0

1
0.

41
4.

40
-9

.2
0

2.
11

2.
06

2.
42

M
SC

I W
or

ld
0.

65
2.

11
7.

85
-3

.3
9

7.
05

7.
13

5.
13

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e Bo
fA

 M
L 

1 
Yr

 T
re

as
ur

y 
N

ot
e

-0
.0

4
0.

41
0.

25
0.

37
0.

29
0.

30
1.

69
Bo

fA
 M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

ie
ld

 M
as

te
r I

I
0.

74
8.

15
5.

80
-0

.9
2

2.
89

5.
26

7.
28

Ba
rc

la
ys

 In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 A
gg

-0
.0

3
2.

52
2.

00
2.

42
2.

43
2.

69
4.

55
Ba

rc
la

ys
 U

S 
A

gg
re

ga
te

0.
03

3.
45

2.
86

2.
99

2.
91

3.
33

4.
97

Ba
rc

la
ys

 In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 G
/C

-0
.1

1
2.

60
1.

89
2.

24
2.

05
2.

57
4.

35
Ba

rc
la

ys
 U

S 
C

re
d

it
-0

.0
4

5.
14

4.
60

3.
32

3.
47

4.
57

5.
89

M
ar

ke
t O

ve
rv

ie
w

Fo
r t

he
 P

er
io

d
s E

nd
in

g 
M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
6

 ©
 2

01
6 

A
ss

et
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
 A

ll R
ig

ht
s R

es
er

ve
d

 5

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 17 of 89



CITY OF TAMPA GENERAL EMPLOYEES 

RETIREMENT FUND  

RESOLUTION NO: 2016-04 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INVESTMENT ADVISORY 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE  CITY OF TAMPA GENERAL EMPLOYEES 

RETIREMENT FUND AND LMCG INVESTMENTS, LLC (F/K/A LEE 

MUNDER CAPITAL GROUP, LLC); AUTHORIZING EXECUTION 

THEREOF BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES, 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees for City of Tampa General Employees’ Retirement 

Fund (“Board”), desires to approve this Investment Advisory Agreement between the City of 

Tampa General Employees’ Retirement Fund and LMCG Investments, LLC (f/k/a Lee Munder 

Capital Group, LLC); and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Board to approve the Investment Advisory 

Agreement with LMCG Investments, LLC (f/k/a Lee Munder Capital Group, LLC); and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize and allow LMCG Investments, LLC (f/k/a 

Lee Munder Capital Group, LLC) to provide investment management services; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the members of the City of Tampa General 

Employees Retirement Fund to have the Board approve the Investment Advisory Agreement 

with LMCG Investments, LLC (f/k/a Lee Munder Capital Group, LLC). 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GENERAL 

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND  

OF THE CITY OF TAMPA, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The Investment Advisory Agreement between the City of Tampa and 

LMCG Investments, LLC (f/k/a Lee Munder Capital Group, LLC), a copy of which is attached 

hereto and by reference made part hereof, is hereby approved in its entirety. 

 

 Section 2. The Board authorizes and approves execution of the Investment Advisory 

Agreement. 

 

 Section 3. The Chairman of the Board is authorized and empowered to execute, as 

attested by its Recording Secretary, on behalf of the City of Tampa General Employees’ 

Retirement Fund. 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 18 of 89



 Section 4. Other proper officers of the General Employees Retirement Fund are 

authorized to do all things necessary and proper to carry out and make effective the provisions of 

this Resolution. 

 

 Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY MAJORITY VOTE OF THE CITY OF TAMPA 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND BOARD ON ______________________. 

 

 

 

CITY OF TAMPA GENERAL EMPLOYEES 

RETIREMENT FUND 

 

                          

                                                                        By:_________________________________ 

                                   ERNEST CARRERA, CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST TO: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

NATASHA NEAGU, RECORDING 

SECRETARY AND GE PENSION 

PLAN SUPERVISOR 

 

 

 
I:\Pension Board\LMCG\Reso_Investment Agreement_05112016 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 19 of 89



 

  

INVESTMENT ADVISORY AGREEMENT 
LMCG INVESTMENTS, LLC 

200 Clarendon Street, 28th Floor 
Boston, MA 02116 

Tel. 617-380-5600 | Fax. 617-380-5601 
 
 

THIS INVESTMENT ADVISORY AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), made this ___ day of  
_____________, 2016, is made by and between LMCG Investments, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company (“LMCG” or the "Adviser"), and the City of Tampa General Employees’ 
Retirement Fund (the “Client”). 

WITNESSETH: 
 

Whereas, the Board of Trustees of the City of Tampa General Employees Pension Fund 
acting pursuant to the power vested in it, desires to appoint LMCG as an investment manager 
for the Client; and 

 
Whereas, LMCG is willing to accept appointment as an investment manager for the 

Client; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and agreements contained 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Appointment of the Adviser. The Client, a governmental plan as defined in Section 
3(32) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”), hereby 
appoints the Adviser to act, and the Adviser agrees to act, as investment manager (as 
such term is defined in Section 3(38) of ERISA) to the Client with respect to all cash, 
securities or other property as may from time to time be designated by the Client as 
assets to be managed by the Adviser.  

2. Investment Management Services. The Adviser will direct, in the Adviser's sole 
discretion, the management, holding, investment and reinvestment of the assets 
deposited by the Client at the Custodian(s) (as defined in Section 4). The funds will be 
managed according to the investment strategy overview and/or investment policies 
attached as Exhibit A. The Adviser will determine from time to time what portion of the 
assets of the Client shall be invested in securities and when such investments will be 
purchased, retained or sold.  Dividends generated by the portfolio will remain in the 
portfolio for reinvestment unless otherwise directed by the Client. Additional 
contributions or withdrawals will be directed from time to time at the discretion of the 
Client and pursuant to their written instructions to the Adviser.  In acting under the 
provisions of this paragraph and in acting under this Agreement as a general matter, the 
Adviser shall act herein as a fiduciary in accordance with the applicable requirements of 
Section 112.656(2), Florida Statutes, Chapter 23559 of the Special Act of 1945, as 
amended, and any subsequent amendments to these sections as notified to the Adviser 
by the Client, and act in accordance with the Client’s Investment Guidelines attached as 
Exhibit A. 

3.  Execution of Investment Transactions.  
a. The Adviser may engage any broker-dealer, including a related party broker 

dealer, to execute transactions for the Client that, in the Adviser's opinion, is 
capable of properly executing the transaction or transactions under 
consideration. In selecting broker-dealers to effect Client transactions, the 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 20 of 89



 

  

Adviser will seek prompt execution of orders on the most favorable economic 
terms, and will consider other factors, including commissions, abilities and 
experience of the broker-dealer, financial wherewithal, and strengths of the 
broker-dealer.  

b. The Adviser may in certain instances authorize the payment of specified 
increased brokerage commissions in return for certain research services from the 
broker-dealer. However, the Adviser will do so only if it determines that the 
amount of the commissions allocated to such broker-dealer is reasonable in 
relation to the value of brokerage and research services received and the 
research and services received provide lawful and appropriate assistance to the 
Adviser in the performance of its investment decision-making responsibilities. 
The Adviser may use research services furnished by broker-dealers in 
connection with all or some other clients.  

c. Transactions for the Client or other Adviser client accounts generally will be 
effected independently unless the Adviser decides to purchase or sell the same 
securities for several clients at approximately the same time. The Adviser may 
(but is not obligated to) combine or "bunch" such orders to obtain best execution, 
to negotiate more favorable commission rates or to allocate equitably between 
the Client and Adviser's other clients. This may result in differences in prices and 
commissions or other transaction costs than might have been obtained had such 
orders been placed independently.  

4. Custodial Arrangements.  
a. Custody of the Client's assets will be maintained with qualified custodian(s), as 

identified on Exhibit B (the “Custodian” or collectively, “Custodians”). The Client 
will be solely responsible for paying all fees or charges of the Custodian(s). The 
Client authorizes the Adviser to give the Custodian(s) instructions for the 
purchase, sale, conversion, redemption, exchange or retention of any security, 
cash or cash equivalent or other investments for the Client.  

b. The Client authorizes and directs the Adviser to instruct the Custodian to provide 
the Adviser with copies of all periodic statements and other reports and 
information that the Custodian sends to the Client.  

c. The Adviser will not act as qualified custodian of client assets and will not be 
liable for any act or omission of the Custodian(s). 

 
5. Instructions. The Adviser is authorized to accept and rely upon all instructions, whether 

in writing, by telephone or otherwise, that the Adviser believes in good faith are given by 
the Client or an authorized representative of the Client as identified in Exhibit C. 

 
6. Management Fees. As compensation for the services provided by the Adviser under 

this Agreement, the Client will pay the Adviser a management fee. The quarterly fees for 
the Client are calculated by multiplying the average of the month end market values for 
the quarter by the annual fee rate which is then divided by 4. The invoice calculation will 
be adjusted for cash flows 10% or greater of the account market value unless the 
amount derived is deemed immaterial. In any partial quarter, the fee will be pro rated 
based on the number of days that the Client was a client of the Adviser during that 
quarter. Such annual fee rate is shown on Exhibit D of this Agreement.  

 
The Adviser agrees that the fees payable by the Client pursuant to Exhibit D shall be no 
less favorable than those payable by other institutions that hire the Adviser subsequent 
to the date of this Agreement to manage an investment portfolio of comparable size, and 
with investment objectives and guidelines (Small Cap Value) that are substantially 
similar to, those set forth in Exhibit A.  The Adviser agrees to promptly notify the Client if, 
at any time, the fees payable by any such institution are more favorable than those set 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 21 of 89



 

  

forth in Exhibit D.  Upon such notification, the Client has the right to institute such fees 
under this Agreement and the parties agree to amend Exhibit D. 
 
Management fees do not include brokerage commissions, dealer spreads and other 
costs associated with the purchase or sale of securities. 

 
7. Representations and Warranties of the Client. The Client represents and warrants to 

the Adviser the following: 
a. The Client has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement; 
b. This Agreement has been duly authorized and is binding upon the Client;  
c. The Client, or the person signing on behalf of the Client, is duly authorized to do 

so;  
d. The Client acknowledges the representations contained in Exhibit E, such 

representations designed to comply with the USA-PATRIOT Act; and 
e. Client assumes responsibility for the accuracy of information furnished by Client 

to Adviser and agrees to notify Adviser in a timely fashion regarding any changes 
affecting the Client’s investment objectives or financial responsibilities. 

8. Representations and Warranties of the Adviser. The Adviser represents and warrants 
to the Client the following: 

a. This Agreement has been duly authorized and is binding upon the Adviser; 
b. The Adviser is registered as an investment adviser under the Investment 

Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the “Advisers Act”) and such registration is 
currently in effect; and 

c. The terms herein do not violate any term or condition of any document binding 
upon or affecting the Adviser. 

d. The Adviser agrees to act as a “fiduciary” with respect to the Client’s account 
assets within the meaning of Section 3(21) of ERISA; warrants that none of the 
disqualifications described in Section 411 of ERISA apply to it; and specifically 
agrees to perform its duties under this Agreement with the care, skill, prudence 
and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent investor 
acting in like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in an enterprise 
of like character and with like aims and in accordance with the prudent investor 
rule described in Florida Statutes, Section 518.11. 

e. The Adviser shall secure and maintain at all times during the term of this 
Agreement a bond or bonds protecting the Client’s account assets that meet the 
requirements of and in the amount specified under Section 412 of ERISA and the 
regulations thereunder, and shall include among those covered by such bond or 
bonds LMCG and any natural person employed by LMCG or its affiliates who 
handles or controls assets constituting a portion of the Client’s account. 

f. The Adviser shall maintain errors and omissions insurance in amounts 
acceptable to the Client which shall protect the Client’s account against losses 
from the negligent acts, errors or omissions of LMCG. A copy of the policy and 
certificate of insurance with respect thereto shall be provided to the Client upon 
request at any time. 

g. The Adviser warrants that it has not employed or written to any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for LMCG, to solicit or 
secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid, or agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for LMCG any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, 
contingent upon, or resulting from, the award of this Agreement. For breach of 
this warranty, the Client, in addition to its right to terminate this Agreement shall 
have, in its discretion, the right to deduct from the fees or other consideration 
payable hereunder, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 22 of 89



 

  

commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or contingent fee. 
h. The Adviser will furnish to the Client, from time to time, such evidence as the 

Client may reasonably request that it satisfies the foregoing requirements, and 
shall promptly notify the Client if it has reason to believe that any of the foregoing 
representations, warranties or covenants may cease to be satisfied. 

 
9. Liability and Indemnification.  

a. Except for negligence or malfeasance, or violations of applicable law, neither the 
Adviser nor any of its officers, partners, directors or employees shall be liable 
hereunder for any action performed or omitted to be performed or for any errors 
of judgment in managing the Client's account.   

b. The Adviser is not responsible and the Client agrees not to hold the Adviser 
liable for losses caused directly or indirectly by conditions beyond the Adviser's 
control, including, but not limited to, war, natural disasters, government 
restrictions, exchange or market rulings, strikes, interruptions of communications 
or data processing services, news or analysts' reports, market volatility, or 
disruptions in orderly trading on any exchange or market. 

c. The Adviser shall not be liable for the acts and/or omissions of other persons or 
third party service providers recommended to the Client by the Adviser, including 
a broker-dealer and/or custodian. To the extent authorized by Florida law and 
preserving all immunities, privileges and limitations of liability set forth in Section 
768.28, Florida Statutes the Client shall indemnify and hold the Adviser and its 
partners, employees, affiliates, attorneys and agents harmless from all liability, 
damages, loss and expense incurred by the indemnities in connection with the 
Client's account or any transaction entered into pursuant to this Agreement, 
provided that the Adviser or other indemnified party did not act grossly negligent 
resulting in such liability, damages, loss or expense. This indemnification shall be 
construed to limit recovery of the indemnified party to only those damages 
caused by Client’s negligence, and specifically does not include any attorney’s 
fees or costs associated therewith.  Any claims must comply with the procedures 
found in §768.28, Florida Statutes.   

d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Adviser and Client acknowledge that certain 
provisions of federal and state securities laws may impose liabilities under certain 
circumstances on persons who act in good faith, and therefore nothing contained 
herein shall constitute a waiver or limitation of any rights which the Client may 
have under such laws.  

e. The Adviser shall indemnify and hold the Client, its trustees, officers, agents and 
employees harmless from all liability, damages, loss and expense incurred by the 
indemnities resulting from or arising out of the Adviser’s negligence, 
malfeasance, breach of fiduciary duty or violation of applicable law in the 
performance of this Agreement by the Adviser, its employees, agents, or 
subcontractors. This indemnification does not extend to a claim that results from 
(a) the Client’s negligence or unlawful act; (b) action by the Adviser taken in 
reasonable reliance upon an instruction or direction given by an authorized 
person acting on behalf of the Client in accordance with this Agreement; or (c) 
false or incorrect information provided to the Adviser by the Client or any agent of 
the Client. 

10. Proxy Voting. (Please check appropriate  box and initial below): 

 ___X___ The Client agrees that the Adviser will vote proxies for common 
stock held in the account(s) of the Client. Client hereby directs the 
Adviser to instruct the Custodians to forward to the Adviser all proxies 
and related material.  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 23 of 89



 

  

 ______ The Client agrees that the Adviser will not vote proxies for 
common stock held in the account(s) of the Client.    

a. The Client hereby acknowledges that it has received and reviewed Adviser’s 
Proxy Voting Guidelines as well as a copy of this Agreement.  

11. Confidentiality. Non-Disclosure by Adviser: Except as otherwise agreed in writing or as 
required by law, the Adviser will keep confidential all information concerning the Client's 
identity, financial affairs, or investments.  The Adviser's obligations hereunder shall not 
apply to any information that was then generally known to the public, or became known 
to the public through no fault of the Adviser or any of its agents or representatives.   
Notwithstanding the forgoing, Client consents to Adviser’s use of Client’s name and 
publicly available information on listings of representative accounts. 

Information furnished by either party to the other, including their respective agents and 
employees is confidential, and shall not be disclosed to third parties except as 
necessitated by regulatory authority or otherwise required by Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes. 

IF THE ADVISER HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO ITS 
DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS 
CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS 
AT 813/274-8136, NATASHA.NEAGU@ TAMPAGOV.NET, AND 
MAILING ADDRESS OF CITY OF TAMPA GENERAL EMPLOYEES 
PENSION FUND, TAMPA MUNICIPAL OFFICE BUILDING, 7TH 
FLOOR, 306 E. JACKSON STREET, TAMPA, FL 33602  

12. Non-Exclusivity. The Adviser and any officer, director, affiliate or employee of the 
Adviser, may act as an adviser to any person, firm, or corporation and perform 
management and other services for any other person, association, corporation, firm or 
any other entity pursuant to any contract or otherwise, and any such performance or 
management or other services shall not be in any manner restricted or otherwise 
affected by any aspect of any relationship of the Adviser to or with the Client or be 
deemed to violate or give rise to any duty or obligation of the Adviser to the Client.  

13. Other Investment Accounts. The Client understands that the Adviser, its personnel or 
affiliates ("Affiliated Person") may take action for their own accounts or for the accounts 
of other clients that differ from advice given to or action taken for the Client. The Adviser 
is not obligated to buy, sell or recommend for the Client any security or other investment 
that the Adviser or Affiliated Person may buy, sell or recommend for their own accounts 
or for accounts of other clients. This Agreement does not limit or restrict in any way the 
Adviser or any Affiliated Person from buying, selling or trading in any securities or other 
investments for their own accounts.  

14. Risk Acknowledgement. The Adviser does not guarantee the future performance of the 
Client or any specific level of performance, the success of any investment decision or 
strategy that the Adviser may use, or the success of the Adviser's overall management 
of the Client. The Client understands that investment decisions made for the Client by 
the Adviser are subject to various market, currency, economic, political and business 
risks, and that those investment decisions will not always be profitable.  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 24 of 89



 

  

15. Termination. This Agreement will continue in effect until terminated and may be 
terminated with written notice by either party at any time. Termination of this Agreement 
will not affect (i) the validity of any action taken previously by the Adviser under this 
Agreement; (ii) liabilities or obligations of the parties from transactions initiated before 
termination; or (iii) obligation of the Client to pay advisory fees (pro rated through the 
date of termination).  Upon termination of this agreement, Adviser is under no obligation 
to recommend any action with regard to the securities or other property held in the 
Client’s account. 

16. Notices. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing 
and shall be hand delivered by messenger or courier service, faxed, emailed, or mailed 
and shall be deemed given when received at the addresses specified below:  

If to the Adviser:    

Mail and FedEx Address:  

LMCG Investments, LLC  
200 Clarendon Street, 28th Floor    
Boston, MA  02116     
Attention:  Director of Client Service   
Fax: 617-380-5601  
Email: clientservice@lmcg.com 
       

If to the Client:  

General Employees Retirement Fund 
306 East Jackson Street 7E 
Tampa, FL 33602 
Attention:  Natasha Neagu, GE Pension Plan Supervisor 
Fax: 813-274-7289 
Email: Natasha Neagu@tampagov.net 

Each such notice shall be deemed delivered on the date received.  

17. Non-Assignability. This agreement will bind and be for the benefit of the parties to the 
Agreement and their heirs, personal representatives, successors and permitted assigns, 
except that this Agreement may not be assigned (within the meaning of the Advisers 
Act) by either party without the consent of the other party.  
 

18. Amendments, Waivers and Changes. 
a. This Agreement may be amended either in whole or in part at any time by mutual 

written agreement of the parties. 
b. No term or provision of this Agreement may be waived or changed except by mutual 

consent. 

19. Intent. This Agreement and its related exhibits incorporated herein, reflects the entire 
understanding between the Client and the Adviser concerning the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 

 
20. Governing Law. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 25 of 89



 

  

a. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Florida, without regard to conflict of laws principles. References herein to 
provisions of law shall be deemed to include a reference to any amendments thereof 
and any successor provisions thereto. 

b. The Adviser shall not be responsible for initiating any legal action or rendering any 
advice or taking any action on behalf of the Client with respect to any legal 
proceedings, including class actions or bankruptcies, related to securities or other 
investments held in the account(s), or the issuers thereof. The Client hereby 
expressly retains the right and obligation to take such legal action relating to the 
securities held in the account(s). 

21. Disclosure. The Client hereby acknowledges that it has received and reviewed a copy 
of Part 2A & 2B of the Adviser’s Form ADV.  
 

22. The Adviser shall for all purposes herein provided be deemed to be an independent 
contractor and, excepted as provided herein or expressly authorized in writing, shall not 
have authority to act for and represent the Client in any way or otherwise be deemed an 
agent of either or both. 

 
23. Standard of Care.  

  
 a. The Adviser shall discharge its duties hereunder with respect to the Client’s 

account assets solely in the interest of, and for the exclusive purpose of providing 
benefits for, beneficiaries of the Client. 

 b. The Adviser shall not engage in any transaction involving the Client’s account 
assets that would constitute a nonexempt prohibited transaction under Section 
406 of ERISA. 

 c. The Adviser has been appointed in reliance on its special skills and expertise and 
shall use those skills and expertise in the discharge of its duties hereunder. 

 

 

 

 [Remainder of page is intentionally blank.] 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 26 of 89



 

  

INVESTMENT ADVISORY AGREEMENT 
LMCG INVESTMENTS, LLC 

200 Clarendon Street, 28th Floor 
Boston, MA 02116 

Tel. 617-380-5600   Fax. 617-380-5601 
 

THIS INVESTMENT ADVISORY AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made by and between 
LMCG Investments, LLC (the "Adviser"), and the City of Tampa General Employees’ 
Retirement Fund (the “Client”). 

 
 
LMCG INVESTMENTS, LLC 
 

_______________________________  
Signature 

_______________________________ ______________________ 
Name:  Title: 
 

 

CLIENT: City of Tampa General Employees’ Retirement Fund      

_______________________________  
Signature    

_______________________________ ______________________ 
Name:  Title: 

 
 
  
 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 27 of 89



 

  

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Small Cap Value 
Investment Guidelines 

 
 
Investment Objective 
 
The objective of LMCG’s Small Cap Value Strategy (“Strategy”) is to maximize the total return of 
the portfolio relative to the Russell 2000 Value Index over a market cycle. The Strategy will 
primarily invest in high quality, though temporarily out of favor, small cap US equity securities. 
The market capitalization of these securities will generally fall within the range of the Russell 
2000 Value Index.  
 
Investment Guidelines 
 
Subject to the following guidelines, LMCG has full discretion in investment decisions.   
 
1. The manager is expected to purchase shares of common stocks, preferred stocks, and 

securities convertible to stock.  Normally, these will consist of the common shares of 
companies publicly traded in US dollars on an open market exchange in the United States.  

 
2. At least 80% of the portfolio should be invested, at the time of initial purchase, in securities 

with market capitalizations less than $4 billion or less than the largest market cap in the 
Russell 2000 Value Index, excluding the market cap of ETFs.  Holdings should normally be 
in companies of sufficient capitalization and held in issues that are traded actively enough to 
facilitate prompt transactions and accurate market valuations.   

 
3. Normally, any single investment should not exceed 5% of the market value of the portfolio 

when purchased.  If subsequent market action takes the current market value beyond the 
5% limitation, the portfolio manager has an obligation to prudently reduce any holding that 
equals or exceeds 10% of the portfolio’s value. 

 
4. The manager may purchase and hold Exchange Traded Funds (“ETFs”) to equitize cash as 

a method of keeping the portfolio fully invested. 
 

5. Investment in 5% or more of the voting securities of any one issuer is prohibited. 
 
6. The manager may purchase Initial Public Offerings (“IPOs”) from time to time. 
 
7. Under normal circumstances cash will be held to no more than 10% of the market value of 

the portfolio. 
 
Private Placements 
 
Equity and debt investment in private placements is not considered normal policy and will not be 
made without the prior written consent of the Client. 
 
Derivatives 
 
The use of derivatives is not considered normal policy and requires the advance approval of the 
Client. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 28 of 89



 

  

 
Leverage 
 
Explicit use of leverage in the portfolio is forbidden.  Leverage is herein defined as a situation in 
which the portfolio as a whole is more than 100% invested in the securities permitted by these 
guidelines. 
 
Review and Modification 
 
These guidelines shall be reviewed periodically and revised or confirmed as appropriate. Any 
changes deemed necessary by either the manager or the client will be agreed upon by both 
parties and confirmed in writing. 
 
 
Date:  
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________ 
on behalf of LMCG Investments, LLC             Title 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________ 
on behalf of the City of Tampa   Title 
General Employees’ Retirement Fund 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Pension Board 
Resolution No.: ___________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 29 of 89



 

  

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
CLIENT-DESIGNATED CUSTODIAN: 
 
  
  
Firm Name  
 
  
Contact Person  
 
  
Phone Number  
 
______________________________ 
Fax Number 
 
______________________________ 
Email Address 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 30 of 89



 

  

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

 
LMCG Investments, LLC is authorized to accept and rely upon all instructions, whether in 
writing, by telephone or otherwise given by the following individuals with respect to the assets 
managed by LMCG in the City of Tampa General Employees’ Retirement Fund portfolio: 
 
 
      
______________________________________________________________ :  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name     Signature 
 
      
_______________________________________________________________ 

Title 
 
      
______________________________________________________________ :  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name     Signature 
 
      
_______________________________________________________________ 

Title 
 
      
______________________________________________________________ :  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name     Signature 
 
      
_______________________________________________________________ 

Title 
 
      
______________________________________________________________ :  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name     Signature 
 
      
_______________________________________________________________ 

Title 
 
      
______________________________________________________________ :  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name     Signature 
 
      
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 31 of 89



 

  

 
 

EXHIBIT D 
 
MANAGEMENT FEES 
 
The annual fee schedule for the Client’s account shall be as follows: 
 
0.75% on all assets 
 
 

 The quarterly fees for the Client are calculated by multiplying the average of the month 
end market values for the quarter by the annual fee rate which is then divided by four. If 
appropriate within the month we adjust for significant cash flows. 

 
 The market value, used in the invoice calculation, is obtained from the Adviser’s 

accounting system and is based on trade date positions and includes accrued income. 
 

 An adjustment for significant cash flows will be made when a cash flow is equal to or 
greater than 10% of the market value. The timing of the significant cash flow is also 
taken into consideration, particularly when a significant cash flow occurs in the last week 
of a month. 

 
 The Adviser will send an invoice for its management fee to the Client at the end of each 

calendar quarter. Client agrees to pay the management fee set forth on the invoice 
within fifteen (15) days of his or her receipt of the bill. 

 
 In any partial quarter, the fee will be pro-rated based on the number of days that the 

Client was a client of the Adviser during that quarter. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 32 of 89



 

  

 
 

EXHIBIT E 
 
Prospective Clients of LMCG Investments, LLC should check the OFAC website before making the 
following representations.   
 
The Client represents that the funds deposited to the Custodian for Management under this agreement 
were not directly or indirectly derived from activities that may contravene federal, state and international 
laws and regulations, including anti-money laundering laws. 
 
Federal regulations and Executive Orders administered by the U.S. Treasury Department's Office of 
Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC") prohibit, among other things, the engagement in transactions with, and 
the provision of services to, certain foreign countries, territories, entities and individuals.1  The lists of 
OFAC prohibited countries, territories, persons and entities can be found on the OFAC website at 
<http://www.treas.gov/ofac>.   
 
None of: the Client; any person controlling, controlled by, or under common control with, the Client; if the 
Client is a privately held entity, any person having a beneficial interest in the Client; or any person for 
whom the Client is acting as agent or nominee in connection with this investment is a country, territory, 
individual or entity named on an OFAC list, or is an individual or entity that resides or has a place of 
business in a country or territory named on such lists.  The Client, if an entity, or acting as an agent or 
nominee, has adopted procedures designed to elicit information from the persons described in clauses (ii) 
through (iv) above that substantiate the statements contained in the foregoing representation. 
 
Please be advised that LMCG may not accept a new account from the Client if it cannot make the 
representation set forth in the preceding paragraph. 
 
The Client is not a senior foreign political figure,2 or any immediate family member3 or close associate4 of 
a senior foreign political figure within the meaning of the U.S. Department of Treasury's Guidance on 
Enhanced Scrutiny for Transactions That May Involve the Proceeds of Foreign Official Corruption5 and as 
referenced in the USA PATRIOT Act of 2001.6   
 
The Client agrees to promptly notify LMCG should the Client become aware of any change in the 
information set forth in these representations.  The Client is advised that, by law, LMCG may be obligated 
to report such action and to disclose the Client’s identity to OFAC.      
 
                                            
1
 These individuals include specially designated nationals, specially designated narcotics traffickers and other parties 

subject to OFAC sanctions and embargo programs. 

2
 A "senior foreign political figure" is defined as a senior official in the executive, legislative, administrative, 

military or judicial branches of a foreign government (whether elected or not), a senior official of a major foreign 

political party, or a senior executive of a foreign government-owned corporation.  In addition, a "senior foreign 

political figure" includes any corporation, business or other entity that has been formed by, or for the benefit of, a 

senior foreign political figure. 

3
 "Immediate family" of a senior foreign political figure typically includes the figure's parents, siblings, spouse, 

children and in-laws. 

4
 A "close associate" of a senior foreign political figure is a person who is widely and publicly known to maintain an 

unusually close relationship with the senior foreign political figure, and includes a person who is in a position to 

conduct substantial domestic and international financial transactions on behalf of the senior foreign political figure. 

5
 For a fuller discussion of the preceding terms and definitions, see 

<http://www.federalreserve.gov/boarddocs/srletters/2001/sr0103a1.pdf>. 

6
 The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct 

Terrorism Act of 2001, Pub. L. No. 107-56 (2001). 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 33 of 89



C
it

y 
o

f 
T

am
p

a

G
en

er
al

 E
m

p
lo

ye
es

 R
et

ir
em

en
t 

F
u

n
d

C
as

h
 F

lo
w

 P
ro

je
ct

io
n

  D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
O

ct
-1

5
N

o
v-

15
D

ec
-1

5
Ja

n
-1

6
F

eb
-1

6
M

ar
-1

6
A

p
r-

16
M

ay
-1

6
Ju

n
-1

6

B
eg

in
n

in
g

 B
al

an
ce

: 
59

1,
82

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

 
10

,3
51

,2
88

$ 
   

  
6,

45
2,

95
2

$ 
   

   
6,

31
9,

10
0

$ 
   

 
42

8,
18

1
$ 

   
   

  
 

5,
28

8,
46

3
$ 

   
   

72
3,

44
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
71

8,
01

5
$ 

   
   

94
9,

68
8

$ 
   

   
   

  

R
E

C
E

IP
T

S

E
E

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 C
ity

6,
02

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

44
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
08

8
   

   
   

   
   

3,
06

5
   

   
   

   
  

3,
28

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

85
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
05

9
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

75
5

   
   

   
   

 
2,

85
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

E
E

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 C
ou

nt
y 

36
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
36

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

36
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

64
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
64

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

E
R

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 C
ity

 
13

,2
54

,9
83

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

E
R

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 C
ou

nt
y 

63
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
54

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

54
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

54
2

   
   

   
   

   
  

95
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

66
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
60

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 fr

om
 G

W
 C

ap
ita

l L
iq

ui
da

tio
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

   
   

 
16

,9
07

,2
50

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

In
ve

st
m

en
t L

iq
ui

da
tio

n 
- 

B
en

ef
it 

P
ay

m
en

ts
3,

50
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

4,
30

0,
00

0
   

   
6,

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
  

In
ve

st
m

en
t L

iq
ui

da
tio

n 
- 

LM
C

G
 F

un
di

ng
16

,0
00

,0
00

   
   

   

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 F

id
el

ity
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
G

ro
w

th
 F

un
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,4
13

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
,0

97
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
he

ck
 D

ep
os

ite
d

39
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

56
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
eb

at
es

, S
et

tle
m

en
ts

, M
is

c.
6,

20
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
85

4
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

35
7

   
   

   
   

   
1,

11
0

   
   

   
   

  
38

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
79

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

38
9

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
01

5
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   

In
te

re
st

 R
ec

ei
ve

d
35

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

52
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
92

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
37

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
63

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

T
o

ta
l R

ec
ei

p
ts

13
,2

68
,2

50
$ 

   
   

 
9,

25
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

7,
44

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

 
1,

02
1,

05
7

$ 
   

 
16

,9
12

,7
00

$ 
   

  
8,

49
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
56

4,
65

7
$ 

   
   

 
4,

30
6,

78
2

$ 
   

22
,2

06
,4

52
$ 

   
  

 

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

P
en

si
on

 B
en

ef
its

(2
,9

51
,3

31
)

   
   

   
 

(2
,9

39
,2

73
)

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

,9
35

,0
99

)
   

   
(3

,0
02

,7
31

)
   

   
  

(3
,0

42
,9

32
)

   
   

  
(3

,0
45

,9
16

)
   

   
   

(3
,0

29
,1

99
)

   
  

(3
,3

00
,0

00
)

   
   

   
 

T
ax

es
 

(2
90

,6
61

)
   

   
   

   
 

(2
88

,1
86

)
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

89
,0

11
)

   
   

   
(2

97
,0

85
)

   
   

   
  

(3
13

,6
37

)
   

   
   

  
(3

02
,2

20
)

   
   

   
   

(3
00

,7
30

)
   

   
  

(3
50

,0
00

)
   

   
   

   
 

V
en

do
rs

(2
06

,4
60

)
   

   
   

   
 

(6
80

,1
34

)
   

   
   

   
(3

87
,8

66
)

   
   

   
(7

52
,6

02
)

   
   

   
  

(2
68

,5
08

)
   

   
   

  
(2

21
,9

55
)

   
   

   
   

(7
45

,1
81

)
   

   
  

(2
50

,0
00

)
   

   
   

   
 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 D

R
O

P
 P

ay
ou

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

41
,3

00
)

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(9

48
,4

36
)

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

,7
00

,0
00

)
   

   
   

 

R
ef

un
d 

of
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 (
F

or
fe

itu
re

s)
(6

0,
33

9)
   

   
   

   
   

In
ve

st
m

en
t M

gr
 F

un
di

ng
 -

 W
el

lin
gt

on
(8

,0
00

,0
00

)
   

   
  

In
ve

st
m

en
t M

gr
 F

un
di

ng
 -

 L
M

C
G

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

(1
6,

00
0,

00
0)

   
   

  

T
o

ta
l D

is
b

u
rs

em
en

ts
(3

,4
48

,4
52

)
$ 

   
   

 
(3

,9
07

,5
93

)
$ 

   
   

(1
41

,3
00

)
$ 

   
   

 
(6

,9
11

,9
76

)
$ 

   
(1

2,
05

2,
41

8)
$ 

   
(4

,5
73

,5
13

)
$ 

   
  

(3
,5

70
,0

91
)

$ 
   

   
(4

,0
75

,1
09

)
$ 

  
(2

2,
60

0,
00

0)
$ 

   
  

E
n

d
in

g
 B

al
an

ce
10

,4
11

,6
27

$ 
   

   
 

6,
45

2,
95

2
$ 

   
   

 
6,

31
9,

10
0

$ 
   

   
42

8,
18

1
$ 

   
   

 
5,

28
8,

46
3

$ 
   

   
72

3,
44

9
$ 

   
   

  
 

71
8,

01
5

$ 
   

   
   

 
94

9,
68

8
$ 

   
   

55
6,

14
0

$ 
   

   
   

  

A
C

T
U

A
L

S
P

ro
je

c
ti

o
n

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 34 of 89



C
it
y

 o
f 

Ta
m

p
a

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s'

 R
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t 

Fu
n

d

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 a
s 

o
f 
M

a
y

 3
1

, 
2

0
1

6
M

a
rk

e
t 

V
a

lu
e

%
 o

f 
To

ta
l 

Fu
n

d
Ta

rg
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
Ta

rg
e

t 
%

$
 V

a
lu

e
 

O
v

e
r/

U
n

d
e

r 

Ta
rg

e
t

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 

R
e

b
a

la
n

c
e

 

(C
a

sh
 I
n

c
re

a
se

)

R
e

b
a

la
n

c
e

d
 

V
a

lu
e

R
e

b
a

la
n

c
e

d
 

M
ix

To
ta

l 
E
q

u
it
y

$
3

9
0

,5
3

2
,6

9
5

6
0

.3
7

%
$

3
8

8
,1

1
7

,7
6

4
6

0
.0

0
%

$
2

,4
1

4
,9

3
1

 
($

6
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
)

$
3

8
4

,3
3

2
,6

9
5

5
9

.4
1

%

W
a

d
d

e
ll 

&
 R

e
e

d
$
9

8
,1

9
8
,0

5
1

1
5
.1

8
%

$
8
0

,8
5
7

,8
6

7
1

2
.5

0
%

$
1
7

,3
4

0
,1

8
4
 

($
1
1

,1
0

0
,0

0
0
)

$
8
7

,0
9

8
,0

5
1

1
3

.4
6

%

D
o

d
g

e
 &

 C
o

x
$
9

6
,6

2
8
,9

1
1

1
4
.9

4
%

$
8
0

,8
5
7

,8
6

7
1

2
.5

0
%

$
1
5

,7
7

1
,0

4
3
 

($
1
1

,1
0

0
,0

0
0
)

$
8
5

,5
2

8
,9

1
1

1
3

.2
2

%

U
.S

. 
La

rg
e

 C
a

p
 E

q
u

it
y

 T
o

ta
l

$
1

9
4

,8
2

6
,9

6
2

3
0

.1
2

%
$

1
6

1
,7

1
5

,7
3

5
2

5
.0

0
%

$
3

3
,1

1
1

,2
2

7
 

($
2

2
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
)

$
1

7
2

,6
2

6
,9

6
2

2
6

.6
9

%

C
la

ri
V

e
st

$
1

4
,9

2
1
,1

2
5

2
.3

1
%

$
1
6

,1
7
1

,5
7

3
2
.5

0
%

($
1
,2

5
0
,4

4
9
)

$
1
4

,9
2

1
,1

2
5

2
.3

1
%

LM
C

G
$
3

0
3

0
.0

0
%

$
1
6

,1
7
1

,5
7

3
2
.5

0
%

($
1
6
,1

7
1
,2

7
0
)

$
1
6
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

$
1
6

,0
0

0
,3

0
3

2
.4

7
%

W
e

lli
n

g
to

n
 (

c
lo

se
d

)*
$
3

3
,7

3
1
,2

3
3

5
.2

1
%

$
3
2

,3
4
3

,1
4

7
5
.0

0
%

$
1

,3
8

8
,0

8
6
 

$
3
3

,7
3

1
,2

3
3

5
.2

1
%

U
.S

. 
S
m

a
ll 

C
a

p
 E

q
u

it
y

 T
o

ta
l

$
4

8
,6

5
2

,6
6

1
7

.5
2

%
$

6
4

,6
8

6
,2

9
4

1
0

.0
0

%
($

1
6

,0
3

3
,6

3
3

)
$

1
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 
$

6
4

,6
5

2
,6

6
1

9
.9

9
%

M
a

ra
th

o
n

-L
o

n
d

o
n

 I
n

tl
 F

u
n

d
*

$
6

0
,2

7
6
,0

1
9

9
.3

2
%

$
6
4

,6
8
6

,2
9

4
1

0
.0

0
%

($
4
,4

1
0
,2

7
5
)

$
6
0

,2
7

6
,0

1
9

9
.3

2
%

Fi
sh

e
r

$
6

0
,4

6
7
,3

2
4

9
.3

5
%

$
6
4

,6
8
6

,2
9

4
1

0
.0

0
%

($
4
,2

1
8
,9

7
0
)

$
6
0

,4
6

7
,3

2
4

9
.3

5
%

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
*

$
2

6
,3

0
9
,7

2
8

4
.0

7
%

$
3
2

,3
4
3

,1
4

7
5
.0

0
%

($
6
,0

3
3
,4

1
9
)

$
2
6

,3
0

9
,7

2
8

4
.0

7
%

N
o

n
-U

.S
. 
E
q

u
it
y

 T
o

ta
l

$
1

4
7

,0
5

3
,0

7
2

2
2

.7
3

%
$

1
6

1
,7

1
5

,7
3

5
2

5
.0

0
%

($
1

4
,6

6
2

,6
6

3
)

$
0

 
$

1
4

7
,0

5
3

,0
7

2
2

2
.7

3
%

To
ta

l 
R

e
a

l 
A

ss
e

ts
$

6
6

,6
2

1
,8

1
2

1
0

.3
0

%
$

6
4

,6
8

6
,2

9
4

1
0

.0
0

%
$

1
,9

3
5

,5
1

8
 

$
0

 
$

6
6

,6
2

1
,8

1
2

1
0

.3
0

%

V
a

lu
e

/O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
is

ti
c

 R
e

a
l E

st
a

te
*

$
8

3
7
,3

4
3

0
.1

3
%

$
1
9

,4
0
5

,8
8

8
3
.0

0
%

($
1
8
,5

6
8
,5

4
5
)

$
8
3

7
,3

4
3

0
.1

3
%

C
B

R
E
 C

la
ri
o

n
$
2

6
,5

8
5
,3

4
2

4
.1

1
%

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
2
6

,5
8

5
,3

4
2
 

$
2
6

,5
8

5
,3

4
2

4
.1

1
%

U
B

S 
Tr

u
m

b
u

ll*
*

$
3

9
,1

9
9
,1

2
7

6
.0

6
%

$
4
5

,2
8
0

,4
0

6
7
.0

0
%

($
6
,0

8
1
,2

7
9
)

$
3
9

,1
9

9
,1

2
7

6
.0

6
%

To
ta

l 
Fi

x
e

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
sh

)
$

1
8

9
,7

0
8

,4
3

2
2

9
.3

3
%

$
1

9
4

,0
5

8
,8

8
2

3
0

.0
0

%
($

4
,3

5
0

,4
4

9
)

$
6

,2
0

0
,0

0
0

$
1

9
5

,9
0

8
,4

3
2

3
0

.2
9

%

Ta
p

lin
, 
C

a
n

id
a

 &
 H

a
b

a
c

h
t

$
6

7
,5

7
5
,5

6
4

1
0
.4

5
%

$
6
4

,6
8
6

,2
9

4
1

0
.0

0
%

$
2

,8
8

9
,2

7
0
 

$
6
7

,5
7

5
,5

6
4

1
0

.4
5

%

B
ra

n
d

y
w

in
e

*
$
6

1
,7

7
7
,7

5
9

9
.5

5
%

$
6
4

,6
8
6

,2
9

4
1

0
.0

0
%

($
2
,9

0
8
,5

3
5
)

$
6
1

,7
7

7
,7

5
9

9
.5

5
%

SS
g

A
*

$
5

9
,4

0
5
,5

1
4

9
.1

8
%

$
6
4

,6
8
6

,2
9

4
1

0
.0

0
%

($
5
,2

8
0
,7

8
0
)

$
5
9

,4
0

5
,5

1
4

9
.1

8
%

Fi
x

e
d

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 T
o

ta
l

$
1

8
8

,7
5

8
,8

3
7

2
9

.1
8

%
$

1
9

4
,0

5
8

,8
8

2
3

0
.0

0
%

($
5

,3
0

0
,0

4
5

)
$

0
 

$
1

8
8

,7
5

8
,8

3
7

2
9

.1
8

%

C
a

sh
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

$
9

4
9
,5

9
6

0
.1

5
%

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
9
4

9
,5

9
6
 

$
6
,2

0
0

,0
0
0

$
7
,1

4
9
,5

9
6

1
.1

1
%

P
ri
v

a
te

 R
e

a
l E

st
a

te
 R

e
si

d
u

a
l C

a
sh

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0
 

$
0

0
.0

0
%

C
it
y
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
$

0
0
.0

0
%

$
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0
 

$
0

0
.0

0
%

C
a

sh
 a

n
d

 E
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

 T
o

ta
l

$
9

4
9

,5
9

6
0

.1
5

%
$

0
0

.0
0

%
$

9
4

9
,5

9
6

 
$

6
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$
7

,1
4

9
,5

9
6

1
.1

1
%

To
ta

l 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

$
6

4
6

,8
6

2
,9

4
0

1
0

0
.0

0
%

$
6

4
6

,8
6

2
,9

4
0

1
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0

$
0

 
$

6
4

6
,8

6
2

,9
4

0
1

0
0

.0
0

%

*M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
 a

s 
o

f 
4
/3

0
/1

6

**
M

a
rk

e
t 

V
a

lu
e

 a
s 

o
f 
3
/3

1
/1

6

 ©
 2

0
1
5

 A
ss

e
t 

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 A

ll 
R

ig
h

ts
 R

e
se

rv
e

d

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 35 of 89



 

  

 
 
News Release 
 
Investor contact:   Nicole Russell     Media contact:   Roger Hoadley 
         VP, Investor Relations      VP, Director of Communications 
           (913) 236-1880        (913) 236-1993 

      
 

Waddell & Reed Financial, Inc. CEO Henry J. Herrmann to Retire 
 Philip J. Sanders Named as Successor 

 
Overland Park, KS, May 23, 2016 – Waddell & Reed Financial, Inc. (NYSE: WDR) announced today  
that the company’s Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, Henry J. Herrmann, 73, will 
retire as Chief Executive Officer effective August 1, 2016.  Herrmann, who has served as CEO since 2005 
and Chairman since 2010, will remain as non-executive Chairman of the Board. Herrmann's career in the 
financial services industry spans 50 years, including 45 years with Waddell & Reed. 
 
The Board of Directors has appointed Senior Vice President and Chief Investment Officer Philip J. 
Sanders, 56, to succeed Herrmann as CEO in August, at which time he will also join the company's Board 
of Directors.  Sanders, who will continue to serve as CIO, joined Waddell & Reed in 1998 as a portfolio 
manager and has co-managed the company's large cap growth product suite since 2006.  During his 
tenure, Sanders has held various senior positions in the investment management division, culminating in 
his appointment as Senior Vice President and CIO in 2011.  Prior to joining Waddell & Reed, Sanders 
was an analyst and portfolio manager with Banc of America Capital Management, the investment 
management division of Bank of America from 1988 to 1998.  He received his B.A. in economics from 
the University of Michigan and an M.B.A. from the University of North Carolina at Charlotte.  Sanders is 
a CFA charter holder and a member of the CFA Institute and the Kansas City CFA Society. 
 
“It has been my honor to serve our shareholders, clients and employees over the course of my tenure,” 
said Herrmann “I believe now is the time for the next generation to move the company forward and 
position it for future growth.  Having worked closely with Phil over nearly two decades, I am confident 
that he is the right person for the position.  I look forward to assisting Phil with the transition of 
responsibilities, as well as the opportunity to serve as an advisor to management in my role as non-
executive Chairman."   
 
“I have tremendous respect for Hank and intend to work closely with him, and our entire executive team, 
to ensure an orderly transition,” said Sanders.  “Our focus will remain on delivering long-term investment 
performance for our clients, executing on current initiatives and making strategic investments that will 
drive value for our shareholders and support the company’s competitiveness for years to come.” 
 
Speaking on behalf of the Board, Alan W. Kosloff, Lead Independent Director, stated, “I would like to 
express to Hank the Board's deep gratitude for his unwavering leadership and dedicated service 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 36 of 89



 

  

particularly throughout the challenging economic and market environments experienced during his 11 
years as CEO.  He has been an integral part of our growth and success and we look forward to his 
continued contributions during the transition and in his service on the Board thereafter.  The Board is 
extremely confident in the company's future and in Phil as CEO. His integrity, strong leadership and deep 
expertise in the asset management industry will be invaluable assets." 
 
About the Company 

Waddell & Reed, Inc., founded in 1937, is one of the oldest mutual fund complexes in the United States, having introduced the 
Waddell & Reed Advisors Group of Mutual Funds in 1940. Today, we distribute our investment products through the Waddell 
& Reed Wholesale channel (encompassing broker/dealer, retirement, and registered investment advisors), our Advisors 
channel (our network of financial advisors), and our Institutional channel (including defined benefit plans, pension plans and 
endowments, and our subadvisory partnership with Mackenzie in Canada). 

Through its subsidiaries, Waddell & Reed Financial, Inc. provides investment management and financial planning services to 
clients throughout the United States. Waddell & Reed Investment Management Company serves as investment advisor to the 
Waddell & Reed Advisors Group of Mutual Funds, Ivy Funds Variable Insurance Portfolios and InvestEd Portfolios, while Ivy 
Investment Management Company serves as investment advisor to Ivy Funds. Waddell & Reed, Inc. serves as principal 
underwriter and distributor to the Waddell & Reed Advisors Group of Mutual Funds, Ivy Funds Variable Insurance Portfolios 
and InvestEd Portfolios, while Ivy Distributors, Inc. serves as principal underwriter and distributor to Ivy Funds.  
 
Forward-Looking Statements 

This press release contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which reflect the current views and 
assumptions of management with respect to future events regarding our business and industry in general. These forward-
looking statements include all statements, other than statements of historical fact, regarding our financial position, business 
strategy and other plans and objectives for future operations, including statements with respect to revenues and earnings, the 
amount and composition of assets under management, distribution sources, expense levels, redemption rates and the financial 
markets and other conditions. These statements are generally identified by the use of such words as "may," "could," "should," 
"would," "believe," "anticipate," "forecast," "estimate," "expect," "intend," "plan," "project," "outlook," "will," "potential" and 
similar statements of a future or forward-looking nature. Readers are cautioned that any forward-looking information 
provided by us or on our behalf is not a guarantee of future performance. Actual results may differ materially from those 
contained in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including but not limited to those discussed below. 
If one or more events related to these or other risks, contingencies or uncertainties materialize, or if our underlying 
assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual results may differ materially from those forecasted or expected. Certain important 
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations are disclosed in the "Risk Factors" section of 
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, which include, without limitation:  

 The loss of existing distribution channels or inability to access new distribution channels;  
 A reduction in assets under our management on short notice, through increased redemptions in our distribution 

channels or our Funds, particularly those Funds with a high concentration of assets, or investors terminating their 
relationship with us or shifting their funds to other types of accounts with different rate structures;  

 The adverse ruling or resolution of any litigation, regulatory investigations and proceedings, or securities 
arbitrations by a federal or state court or regulatory body;  

 The introduction of legislative or regulatory proposals or judicial rulings that change the independent contractor 
classification of our financial advisors at the federal or state level for employment tax or other employee benefit 
purposes;  

 A decline in the securities markets or in the relative investment performance of our Funds and other investment 
portfolios and products as compared to competing funds;  

 The ability of mutual fund and other investors to redeem their investments without prior notice or on short notice;  
 Our inability to reduce expenses rapidly enough to align with declines in our revenues, the level of our assets under 

management or our business environment. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 37 of 89



 

  

 Non-compliance with applicable laws or regulations and changes in current legal, regulatory, accounting, tax or 
compliance requirements or governmental policies;  

 Our inability to attract and retain senior executive management and other key personnel to conduct our broker-
dealer, fund management and investment advisory business; 

 A failure in, or breach of, our operational or security systems or our technology infrastructure, or those of third 
parties on which we rely; and 

 Our inability to implement new information technology and systems, or our inability to complete such implementation 
in a timely or cost effective manner.  

The foregoing factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read together with other cautionary statements 
included in this and other reports and filings we make with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the 
information in Item 1 "Business" and Item 1A "Risk Factors" of Part I and Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" of Part II to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 
31, 2015 and as updated in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the year ending December 31, 2016. All forward-looking 
statements speak only as of the date on which they are made and we undertake no duty to update or revise any forward-looking 
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except to the extent required by law. 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 38 of 89



A

A
20

00
92

73
52

/4
28

72
2_

0/
42

87
22

/4
00

58
2

C
ov

er
-F

ul
l I

m
ag

e-
A

rt
w

or
kN

O
N

O

N
ee

ta
 M

ad
ah

ar
, F

al
lin

g 
1 (

de
ta

il)
, 2

00
5,

 L
ig

ht
je

t p
rin

t m
ou

nt
ed

 o
n 

al
um

in
um

, 4
8 

x 
48

 in
ch

es
 (1

22
 x

 12
2 

cm
)

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0

W
el

lin
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

pa
ny

 L
LP

C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ir

em
en

t 
Fu

nd

21
 J

un
e 

20
16

Th
om

as
 G

. E
ga

n 
Vi

ce
 P

re
si

de
nt

, A
cc

ou
nt

 M
an

ag
er

W
el

lin
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

pa
ny

 L
LP

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 39 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
92

73
55

/4
28

72
2_

0/
42

87
22

/3
61

25
7

A

A

A
ge

nd
a

Ti
tle

 L
in

e 
2

Se
ct

io
n 

on
e 

 ���
���

���
���

���
���

���
���

���
���

���
���

���
 R

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 W

el
lin

gt
on

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t U
pd

at
e

Se
ct

io
n 

tw
o 

 ��
���

���
���

���
���

���
���

���
���

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 R
ev

ie
w

Se
ct

io
n 

th
re

e 
 ��

���
���

���
���

���
���

���
���

 A
pp

en
di

x

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

A1

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 40 of 89



1

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 41 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
92

73
60

/4
28

72
2_

0/
42

87
22

/4
00

58
2

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
re

vi
ew

Ti
tle

 L
in

e 
2

31
 O

ct
ob

er
 1

99
8 

 C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 re
ta

in
ed

 W
el

lin
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

pa
ny

 l
lp

 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

$2
0 

m
ill

io
n 

in
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t F
un

d 
Sm

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0 

 
se

pa
ra

te
 a

cc
ou

nt

3 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

11
 

 Tr
an

si
tio

ne
d 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
$1

8.
4 

m
ill

io
n 

in
 a

ss
et

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
Sm

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0 

se
pa

ra
te

 a
cc

ou
nt

 in
to

 th
e 

W
TC

-C
IF

 S
m

al
l 

C
ap

 2
00

0 
po

ol

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1  
 C

ity
 o

f T
am

pa
 re

de
em

ed
 $

1 
m

ill
io

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
W

TC
-C

IF
 S

m
al

l 
C

ap
 2

00
0 

po
ol

1 
Ju

ne
 2

01
1 

 C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 re
de

em
ed

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l $
1 

m
ill

io
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

W
TC

-C
IF

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0 

po
ol

1 
A

ug
us

t 2
01

2 
 C

ity
 o

f T
am

pa
 re

de
em

ed
 $

3.
5 

m
ill

io
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

W
TC

-C
IF

 
Sm

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0 

po
ol

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

6 
 C

ity
 o

f T
am

pa
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

ed
 $

8 
m

ill
io

n 
to

 th
e 

W
TC

-C
IF

 
Sm

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0 

po
ol

31
 M

ay
 2

01
6 

M
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

: $
34

.7
 m

ill
io

n

A1
1

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 42 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
92

75
43

/4
28

72
2_

0/
42

87
22

/G
29

37
A

A

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
In

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
ns

 (U
S$

) t
hr

ou
gh

 3
1 

M
ay

 2
01

6

A
nn

ua
liz

ed
 re

tu
rn

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
31

 M
ay

 2
01

6 
(%

)

YT
D

1 
yr

3 
yr

s
10

 y
rs

Si
nc

e 
In

ce
pt

io
n1

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
(g

ro
ss

)
2.

7
-2

.9
10

.7
9.

6
11

.4

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
(n

et
)

2.
5

-3
.5

10
.1

8.
9

10
.8

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

In
de

x
2.

3
-6

.0
6.

9
6.

3
8.

0

20
15

20
14

20
13

20
12

20
11

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
(g

ro
ss

)
-1

.7
10

.3
44

.3
19

.7
-1

.9

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
(n

et
)

-2
.3

9.
7

43
.4

19
.0

-2
.5

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

In
de

x
-4

.4
4.

9
38

.8
16

.3
-4

.2

20
10

20
09

20
08

20
07

20
06

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
(g

ro
ss

)
36

.1
45

.1
-3

9.
2

1.
9

14
.3

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
(n

et
)

35
.3

44
.2

-3
9.

6
1.

3
13

.6

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

In
de

x
26

.9
27

.2
-3

3.
8

-1
.6

18
.4

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

1 Th
e 

In
ce

pt
io

n 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 p
or

tfo
lio

 is
 3

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 

19
98

. 
|  

Ci
ty

 o
f T

am
pa

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t F

un
d 

cl
os

ed
 th

ei
r S

m
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
se

pa
ra

te
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

nd
 

tr
an

si
tio

ne
d 

th
ei

r a
ss

et
s 

in
to

 th
e 

W
TC

-C
IF

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 

20
00

 p
or

tfo
lio

 o
n 

3 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

11
. 

|  
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

re
tu

rn
s 

fo
r p

er
io

ds
 o

ne
 y

ea
r o

r l
es

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
an

nu
al

iz
ed

. 
|  

PA
ST

 R
ES

U
LT

S 
A

R
E 

N
O

T 
N

EC
ES

SA
R

IL
Y 

IN
D

IC
AT

IV
E 

O
F 

FU
TU

R
E 

R
ES

U
LT

S 
A

N
D

 A
N

 
IN

V
ES

TM
EN

T 
C

A
N

 L
O

SE
 V

A
LU

E.

A1
2

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 43 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
63

59
65

/4
28

72
2_

0/
G

10
39

/G
10

39

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

W
el

lin
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t t
od

ay
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
A

 tr
us

te
d 

ad
vi

so
r a

nd
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
ar

tn
er

 to
 c

lie
nt

s 
w

or
ld

w
id

e

BY
 T

H
E 

N
U

M
B

ER
S

B
us

in
es

s
U

S$
94

3 
bi

lli
on

 o
f c

lie
nt

 a
ss

et
s 

un
de

r m
an

ag
em

en
t

2,
15

0+
 c

lie
nt

s

55
+ 

co
un

tr
ie

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 c

lie
nt

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

Pe
op

le
 a

nd
 p

or
tf

ol
io

s
61

6 
in

ve
st

m
en

t p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls

17
 y

ea
rs

 o
f e

xp
er

ie
nc

e,
 o

n 
av

er
ag

e

16
2 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
ll 

ac
tiv

e 
at

 th
e 

fir
m

21
0,

00
0+

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 in

 g
lo

ba
l 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
un

iv
er

se

H
er

it
ag

e:
 k

ey
 d

at
es

19
28

 
 W

el
lin

gt
on

 F
un

d 
– 

fir
st

  
U

S 
ba

la
nc

ed
 fu

nd

19
79

 
 Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f 
pr

iv
at

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p

19
94

 
 Fi

rs
t l

on
g 

– 
sh

or
t  

st
ra

te
gy

 la
un

ch
ed

As
 o

f 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6

O
W

N
ER

SH
IP

 M
O

D
EL

Lo
ng

-te
rm

 p
er

sp
ec

tiv
e 

of
 a

 
pr

iv
at

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
st

ru
ct

ur
e

At
tr

ac
t a

nd
 re

ta
in

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t t
al

en
t

In
de

pe
nd

en
t: 

N
o 

pu
bl

ic
 

sh
ar

eh
ol

de
rs

, n
o 

ou
ts

id
e c

ap
ita

l

In
te

re
st

s 
al

ig
ne

d 
w

ith
 c

lie
nt

s

B
U

SI
N

ES
S 

M
O

D
EL

Si
ng

ul
ar

 fo
cu

s 
on

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t

D
iv

er
si

fic
at

io
n 

by
 a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
, 

ge
og

ra
ph

y,
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 ty
pe

Re
se

ar
ch

 fo
r c

lie
nt

  
be

ne
fit

 o
nl

y

C
om

m
itm

en
t t

o 
br

in
gi

ng
 th

e 
rig

ht
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 e

ac
h 

cl
ie

nt

IN
V

ES
TM

EN
T 

M
O

D
EL

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 c

ap
ab

ili
tie

s

Ri
go

ro
us

 p
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 re
se

ar
ch

 

C
ar

ee
r a

na
ly

st
s

G
lo

ba
l r

es
ou

rc
es

Em
po

w
er

ed
 p

or
tf

ol
io

 te
am

s

C
U

LT
U

R
E

O
pe

n,
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
e

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 d
riv

en

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

/c
ol

le
gi

al

H
ig

h 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 
et

hi
cs

, a
nd

 in
te

gr
ity

G
lo

ba
l d

iv
er

si
ty

 a
nd

 in
cl

us
io

n

C
on

tr
ib

ut
or

s 
to

 fi
rm

 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y

A1
3

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 44 of 89



2

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 45 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
56

28
57

/4
25

80
6_

0/
G

10
83

/G
10

83

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

W
el

lin
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
Ev

ol
ut

io
n 

of
 a

na
ly

st
 m

an
ag

ed
 p

or
tf

ol
io

s
O

ve
r 3

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e

1 Cl
os

ed
 |

 2 Ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
ut

 u
nf

un
de

d 
|  

As
se

ts
 a

s 
of

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6

To
da

y 
ou

r r
es

ea
rc

h 
te

am
 m

an
ag

es
 o

ve
r U

S$
11

3 
bi

lli
on

 in
 s

ec
to

r, 
th

em
at

ic
, a

nd
 d

iv
er

si
fie

d 
po

rt
fo

lio
s

D
iv

er
si

fie
d 

Po
rt

fo
lio

s

S
ec

to
r/

Th
em

at
ic

 
Po

rt
fo

lio
s

19
83

En
er

gy
/ 

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e/

Bi
ot

ec
hn

ol
og

y

19
84

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls

19
86U

S 
Re

se
ar

ch
 E

qu
ity

19
90

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0

19
91

U
til

iti
es

19
92In

te
rn

at
io

na
l  

Re
se

ar
ch

 E
qu

ity

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

19
93

Re
al

 E
st

at
e

19
94La

rg
e 

C
ap

  
Re

se
ar

ch
 E

qu
ity

Re
se

ar
ch

 V
al

ue

19
95

Te
ch

no
lo

gy

19
97

G
lo

ba
l  

Re
se

ar
ch

 E
qu

ity

19
96

20
07

M
ed

ia

20
04

In
du

st
ria

ls

20
02

Eu
ro

pe
  

Re
se

ar
ch

 E
qu

ity

D
iv

er
si

fie
d 

Se
ct

or
 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s

C
on

su
m

er

20
08

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 
Re

se
ar

ch
 E

qu
ity

G
lo

ba
l I

sl
am

ic
  

Re
se

ar
ch

 E
qu

ity

En
du

rin
g 

 
As

se
ts

20
10

Pr
ec

io
us

  
M

et
al

s

20
09

N
at

ur
al

 G
as

  
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s1

20
12

SM
ID

 C
ap

  
Re

se
ar

ch
 E

qu
ity

G
lo

ba
l S

ec
to

r 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s

U
S 

Re
se

ar
ch

 
Eq

ui
ty

 
Ex

te
nd

ed

20
11

O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 

Sh
ip

pi
ng

2

Sm
al

l C
ap

  
Ba

nk
 M

&
A2

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e

G
lo

ba
l 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s

20
13

Ja
pa

n 
 

Re
se

ar
ch

 E
qu

ity

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
m

al
l 

C
ap

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
Eq

ui
ty

20
14

20
16

20
15

Se
le

ct
 E

ne
rg

y 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s

A1
4

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 46 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
57

27
67

/4
28

59
4_

0/
G

10
83

/G
10

83

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

W
ha

t’
s 

un
iq

ue
 a

bo
ut

 o
ur

 G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

A
na

ly
st

s?
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
D

ee
p 

in
du

st
ry

 e
xp

er
tis

e 
ac

ro
ss

 a
 b

ro
ad

 u
ni

ve
rs

e

As
 o

f 1
 A

pr
il 

20
16

Ju
an

ju
an

 N
is

ka
U

til
iti

es
An

n 
G

al
lo

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e

M
ic

ha
el

 M
as

de
a

Se
m

ic
on

du
ct

or
s

M
ar

k 
Ly

nc
h

Fi
na

nc
e

An
dr

e 
D

es
au

te
ls

Te
le

co
m

M
ar

k 
M

an
de

l
D

ire
ct

or
, G

lo
ba

l 
In

du
st

ry
 R

es
ea

rc
h

Bo
b 

D
er

es
ie

w
ic

z
Bi

ot
ec

hn
ol

og
y

Te
am

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
pr

ov
id

es
 b

ro
ad

 c
ov

er
ag

e
•	5

4	
an

al
ys
ts
	c
ov
er
in
g	
st
oc

ks
	a
cr
os

s	
ge

og
ra
ph

ie
s	
an

d	
m
ar
ke
t	c

ap
	ra

ng
es

•	A
pp

ro
xi
m
at
el
y	
4,
80

0	
co

m
pa

ni
es
,	~

	9
0%

	o
f	t
he

	M
SC

I	A
C
W
I	I
nd

ex

G
lo
ba

l	I
nd

us
tr
y	
A
na

ly
st
s	
ar
e	
ca

re
er
	in
du

st
ry
	s
pe

ci
al
is
ts

•	2
0	
ye
ar
s	
av
er
ag

e	
pr
of
es
si
on

al
	e
xp

er
ie
nc

e,
	lo
w
	tu

rn
ov
er

•	E
xp

er
ie
nc

e	
an

d	
fo
cu

s	
ca

n	
yi
el
d	
di
ffe

re
nt
ia
te
d	
in
si
gh

ts

C
ol
la
bo

ra
tio

n 	
w
ith

	W
el
lin
gt
on

	M
an

ag
em

en
t’s

	b
ro
ad

	re
so

ur
ce

s	
pr
ov
id
es
	p
er
sp

ec
tiv

e
•	E

qu
ity

	p
or
tf
ol
io
	m

an
ag

em
en

t	t
ea

m
s

•	F
ix
ed

	in
co

m
e,
	m

ac
ro
,	q

ua
nt
ita

tiv
e,
	te

ch
ni
ca

l,	
an

d	
tr
ad

in
g	
te
am

s
•	D

ed
ic
at
ed

	E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta
l,	
So

ci
al
,	a
nd

	G
ov
er
na

nc
e	
re
se
ar
ch

	te
am

A1
5

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 47 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
56

25
87

/4
25

80
6_

0/
G

10
83

/G
10

83

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 g

en
er

al
em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 r
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

r
es

ea
rc

h 
po

rt
fo

lio
s

Ti
tle

 L
in

e 
2

A
 g

eo
gr

ap
hi

ca
lly

 d
iv

er
se

, i
nt

er
co

nn
ec

te
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t t

ea
m

¹N
um

be
r o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 |
 ²

Ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

s,
 In

ve
st

m
en

t D
ire

ct
or

s/
Po

rt
fo

lio
 S

pe
ci

al
is

ts
, G

lo
ba

l T
ra

de
rs

, a
nd

 G
en

er
al

is
t R

es
ea

rc
h 

As
so

ci
at

es
 |

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6

U
n

iT
ed

 S
TA

Te
S:

 4
72

1
Lo

n
d

o
n

: 8
11

H
o

n
g

 K
o

n
g

: 2
31

To
K

yo
: 1

21
Si

n
g

A
po

r
e:

 2
41

G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

Re
se

ar
ch

: 4
3

G
lo

ba
l E

qu
ity

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 M

gm
t: 

89
In

ve
st

m
en

t R
es

ea
rc

h:
 2

4
Fi

xe
d 

In
co

m
e 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 M
gm

t: 
12

0
A

ss
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n:
 3

8
ES

G
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

A
na

ly
st

s:
 4

Ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

es
: 1

54
2

G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

Re
se

ar
ch

: 1
2

G
lo

ba
l E

qu
ity

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 M

gm
t: 

10
In

ve
st

m
en

t R
es

ea
rc

h:
 4

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 M

gm
t: 

29
A

ss
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n:
 3

Ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

es
: 2

32

G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

Re
se

ar
ch

: 3
G

lo
ba

l E
qu

ity
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 M
gm

t: 
6

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

es
ea

rc
h:

 1
Fi

xe
d 

In
co

m
e 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 M
gm

t: 
4

Ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

es
: 9

2

G
lo

ba
l E

qu
ity

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 M

gm
t: 

5
Ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

: 7
2

G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

Re
se

ar
ch

: 7
G

lo
ba

l E
qu

ity
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 M
gm

t: 
6

A
ss

et
 A

llo
ca

tio
n:

 4
Ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

: 7
2

23

12

24

47
2

81

SI
N

G
AP

o
Re

h
o

N
G

 k
o

N
G

bo
ST

o
N

lo
N

D
o

N

RA
D

N
o

R
SA

N
 

fR
AN

CI
SC

o

To
ky

o

A1
6

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 48 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed

As
 o

f 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

10
6

20
00

82
81

35
/4

25
80

6_
0/

G
29

37
/G

29
37

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
C

re
di

t (
in

cl
ud

es
 

C
ur

re
nc

y 
A

na
ly

st
s)

39
 m

em
be

rs

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

B
ro

ad
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
e 

le
ve

ra
ge

 fo
r G

lo
ba

l I
nd

us
tr

y 
A

na
ly

st
s

Ti
tle

 L
in

e 
2

 
G

lo
ba

l 
In

du
st

ry
 

A
na

ly
st

s

Po
rt

fo
lio

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht

M
ar

k 
D

. M
an

de
l, 

C
FA

 
D

ire
ct

or
 

G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

R
es

ea
rc

h

C
he

ry
l M

. D
uc

kw
or

th
, C

FA
 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
 D

ire
ct

or
 

G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

R
es

ea
rc

h

Jo
na

th
an

 G
. W

hi
te

, C
FA

D
ire

ct
or

 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

Po
rt

fo
lio

s

C
am

ill
a 

E.
 M

ar
tin

Po
rt

fo
lio

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

B
ra

dl
ey

 H
ug

gi
ns

In
ve

st
m

en
t D

ire
ct

or

G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

Re
se

ar
ch

 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s
10

 m
em

be
rs

M
ac

ro
an

al
ys

ts
7 

m
em

be
rs

Eq
ui

ty
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 
M

an
ag

er
s 

&
 

Te
am

 A
na

ly
st

s
12

6 
m

em
be

rs

ES
G

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
A

na
ly

st
s

4 
m

em
be

rs

A1
7

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 49 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
67

46
93

/4
28

59
4_

0/
G

29
37

/G
29

37

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

M
ee

t o
ur

 G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

A
na

ly
st

 T
ea

m
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
Ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

an
d 

sp
ec

ia
liz

ed
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
yi

el
d 

st
oc

k-
pi

ck
in

g 
sk

ill

 G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

An
al

ys
ts

 m
an

ag
in

g 
su

bp
or

tfo
lio

s 
w

ith
in

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0 

as
 o

f 1
 A

pr
il 

20
16

C
on

su
m

er
N

at
ur

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s/

ut
ili

ti
es

H
ea

lt
h 

ca
re

In
du

st
ri

al
/ 

ca
pi

ta
l e

qu
ip

m
en

t
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

/t
el

ec
om

Fi
na

nc
e

Ye
ar

s 
ex

p
Ye

ar
s 

ex
p

Ye
ar

s 
ex

p
Ye

ar
s 

ex
p

Ye
ar

s 
ex

p
Ye

ar
s 

ex
p

D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
/R

et
ai

l
En

er
gy

Ph
ar

m
ac

eu
tic

al
s

As
ia

 c
yc

lic
al

s
H

ar
dw

ar
e 

&
 s

to
ra

ge
US

 s
m

al
l-c

ap
 b

an
ks

 
Am

it 
D

es
ai

 
19

Ka
rl 

Ba
nd

te
l 

25
C

at
he

rin
e 

Ar
no

ld
 

29
Vi

ct
or

 C
he

ria
n 

17
 

Jo
hn

 A
ve

ril
l 

28
 

Jo
n 

As
he

 
22

Re
ta

il/
Br

an
ds

/R
es

ta
ur

an
ts

In
te

gr
at

ed
 o

il 
&

 g
as

Bi
ot

ec
h

Ch
em

ic
al

s/
Pa

ck
ag

in
g

G
am

in
g/

In
te

rn
et

Ca
pi

ta
l m

ar
ke

ts

 
Ev

an
 H

or
nb

uc
kl

e 
13

Ja
y 

Bh
ut

an
i 

28
 

Ro
be

rt
 D

er
es

ie
w

ic
z 

31
 

Ro
be

rt
 H

ay
es

 
19

Br
ia

n 
Ba

rb
et

ta
 

9
 

Je
nn

ife
r B

er
g 

19

M
ed

ia
/C

as
in

os
US

 u
til

iti
es

/a
lt 

en
er

gy
H

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
sv

cs
Co

ns
um

er
 c

yc
lic

al
s

G
lo

ba
l t

el
ec

om
N

 A
m

 re
al

 e
st

at
e/

Lo
dg

in
g

 
H

al
se

y 
M

or
ris

 
12

 
Al

an
 H

su
 

14
 

An
n 

G
al

lo
 

26
Al

va
ro

 L
la

ve
ro

 
6

An
dr

e 
D

es
au

te
ls

 
22

Sa
ra

 O
gi

on
y 

C
ar

pi
 

18

Be
ve

ra
ge

s/
To

ba
cc

o
Sm

al
l c

ap
 E

&
P

Ph
ar

m
ac

eu
tic

al
s

Ae
ro

sp
ac

e/
de

fe
ns

e
Bu

si
ne

ss
 s

vc
s

As
ia

 P
ac

ifi
c 

ba
nk

s

Ja
w

an
 P

ar
ke

r  
15

Eu
ge

ne
 K

hm
el

ni
k 

7
Je

an
 H

yn
es

 
24

 
Cl

au
de

 S
ta

eh
ly

 
25

 
Br

uc
e 

G
la

ze
r 

23
D

ev
as

hi
sh

 C
ho

pr
a 

21

Lu
x 

go
od

s 
&

 n
on

-U
S 

re
ta

il
En

er
gy

Sm
al

l c
ap

 h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

sv
cs

El
ec

tr
ic

al
/i

nd
us

tr
ia

l p
ro

d
As

ia
 P

ac
 te

le
co

m
N

 A
m

er
ic

a 
ba

nk
s

St
ev

en
 R

ic
ht

er
 

28
 

G
re

go
ry

 L
eB

la
nc

 
23

 
D

av
id

 K
ht

ik
ia

n 
15

 
Su

za
nn

e 
St

ef
an

y 
28

C
at

he
rin

e 
G

un
n 

9
Jo

hn
 C

off
ey

 
30

Fo
od

/H
ou

se
ho

ld
 &

 p
er

s 
ca

re
G

lo
ba

l u
til

iti
es

M
ed

ic
al

 te
ch

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n/
Ai

rli
ne

s
As

ia
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

Eu
ro

 &
 L

at
Am

 b
an

ks

 
D

an
ie

l R
iff

 
20

To
m

 L
ev

er
in

g 
21

 
Ki

rk
 M

ay
er

 
24

 
W

ill
ia

m
 W

rig
ht

so
n 

26
An

ita
 K

ill
ia

n 
29

Yo
la

nd
a 

C
ou

rt
in

es
 

24

La
tin

 A
m

er
ic

an
 re

ta
il

O
ilfi

el
d 

sv
cs

/D
ril

le
rs

Bi
ot

ec
h/

EM
 p

ha
rm

a
Se

m
is

 &
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t
Li

fe
 in

su
ra

nc
e

Pr
ac

hi
 S

ha
h 

5
W

ill
ia

m
 O

gr
od

ni
ck

 
13

Re
be

cc
a 

Sy
ke

s 
10

 
M

ic
ha

el
 M

as
de

a 
18

 
An

dy
 H

ei
sk

el
l 

18

M
et

al
s/

M
in

in
g

As
ia

 P
ac

 in
te

rn
et

 &
 s

of
tw

ar
e

As
se

t m
an

ag
er

s

 
Jo

hn
 O

’T
oo

le
 

27
Ya

sh
 P

at
od

ia
 

8
 

Sc
ot

t K
en

ne
dy

 
10

EM
 u

til
iti

es
So

ft
w

ar
e

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls

Ju
an

ju
an

 N
is

ka
 

11
 

Je
ffr

ey
 W

an
tm

an
 

16
M

ar
k 

Ly
nc

h 
31

In
te

gr
at

ed
 o

ils
US

 m
ic

ro
-c

ap
 b

an
ks

N
ile

sh
 U

nd
av

ia
 

25
Ro

be
rt

 P
at

te
n 

33

E&
P/

Re
fin

in
g

P&
C 

in
su

ra
nc

e

M
ar

k 
Vi

vi
an

o 
16

 
M

ar
y 

Pr
ys

hl
ak

 
22

G
lo

ba
l r

ea
l e

st
at

e

 
Br

ad
fo

rd
 S

to
es

se
r 

14

As
ia

 P
ac

 re
al

 e
st

at
e

M
ar

k 
Sy

n 
18

As
ia

 P
ac

 n
on

-b
an

k 
fin

Ro
be

rt
 W

yd
en

ba
ch

 
18

A1
8

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 50 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
5 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
58

14
17

/4
01

55
3_

0/
G

29
37

/G
29

37

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

an
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
Se

ek
s 

to
 c

on
si

st
en

tly
 o

ut
pe

rf
or

m
 th

e 
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0 
In

de
x 

ov
er

  
3 

– 
5 

ye
ar

 p
er

io
ds

A
pp

ro
ac

h
M

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t’s

 G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

A
na

ly
st

s.
Em

ph
as

iz
es

 s
to

ck
 s

el
ec

tio
n.

Re
se

ar
ch

 in
si

gh
t

W
hy

 it
 m

at
te

rs

Te
am

 a
pp

ro
ac

h
D

ee
p 

co
ve

ra
ge

 a
cr

os
s 

a 
br

oa
d 

un
iv

er
se

C
ar

ee
r i

nd
us

tr
y 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t
Ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

an
d 

fo
cu

s 
ca

n 
yi

el
d 

di
ffe

re
nt

ia
te

d 
in

si
gh

ts

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
va

rie
s 

by
 a

na
ly

st
/i

nd
us

tr
y

C
le

ar
er

 p
ic

tu
re

 o
f p

ot
en

tia
l u

ps
id

e

Po
rt

fo
lio

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
W

hy
 it

 m
at

te
rs

C
on

ce
nt

ra
te

d 
su

bp
or

tf
ol

io
s

“B
es

t i
de

as
” f

ro
m

 e
ac

h 
an

al
ys

t; 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

dj
us

t c
on

vi
ct

io
n

In
du

st
ry

 w
ei

gh
ts

 c
lo

se
 to

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k

St
oc

k 
se

le
ct

io
n 

dr
iv

es
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

D
iv

er
si

fic
at

io
n 

by
 in

du
st

ry
 a

nd
 s

ty
le

M
ul

tip
le

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f a

lp
ha

 c
an

 
re

du
ce

 v
ol

at
ili

ty
 a

nd
 p

re
se

rv
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 re

tu
rn

 p
ot

en
tia

l

A1
9

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 51 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

6

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
Po

rt
fo

lio
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
ve

st
m

en
t o

bj
ec

tiv
e:

 O
ut

pe
rf

or
m

 th
e 

R
us

se
ll 

20
00

 In
de

x H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

A
nn

 G
al

lo
M

as
sa

ch
us

et
ts

 In
st

itu
te

  
of

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

(S
lo

an
) (

M
S)

26
 y

ea
rs

 o
f e

xp
er

ie
nc

e

El
ec

tr
on

ic
s 

&
  

in
du

st
ri

al
 p

ro
du

ct
s

Su
za

nn
e 

St
ef

an
y

M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts
 In

st
itu

te
  

of
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
(S

lo
an

) (
M

S)
28

 y
ea

rs
 o

f e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
/R

et
ai

l
A

m
it 

D
es

ai
, C

FA
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
(L

os
 A

ng
el

es
) (

M
BA

)
19

 y
ea

rs
 o

f e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

C
ap

it
al

 m
ar

ke
ts

Je
nn

ife
r B

er
g,

 C
FA

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f N
ot

re
 D

am
e 

(B
A)

19
 y

ea
rs

 o
f e

xp
er

ie
nc

e

H
ar

dw
ar

e/
St

or
ag

e
Jo

hn
 A

ve
ri

ll,
 C

FA
M

as
sa

ch
us

et
ts

 In
st

itu
te

  
of

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

(S
lo

an
) (

M
S)

28
 y

ea
rs

 o
f e

xp
er

ie
nc

e

20
00

59
03

54
/4

25
80

6_
0/

G
29

37
/G

29
37

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

sv
cs

El
ec

tr
on

ic
s 

&
 in

du
st

ria
l p

ro
du

ct
s

D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
/R

et
ai

l

Ca
pi

ta
l m

ar
ke

ts

H
ar

dw
ar

e/
St

or
ag

e

Li
fe

 in
su

ra
nc

e

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

en
er

gy
/

U
S 

ut
ili

tie
s

U
S/

Eu
ro

pe
an

 re
al

 e
st

at
e

Co
m

pu
te

r/
Bu

si
ne

ss
 s

vc
s

Ae
ro

sp
ac

e/
D

ef
en

se
En

er
gy

M
ed

ia
/C

as
in

os

Fo
od

/H
ou

se
ho

ld
 &

 p
er

s 
ca

re

U
S 

sm
al

l c
ap

 b
an

ks
/

Sc
an

di
na

vi
an

 b
an

ks

M
et

al
s/

M
in

in
g

M
ed

ic
al

 te
ch

no
lo

gy

Pr
op

er
ty

/
Ca

su
al

ty
 in

su
ra

nc
e

Se
m

ic
on

du
ct

or
s/

Eq
ui

p

Ch
em

ic
al

s/
Pa

ck
ag

in
g

Bi
ot

ec
hn

ol
og

y
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n

Re
ta

il/
Br

an
ds

/R
es

ta
ur

an
ts

So
ft

w
ar

e

25
 G

lo
ba

l I
nd

us
tr

y 
A

na
ly

st
s

Si
ze

 c
or

re
sp

on
ds

 to
 in

du
st

ry
 w

ei
gh

t i
n 

be
nc

hm
ar

k

H
ig

h 
co

nv
ic

tio
n 

su
bp

or
tf

ol
io

s

D
iv

er
si

fie
d 

al
ph

a 
so

ur
ce

s 
(i.

e.
, i

nd
iv

id
ua

liz
ed

 s
ty

le
)

R
eb

al
an

ce
d 

qu
ar

te
rly

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

in
du

st
ry

 a
nd

 s
ty

le
 d

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n

A1
10

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 52 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
59

03
58

/4
28

59
4_

0/
G

29
37

/G
29

37

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
Ex

am
pl

e 
of

 G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

A
na

ly
st

 s
ub

po
rt

fo
lio

1 Th
e 

ho
ld

in
gs

 li
st

ed
 re

pr
es

en
t a

ll 
th

e 
se

cu
rit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
su

bp
or

tfo
lio

 fo
r t

he
 re

le
va

nt
 G

lo
ba

l I
nd

us
tr

y 
An

al
ys

t. 
|  

Po
rt

fo
lio

 a
nd

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

w
ei

gh
ts

 m
ay

 n
ot

 to
ta

l e
xa

ct
ly

 d
ue

 to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

|  
Th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
se

cu
rit

ie
s 

id
en

tifi
ed

 a
re

 n
ot

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
of

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
se

cu
rit

ie
s 

pu
rc

ha
se

d,
 s

ol
d,

 o
r r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

fo
r c

lie
nt

s.
 It

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
as

su
m

ed
 th

at
 a

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
 h

as
 o

r w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ofi

ta
bl

e.
 A

ct
ua

l h
ol

di
ng

s 
w

ill
 v

ar
y 

fo
r e

ac
h 

cl
ie

nt
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

nd
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

th
at

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

  c
lie

nt
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

 w
ill

 h
ol

d 
an

y 
or

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
se

cu
rit

ie
s 

lis
te

d.
 T

hi
s 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
co

m
pl

em
en

ts
 th

e 
G

IP
S®

 c
om

pl
ia

nt
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
at

ta
ch

m
en

t. 
|  

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

6

Su
bp

or
tf

ol
io

 h
ol

di
ng

s1

N
am

e
Su

bi
nd

us
tr

y

Po
rt

fo
lio

 
w

ei
gh

t 
(%

)
B

en
ch

m
ar

k 
w

ei
gh

t (
%

)

W
el

lc
ar

e 
H

ea
lth

 P
la

n
M

an
ag

ed
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e
19

.0
5.

7

Te
am

 H
ea

lth
 

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

16
.6

4.
2

A
lls

cr
ip

ts
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
14

.8
0.

0

C
ro

ss
 C

ou
nt

ry
 H

ea
lth

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

13
.0

0.
5

Pr
a 

H
ea

lth
 S

ci
en

ce
s

Li
fe

 s
ci

en
ce

s 
to

ol
s 

&
 s

er
vi

ce
s

12
.5

1.
2

C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ea
lth

 S
ys

te
m

s
H

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

9.
5

0.
0

Te
la

do
c 

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

7.
3

0.
1

Im
pr

iv
at

a 
H

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

7.
2

0.
2

To
ta

l
10

0.
0

11
.8

In
ve

st
m

en
t s

tr
at

eg
y

Th
e 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
du

st
ry

 h
as

 u
ni

qu
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
th

at
 m

ak
e 

it 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e 
fo

r l
on

g-
te

nu
re

d,
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t i
nv

es
to

rs

I g
ra

vi
ta

te
 to

 tw
o 

ty
pe

s 
of

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s:
 (1

) h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 w

ith
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l o
ut

lo
ok

s 
tr

ad
in

g 
be

lo
w

 in
tr

in
si

c 
va

lu
e;

 (2
) t

ur
na

ro
un

d 
st

or
ie

s 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

se
lf-

in
fli

ct
ed

 w
ou

nd
s 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

fix
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

rig
ht

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

ea
m

 a
nd

 s
tr

at
eg

y

M
an

ag
in

g 
su

bs
ec

to
r e

xp
os

ur
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 c
re

at
e 

in
cr

em
en

ta
l a

lp
ha

 a
nd

 
m

an
ag

e 
ris

k

G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

A
na

ly
st

:
A

nn
 C

. G
al

lo
,  

H
ea

lt
h 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s

La
rg

es
t b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
co

ns
tit

ue
nt

s 
by

 s
ub

in
du

st
ry

M
ar

ke
t c

ap
 

(U
S$

 b
il)

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

su
pp

lie
s

W
es

t P
ha

rm
ac

eu
tic

al
5.

0

M
an

ag
ed

 h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e

W
el

lc
ar

e 
H

ea
lth

 P
la

n
4.

1

M
ol

in
a 

H
ea

lth
ca

re
3.

6

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

A
m

su
rg

4.
1

H
ea

lth
So

ut
h

3.
4

Li
fe

 s
ci

en
ce

s 
to

ol
s 

&
 s

er
vi

ce
s

Pa
re

xe
l I

nt
er

na
tio

na
l

3.
4

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

Te
am

 H
ea

lth
3.

1

D
iv

er
si

fie
d 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s

H
ea

lth
ca

re
 S

er
vi

ce
s

2.
7

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

di
st

ri
bu

to
rs

O
w

en
s 

&
 M

in
or

2.
5

In
te

rn
et

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
&

 s
er

vi
ce

s

W
eb

M
D

 H
ea

lth
 

2.
4

A1
11

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 53 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
56

14
66

/4
28

72
2_

0/
G

29
37

/G
29

37

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
B

le
nd

s 
in

ve
st

or
 fl

ex
ib

ili
ty

 w
ith

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f d

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
ac

co
un

t

As
 o

f 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6 

|  
So

ur
ce

: F
ac

tS
et

; B
ar

ra
 U

S 
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 M
od

el
 (U

SE
3L

) 
|  

Ac
tiv

e 
sh

ar
e 

is
 d

efi
ne

d 
as

 th
e 

ab
so

lu
te

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 s

ha
re

 w
ei

gh
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

In
de

x 
sh

ar
e 

w
ei

gh
ts

. T
he

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s 

ar
e 

su
m

m
ed

 a
nd

 d
iv

id
ed

 b
y 

tw
o 

to
 a

rr
iv

e 
at

 th
e 

ac
tiv

e 
sh

ar
e.

 |
 T

he
 d

at
a 

sh
ow

n 
is

 o
f a

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
ac

co
un

t, 
is

 fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
na

l p
ur

po
se

s 
on

ly
, i

s 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 c
ha

ng
e,

 a
nd

 is
 n

ot
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

of
 fu

tu
re

 p
or

tfo
lio

 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

or
 re

tu
rn

s.
 T

he
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

ac
co

un
t 

sh
ow

n 
w

as
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
on

 1
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6,

 w
as

 
se

le
ct

ed
 b

ec
au

se
 it

 w
as

 th
e 

ac
co

un
t w

ith
 n

o 
or

 m
in

im
al

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t r
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

, a
nd

 m
os

t c
lo

se
ly

 c
on

fo
rm

s 
to

 th
e 

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
ap

pr
oa

ch
. E

ac
h 

cl
ie

nt
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

is
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 m

an
ag

ed
; i

nd
iv

id
ua

l h
ol

di
ng

s 
w

ill
 v

ar
y 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ac
co

un
t a

nd
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

th
at

 a
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 a

cc
ou

nt
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

as
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

. A
ct

ua
l r

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 v

ar
y 

fo
r e

ac
h 

cl
ie

nt
 

du
e 

to
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

lie
nt

 g
ui

de
lin

es
, h

ol
di

ng
s,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

fa
ct

or
s.

 In
 li

m
ite

d 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 th
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 re

p-
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
ac

co
un

t m
ay

 h
av

e 
ch

an
ge

d 
ov

er
 ti

m
e,

 fo
r 

re
as

on
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g,
 b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

, a
cc

ou
nt

 te
rm

in
a-

tio
n,

 im
po

si
tio

n 
of

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

nv
es

tm
en

t r
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

, 
or

 m
at

er
ia

l a
ss

et
 s

iz
e 

flu
ct

ua
tio

ns
. R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
ac

co
un

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
is

 s
up

pl
em

en
ta

l t
o 

th
e 

G
IP

S®
 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 S

m
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
Co

m
po

si
te

 w
hi

ch
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

at
ta

ch
m

en
t.

54321...54321

0
10

20

Av
er

ag
e 

of
 a

ll 
su

bp
or

tfo
lio

s
To

ta
l p

or
tfo

lio
0714

11
.5

2.
3

Av
er

ag
e 

of
 a

ll 
su

bp
or

tfo
lio

s
To

ta
l p

or
tfo

lio
025507510
0

79
81

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 e

rr
or

 b
y 

su
bp

or
tf

ol
io

 (%
)

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 e

rr
or

 (%
)

A
ct

iv
e 

sh
ar

e 
(%

)

D
iv

er
si

fic
at

io
n 

be
ne

fit

Top 5 Bottom 5

A1
12

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 54 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
92

69
34

/4
28

72
2_

0/
42

85
94

/G
29

37
A

A

W
TC

-C
IF

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0

Ti
tle

 L
in

e 
2

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 re
vi

ew
: O

ne
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ay

 2
01

6
Po

rt
fo

lio
: -

2.
9%

; B
en

ch
m

ar
k¹

: -
6.

0%

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

1 Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

In
de

x 
|  

2 Se
cu

rit
y 

no
t h

el
d 

in
 

po
rt

fo
lio

 |
 P

AS
T 

R
ES

U
LT

S 
A

R
E 

N
O

T 
N

EC
ES

SA
R

IL
Y 

IN
D

IC
AT

IV
E 

O
F 

FU
TU

R
E 

R
ES

U
LT

S 
A

N
D

 A
N

 
IN

V
ES

TM
EN

T 
C

A
N

 L
O

SE
 V

A
LU

E.

Va
lu

e 
ad

de
d

15
0

10
0 50 0

-5
0

-1
00

Se
ct

or
 a

tt
rib

ut
io

n 
(b

as
is

 p
oi

nt
s)

En
er
gy

Fi
na
nc
ia
ls

Co
ns

di
sc
re
tio
na
ry

In
du
st
ria
ls

M
at
er
ia
ls

Co
ns

st
ap
le
s

Te
le
co
m

sv
cs

U
til
iti
es

H
ea
lth

ca
re

In
fo

te
ch
no
lo
gy

C
on

tr
ib

ut
or

s 
w

ith
in

 T
op

 P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

Se
ct

or
s

Se
ct

or
C

om
pa

ny

En
er

gy
C

al
lo

n 
Pe

tr
o

U
ltr

a 
Pe

tr
ol

eu
m

2

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls
A

m
er

is
 B

an
co

rp

D
et

ra
ct

or
s 

w
ith

in
 B

ot
to

m
 P

er
fo

rm
in

g 
Se

ct
or

s
Se

ct
or

C
om

pa
ny

In
fo

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
N

im
bl

e 
St

or
ag

e

R
ad

w
ar

e

H
ea

lth
 c

ar
e

Te
tr

ap
ha

se
 P

ha
rm

ac
eu

tic
al

s

A1
13

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 55 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
92

69
43

/4
28

72
2_

0/
42

85
94

/G
29

37
A

A

W
TC

-C
IF

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0

Ti
tle

 L
in

e 
2

To
p 

te
n 

ov
er

w
ei

gh
t p

os
iti

on
s 

as
 o

f 3
1 

M
ay

 2
01

6

C
om

pa
ny

In
du

st
ry

%
 o

f 
eq

ui
tie

s
%

 o
f 

be
nc

hm
ar

k¹

Ac
tiv

e 
w

ei
gh

t 
(%

)

FE
I

Te
ch

 h
ar

dw
ar

e 
&

 e
qu

ip
2.

0
0.

3
1.

7

To
pB

ui
ld

C
on

s 
du

ra
bl

es
 &

 a
pp

ar
el

1.
4

0.
0

1.
4

M
KS

 In
st

ru
m

en
ts

Se
m

ic
on

du
ct

or
s,

Se
m

ic
on

du
ct

or
 E

qp
m

t
1.

5
0.

1
1.

4

C
le

an
 H

ar
bo

rs
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 &

 p
ro

f s
vc

s
1.

2
0.

0
1.

2

W
in

gs
to

p
C

on
su

m
er

 s
vc

s
1.

2
0.

0
1.

2

Ro
ge

rs
Te

ch
 h

ar
dw

ar
e 

&
 e

qu
ip

1.
2

0.
1

1.
1

Em
pi

re
 S

ta
te

 R
ea

lty
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
1.

1
0.

0
1.

1

Po
st

 H
ol

di
ng

s
Fo

od
, b

ev
er

ag
e 

&
 to

ba
cc

o
1.

3
0.

3
1.

0

Ex
lS

er
vi

ce
So

ft
w

ar
e 

&
 s

vc
s

1.
2

0.
1

1.
0

Ke
nn

ed
y-

W
ils

on
 H

ld
gs

Re
al

 E
st

at
e

1.
0

0.
1

0.
9

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

¹R
us

se
ll 

20
00

 In
de

x 
|  

Ac
tiv

e 
w

ei
gh

t i
s 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
po

rt
fo

lio
 a

nd
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
w

ei
gh

ts
. T

he
 

ac
tiv

e 
w

ei
gh

t m
ay

 n
ot

 to
ta

l e
xa

ct
ly

 d
ue

 to
 ro

un
di

ng
.

A1
14

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 56 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
92

69
45

/4
28

59
4_

0/
42

85
94

/G
29

37
A

A

W
TC

-C
IF

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0

Ti
tle

 L
in

e 
2

Po
rt

fo
lio

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s 

as
 o

f 3
1 

M
ay

 2
01

6

W
TC

-C
IF

 S
m

al
l C

ap
 2

00
0

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

In
de

x

Si
ze

A
ss

et
-w

ei
gh

te
d 

m
ar

ke
t c

ap
$2

.1
 b

il
$2

.0
 b

il

U
nd

er
 U

S$
50

0 
m

ill
io

n
11

%
10

%

U
S$

50
0 

m
ill

io
n 

– 
U

S$
2.

0 
bi

lli
on

38
%

47
%

O
ve

r U
S$

2 
bi

lli
on

51
%

43
%

Va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 
O

th
er

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
EP

S 
gr

ow
th

 (5
-y

r)
14

.8
%

13
.6

%

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
P/

E
20

.5
x

19
.6

x

Pr
ic

e/
bo

ok
2.

3x
2.

1x

Yi
el

d
1.

2%
1.

6%

Tu
rn

ov
er

 (T
-1

2)
72

%

N
um

be
r o

f h
ol

di
ng

s
23

9

R
is

k

H
is

to
ric

al
 b

et
a 

(3
-y

r)
0.

96

H
is

to
ric

al
 tr

ac
ki

ng
 ri

sk
 (3

-y
r)

2.
8%

H
is

to
ric

al
 R

-s
qu

ar
ed

 (3
-y

r)
0.

97

Ac
tiv

e 
sh

ar
e

82
.1

%

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

M
ar

ke
t c

ap
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

m
ay

 n
ot

 to
ta

l 1
00

%
 d

ue
 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

A1
15

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 57 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
4 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
34

75
01

/3
86

29
4_

0/
G

29
37

/G
29

37
A

A

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
In

ve
st

m
en

t r
is

ks

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

Pr
in

ci
pa

l r
is

ks
Eq

ui
ty

 m
ar

ke
t r

is
ks

 –
 E

qu
ity

 m
ar

ke
ts

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 m

an
y 

fa
ct

or
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ec

on
om

ic
 c

on
di

tio
ns

, g
ov

er
nm

en
t r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, m

ar
ke

t s
en

tim
en

t, 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
l p

ol
iti

ca
l e

ve
nt

s,
 a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

an
d 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
ca

l i
ss

ue
s.

Is
su

er
 s

pe
ci

fic
 ri

sk
 –

 A
 s

ec
ur

ity
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 is
su

er
 m

ay
 b

e 
im

pa
ct

ed
 b

y 
fa

ct
or

s 
th

at
 a

re
 u

ni
qu

e 
to

 th
at

 is
su

er
 a

nd
 th

us
 m

ay
 c

au
se

 th
at

 s
ec

ur
ity

’s
 re

tu
rn

 to
 d

iff
er

 fr
om

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 m

ar
ke

t.

Li
qu

id
ity

 ri
sk

 –
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 lo

w
 li

qu
id

ity
 c

an
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

, a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

gu
ar

an
te

e 
th

at
 th

es
e 

se
cu

ri
tie

s 
co

ul
d 

be
 s

ol
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e.

M
an

ag
er

 ri
sk

 –
 In

ve
st

m
en

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
ep

en
ds

 o
n 

th
e 

po
rt

fo
lio

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

ea
m

 a
nd

 th
e 

te
am

’s
 in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

ie
s.

 If
 th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

do
 n

ot
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
, i

f o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 
im

pl
em

en
t t

ho
se

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

do
 n

ot
 a

ri
se

, o
r i

f t
he

 te
am

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
m

pl
em

en
t i

ts
 in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

, a
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t p

or
tf

ol
io

 m
ay

 u
nd

er
pe

rf
or

m
 o

r s
uff

er
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t l
os

se
s.

S
m

al
le

r c
ap

ita
liz

at
io

n 
st

oc
k 

ri
sk

 –
 T

he
 s

ha
re

 p
ri

ce
s 

of
 s

m
al

l a
nd

 m
id

-c
ap

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 m

ay
 e

xh
ib

it 
gr

ea
te

r v
ol

at
ili

ty
 th

an
 th

e 
sh

ar
e 

pr
ic

es
 o

f l
ar

ge
r c

ap
ita

liz
at

io
n 

co
m

pa
ni

es
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 s

ha
re

s 
of

 s
m

al
l 

an
d 

m
id

-c
ap

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 a

re
 o

ft
en

 le
ss

 li
qu

id
 th

an
 la

rg
er

 c
ap

ita
liz

at
io

n 
co

m
pa

ni
es

.

A
dd

it
io

na
l r

is
ks

R
ea

l e
st

at
e 

se
cu

ri
tie

s 
ris

k 
– 

R
is

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 in

ve
st

in
g 

in
 th

e 
se

cu
ri

tie
s 

of
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
ly

 e
ng

ag
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

al
 e

st
at

e 
in

du
st

ry
 s

uc
h 

as
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t T
ru

st
 (“

R
EI

T”
) s

ec
ur

iti
es

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
th

e 
cy

cl
ic

al
 n

at
ur

e 
of

 re
al

 e
st

at
e 

va
lu

es
; r

is
k 

re
la

te
d 

to
 g

en
er

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
ic

 c
on

di
tio

ns
; o

ve
rb

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
co

m
pe

tit
io

n;
 d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 tr

en
ds

; a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 in
te

re
st

 r
at

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
re

al
 e

st
at

e 
ca

pi
ta

l m
ar

ke
t i

nfl
ue

nc
es

.

R
is

ks
 o

f d
er

iv
at

iv
e 

in
st

ru
m

en
ts

 –
 D

er
iv

at
iv

es
 c

an
 b

e 
vo

la
til

e 
an

d 
in

vo
lv

e 
va

rio
us

 d
eg

re
es

 o
f r

is
k.

 T
he

 v
al

ue
 o

f d
er

iv
at

iv
e 

in
st

ru
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

aff
ec

te
d 

by
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 o
ve

ra
ll 

m
ar

ke
t m

ov
em

en
ts

, t
he

 b
us

in
es

s 
or

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 s
pe

ci
fic

 c
om

pa
ni

es
, i

nd
ex

 v
ol

at
ili

ty
, c

ha
ng

es
 in

 in
te

re
st

 ra
te

s,
 o

r f
ac

to
rs

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
a 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 in

du
st

ry
 o

r r
eg

io
n.

 O
th

er
 re

le
va

nt
 ri

sk
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 d
ef

au
lt 

of
 th

e 
co

un
te

rp
ar

ty
 

to
 th

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l l

iq
ui

di
ty

 ri
sk

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 d
er

iv
at

iv
e 

in
st

ru
m

en
ts

. M
or

eo
ve

r, 
be

ca
us

e 
m

an
y 

de
ri

va
tiv

e 
in

st
ru

m
en

ts
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 m

or
e 

m
ar

ke
t e

xp
os

ur
e 

th
an

 th
e 

m
on

ey
 p

ai
d 

or
 d

ep
os

ite
d 

w
he

n 
th

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n 
is

 e
nt

er
ed

 in
to

, a
 re

la
tiv

el
y 

sm
al

l a
dv

er
se

 m
ar

ke
t m

ov
em

en
t c

an
 n

ot
 o

nl
y 

re
su

lt 
in

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f t

he
 e

nt
ire

 in
ve

st
m

en
t, 

bu
t m

ay
 a

ls
o 

ex
po

se
 a

 p
or

tf
ol

io
 to

 th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f a
 lo

ss
 e

xc
ee

di
ng

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 a
m

ou
nt

 in
ve

st
ed

.

R
is

ks
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t i

n 
ot

he
r p

oo
ls

 –
 In

ve
st

or
s 

in
 a

 fu
nd

 th
at

 h
as

 in
ve

st
ed

 in
 a

no
th

er
 fu

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
ri

sk
s,

 in
 d

ire
ct

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f a

ss
et

s 
th

e 
fir

st
 fu

nd
 h

as
 in

ve
st

ed
 in

 th
e 

se
co

nd
, a

s 
di

re
ct

 in
ve

st
or

s 
in

 th
at

 s
ec

on
d 

fu
nd

.

Pa
st

 re
su

lt
s 

ar
e 

no
t n

ec
es

sa
ri

ly
 in

di
ca

ti
ve

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
re

su
lt

s
Th

er
e 

ca
n 

be
 n

o 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

no
r 

sh
ou

ld
 it

 b
e 

as
su

m
ed

 th
at

 fu
tu

re
 in

ve
st

m
en

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f a

ny
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

w
ill

 c
on

fo
rm

 to
 a

ny
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 s
et

 fo
rt

h 
in

 th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l o
r 

th
at

 th
e 

po
rt

fo
lio

’s
 

un
de

rl
yi

ng
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
vo

id
 lo

ss
es

. T
he

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

es
ul

ts
 a

nd
 a

ny
 p

or
tf

ol
io

 c
om

po
si

tio
ns

 s
et

 fo
rt

h 
in

 th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r i
llu

st
ra

tiv
e 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y 
an

d 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

of
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

es
ul

ts
 o

r f
ut

ur
e 

po
rt

fo
lio

 c
om

po
si

tio
n.

 T
he

 c
om

po
si

tio
n,

 s
iz

e 
of

, a
nd

 ri
sk

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 a
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 m

ay
 d

iff
er

 s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 fr
om

 th
e 

ex
am

pl
es

 s
et

 fo
rt

h 
in

 
th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l. 

A
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

an
 lo

se
 v

al
ue

.

p
16

ag
e 

1

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 58 of 89



3

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 59 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
58

14
22

/4
25

20
3_

0/
G

29
37

/G
29

37

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
Po

rt
fo

lio
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ris
k 

ov
er

si
gh

t

Th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
pr

es
en

te
d 

ar
e 

so
ug

ht
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
po

rt
fo

lio
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

. A
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
m

ay
 

no
t r

efl
ec

t a
ll 

of
 th

es
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s,
 o

r m
ay

 b
e 

ou
t-

si
de

 o
f s

ta
te

d 
ra

ng
es

.

Po
rt

fo
lio

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

Tr
ac

ki
ng

 e
rr

or
Ty

pi
ca

lly
 2

 –
 6

%

In
du

st
ry

 w
ei

gh
ts

Ty
pi

ca
lly

 c
lo

se
 to

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

w
ei

gh
t

Re
ba

la
nc

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

– 
ri

sk
 b

as
ed

Re
ba

la
nc

e 
to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
in

du
st

ry
 a

nd
 s

ty
le

 ti
lts

Em
ph

as
iz

es
 s

to
ck

 s
el

ec
tio

n

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 p

ro
ce

ss
, m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or

Po
si

tio
n 

si
ze

M
ax

im
um

 3
%

M
ar

ke
t c

ap
Ty

pi
ca

lly
 w

ith
in

 ra
ng

e 
of

 th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k

N
on

-U
S 

ex
po

su
re

M
ax

im
um

 1
0%

, t
yp

ic
al

ly
 b

y 
in

ve
st

in
g 

in
 A

D
Rs

C
as

h 
ex

po
su

re
Le

ss
 th

an
 5

%
, t

yp
ic

al
ly

 e
qu

iti
ze

d 
to

 <
 1

%

Ri
sk

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht

G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

A
na

ly
st

s 
(G

IA
s)

In
-d

ep
th

 c
om

pa
ny

 a
nd

 in
du

st
ry

 re
se

ar
ch

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l, 
So

ci
al

, G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns

Bu
y 

an
d 

se
ll d

ec
is

io
ns

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

nv
ic

tio
n

Po
rt

fo
lio

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
M

ul
ti-

m
an

ag
er

: d
iv

er
si

fie
d 

by
 s

to
ck

, i
nd

us
tr

y,
 a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t s
ty

le

Po
rt

fo
lio

 C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
Te

am
Tr

ad
es

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
Te

am
•	
Pr
e-
	a
nd
	p
os
t-t
ra
de
	c
om

pl
ia
nc
e	
ch
ec
ks

•	
C
as
h	
m
an
ag
em

en
t	a
nd
	re
ba
la
nc
in
g

Li
ne

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 p

ro
du

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t
Po

rt
fo

lio
 o

ve
rs

ig
ht

 a
nd

 ri
sk

 a
na

ly
si

s

Re
vi

ew
 g

ro
up

s 
fo

r G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

A
na

ly
st

s
Ph

ilo
so

ph
y 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
s

Ri
sk

 A
dv

is
or

y 
C

ou
nc

il –
 in

fo
rm

al
, d

ee
p-

di
ve

Eq
ui

ty
 R

ev
ie

w
 G

ro
up

 –
 fo

rm
al

 a
nn

ua
l p

or
tf

ol
io

 re
vi

ew

p
A

1
ag

e 
1

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 60 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
82

82
56

/4
28

59
4_

0/
G

29
37

/G
29

37

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

Sm
al

l C
ap

 2
00

0 
Te

am
Ti

tle
 L

in
e 

2
Ph

ilo
so

ph
y 

– 
G

re
at

er
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 a

m
on

g 
st

oc
ks

 th
an

 s
ec

to
r

He
alt

h 
ca

re
En

er
gy

M
at

er
ia

ls
Te

le
co

m
 sv

csCo
ns

 d
isc

re
tio

na
ry

In
fo

 te
ch

no
lo

gyIn
du

st
ria

ls
Co

ns
 st

ap
le

sFi
na

nc
ia

ls
Ut

ilit
ies

Re
tu

rn
 d

is
pe

rs
io

n
am

on
g 

se
ct

or
s

0204060

Re
tu

rn
 d

is
pe

rs
io

n 
of

 s
to

ck
s 

w
ith

in
 s

ec
to

r

A
ve

ra
ge

 o
f a

ll 
se

ct
or

s

So
ur

ce
s:

 F
ac

tS
et

, R
us

se
ll 

|  
Da

ta
 s

ho
w

n 
is

 fo
r t

he
 

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

In
de

x 
(t

he
 s

tr
at

eg
y’

s 
be

nc
hm

ar
k 

in
de

x)
 1

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

05
 to

 3
1 

De
ce

m
be

r 2
01

5.
 |

 E
ac

h 
bl

ue
 b

ar
 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 th

e 
m

ed
ia

n 
ro

lli
ng

 1
-y

ea
r s

ta
nd

ar
d 

de
vi

a-
tio

n 
of

 s
to

ck
 re

tu
rn

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
se

ct
or

. T
he

 
or

an
ge

 b
ar

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 th

e 
m

ed
ia

n 
ro

lli
ng

 1
-y

ea
r s

ta
n-

da
rd

 d
ev

ia
tio

n 
of

 re
tu

rn
s 

am
on

g 
th

e 
se

ct
or

s.
 |

 G
ra

ph
 

is
 u

pd
at

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
.

M
ed

ia
n 

st
an

da
rd

 d
ev

ia
tio

n 
of

 1
-y

ea
r r

et
ur

ns
 (%

)

Ph
ilo

so
ph

y
W

e 
be

lie
ve

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
ls

 o
f c

om
pa

ni
es

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

in
du

st
ry

 c
an

 v
ar

y 
w

id
el

y 
ov

er
 ti

m
e;

 s
to

ck
 p

ric
es

 fo
llo

w

D
ed

ic
at

ed
 b

ot
to

m
-u

p 
re

se
ar

ch
 c

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

e 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

id
en

tif
y 

pr
ic

in
g 

an
om

al
ie

s

W
e 

ca
n 

be
at

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t b

y 
ex

pl
oi

tin
g 

in
tr

a-
in

du
st

ry
 d

is
pe

rs
io

n

O
ne

 s
iz

e 
do

es
 n

ot
 fi

t a
ll

D
iv

er
si

fic
at

io
n 

is
 th

e 
on

ly
 “

fr
ee

 lu
nc

h”

A1
A2

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 61 of 89



20
00

00
05

07
/4

28
59

4_
0/

G
23

08
/G

23
08

W
ell

in
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
Co

m
po

sit
e:

 S
m

all
 C

ap
 20

00
Sc

he
du

le 
of

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
ns

 fr
om

 01
 Ja

nu
ar

y 2
00

6 t
o 

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
5

SM
CP

20
00

TO
T

©2
01

6 W
ell

ing
ton

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
pa

ny
 LL

P.
 A

ll r
igh

ts 
re

se
rve

d.
Ge

ne
ra

ted
 on

: 1
1 M

ar
ch

 20
16

Pe
rio

d
Gr

os
s

Re
tu

rn
 (%

)
Ne

t
Re

tu
rn

 (%
)

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
Re

tu
rn

 (%
)

Nu
m

be
r o

f
Po

rtf
oli

os
In

te
rn

al
Di

sp
er

sio
n 

(%
)

Co
m

po
sit

e 
M

kt.
Va

lue
(U

SD
 M

il)
To

ta
l F

irm
 A

ss
ets

(U
SD

 M
il)

20
06

14
.81

13
.79

18
.37

12
0.6

2,1
55

57
5,4

92
20

07
1.8

2
0.9

1
-1

.56
10

0.1
1,4

44
58

8,3
76

20
08

-3
9.3

9
-3

9.9
6

-3
3.7

9
9

0.2
81

1
41

9,6
41

20
09

44
.76

43
.50

27
.16

9
0.3

1,1
11

53
7,3

84
20

10
35

.64
34

.46
26

.86
10

0.1
1,5

02
63

3,9
22

20
11

-2
.05

-2
.93

-4
.18

12
0.2

1,6
39

65
1,4

96
20

12
19

.61
18

.55
16

.35
12

0.2
1,9

65
75

7,9
03

20
13

43
.92

42
.67

38
.82

13
0.4

2,6
88

83
4,4

41
20

14
10

.28
9.2

9
4.9

0
13

0.3
2,8

18
91

4,1
09

20
15

-1
.89

-2
.77

-4
.41

13
0.2

2,5
67

92
6,9

49
Be

nc
hm

ar
k: 

Ru
ss

ell
 20

00

Co
m

po
sit

e D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

 P
or

tfo
lio

s i
nc

lud
ed

 in
 th

e S
ma

ll C
ap

 20
00

 C
om

po
sit

e i
nv

es
t in

 co
mp

an
ies

 th
at 

ar
e i

n t
he

 m
ar

ke
t c

ap
ita

liz
ati

on
 ra

ng
e o

f th
e R

us
se

ll 2
00

0 I
nd

ex
. E

ac
h g

lob
al 

ind
us

try
 an

aly
st 

ma
na

ge
s a

n a
llo

ca
tio

n o
f th

e p
or

tfo
lio

 th
at 

co
rre

sp
on

ds
 to

 hi
s/h

er
 ar

ea
 of

 co
ve

ra
ge

. 
Th

e a
pp

ro
ac

h t
yp

ica
lly

 ke
ep

s t
he

 in
du

str
y w

eig
hts

 cl
os

e t
o t

ho
se

 of
 th

e R
us

se
ll 2

00
0 I

nd
ex

 w
hil

e s
ee

kin
g t

o a
dd

 va
lue

 th
ro

ug
h b

ott
om

-u
p s

ec
ur

ity
 se

lec
tio

n.
Co

m
po

sit
e C

re
at

io
n 

Da
te

: T
he

 co
mp

os
ite

 cr
ea

tio
n d

ate
 is

 M
ay

 19
97

.
Co

m
po

sit
e M

em
be

rs
hi

p:
 A

ll f
ull

y d
isc

re
tio

na
ry,

 fe
e p

ay
ing

 po
rtf

oli
os

 ar
e e

lig
ibl

e f
or

 in
clu

sio
n i

n t
he

 co
mp

os
ite

.
Fe

e S
ch

ed
ul

e:
 T

he
 U

S 
ins

titu
tio

na
l s

ep
ar

ate
 ac

co
un

t fe
e s

ch
ed

ule
 fo

r t
his

 pr
od

uc
t is

:
Ma

rke
t V

alu
e

An
nu

al 
Fe

e
On

 th
e f

irs
t U

S$
25

 m
illi

on
0.9

0%
Ne

xt 
US

$2
5 m

illi
on

0.8
0

Ov
er

 U
S$

50
 m

illi
on

0.7
0

Be
nc

hm
ar

k D
ef

in
iti

on
: T

he
 In

de
x m

ea
su

re
s t

he
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 of
 th

e s
ma

ll-c
ap

 se
gm

en
t o

f th
e U

.S
. e

qu
ity

 un
ive

rse
. T

he
 R

us
se

ll 2
00

0 i
s a

 su
bs

et 
of 

the
 R

us
se

ll 3
00

0 I
nd

ex
 re

pr
es

en
tin

g a
pp

ro
xim

ate
ly 

10
%

 of
 th

e t
ota

l m
ar

ke
t c

ap
ita

liz
ati

on
 of

 th
at 

Ind
ex

.
Fi

rm
: F

or
pu

rp
os

es
 of

 G
IP

S®
co

mp
lia

nc
e, 

the
 F

irm
 is

 de
fin

ed
 as

 al
l p

or
tfo

lio
s m

an
ag

ed
 by

 W
ell

ing
ton

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
pa

ny
 LL

P,
 an

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 ow
ne

d, 
SE

C-
re

gis
ter

ed
 in

ve
stm

en
t a

dv
ise

r, 
as

 w
ell

 as
 its

 af
fili

ate
s (

co
lle

cti
ve

ly,
 W

ell
ing

ton
 M

an
ag

em
en

t).
 W

ell
ing

ton
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

ov
ide

s i
nv

es
tm

en
t a

dv
iso

ry 
se

rvi
ce

s t
o i

ns
titu

tio
ns

 ar
ou

nd
 th

e w
or

ld.
GI

PS
® :

W
ell

ing
ton

 M
an

ag
em

en
t c

lai
ms

 co
mp

lia
nc

e w
ith

 th
e G

lob
al 

Inv
es

tm
en

t P
er

for
ma

nc
e S

tan
da

rd
s (

GI
PS

® ) 
an

d h
as

 pr
ep

ar
ed

 an
d p

re
se

nte
d t

his
 re

po
rt 

in 
co

mp
lia

nc
e w

ith
 th

e G
IP

S®
sta

nd
ar

ds
. W

ell
ing

ton
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

ha
s b

ee
n i

nd
ep

en
de

ntl
y v

er
ifie

d f
or

 th
e p

er
iod

s 1
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
19

93
 to

 31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4. 

Th
e v

er
ific

ati
on

 re
po

rt 
is 

av
ail

ab
le 

up
on

 re
qu

es
t. V

er
ific

ati
on

 as
se

ss
es

 w
he

the
r (

1)
 th

e f
irm

 ha
s c

om
pli

ed
 w

ith
 al

l th
e c

om
po

sit
e c

on
str

uc
tio

n r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

of 
the

 G
IP

S®
sta

nd
ar

ds
 on

 a 
firm

-w
ide

 ba
sis

 an
d (

2)
 th

e f
irm

's 
po

lic
ies

 an
d p

ro
ce

du
re

s a
re

 de
sig

ne
d 

to 
ca

lcu
lat

e a
nd

 pr
es

en
t p

er
for

ma
nc

e i
n c

om
pli

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e G

IP
S®

sta
nd

ar
ds

. V
er

ific
ati

on
 do

es
 no

t e
ns

ur
e t

he
 ac

cu
ra

cy
 of

 an
y s

pe
cif

ic 
co

mp
os

ite
 pr

es
en

tat
ion

.
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 C
alc

ul
at

io
n:

 G
ro

ss
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 re
su

lts
 ar

e n
et 

of 
tra

din
g e

xp
en

se
s. 

Re
tur

ns
, m

ar
ke

t v
alu

es
, a

nd
 as

se
ts 

ar
e r

ep
or

ted
 in

 U
SD

 ex
ce

pt 
wh

en
 ot

he
rw

ise
 no

ted
. R

etu
rn

s, 
ma

rke
t v

alu
es

 an
d a

ss
ets

 re
po

rte
d i

n c
ur

re
nc

ies
 ot

he
r t

ha
n U

SD
 ar

e c
alc

ula
ted

 by
 co

nv
er

tin
g t

he
 

US
D 

mo
nth

ly 
re

tur
n a

nd
 as

se
ts 

us
ing

 th
e a

pp
ro

pr
iat

e e
xc

ha
ng

e r
ate

 (o
ffic

ial
 4:

00
 p.

m.
 Lo

nd
on

 cl
os

ing
 sp

ot 
ra

tes
). 

Po
lic

ies
 fo

r v
alu

ing
 po

rtf
oli

os
, c

alc
ula

tin
g p

er
for

ma
nc

e, 
an

d p
re

pa
rin

g c
om

pli
an

t p
re

se
nta

tio
ns

 ar
e a

va
ila

ble
 up

on
 re

qu
es

t.
Ne

t o
ffe

es
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 re
fle

cts
 th

e d
ed

uc
tio

n o
f th

e h
igh

es
t ti

er
 in

ve
stm

en
t m

an
ag

em
en

t fe
e (

"m
od

el 
fee

") 
tha

t w
ou

ld 
be

 ch
ar

ge
d b

as
ed

 on
 th

e f
ee

 sc
he

du
le 

ap
pr

op
ria

te 
to 

yo
u f

or
 th

is 
ma

nd
ate

, w
ith

ou
t th

e b
en

efi
t o

f b
re

ak
po

int
s a

nd
 is

 ca
lcu

lat
ed

 by
 su

btr
ac

tin
g 1

/12
th 

of 
the

 m
od

el 
fee

 fr
om

 m
on

thl
y g

ro
ss

 co
mp

os
ite

 re
tur

ns
. P

lea
se

 be
 ad

vis
ed

 th
at 

the
 co

mp
os

ite
 m

ay
 in

clu
de

 m
em

be
rs 

tha
t a

re
 ef

fec
tiv

ely
 su

bje
ct 

to 
hig

he
r m

an
ag

em
en

t fe
es

 th
at 

ar
e i

na
pp

lic
ab

le 
to 

yo
u. 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ne

t o
f m

od
el 

fee
s i

s i
nte

nd
ed

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 th
e m

os
t a

pp
ro

pr
iat

e e
xa

mp
le 

of 
the

 
im

pa
ct 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
fee

s w
ou

ld 
ha

ve
 fo

r y
ou

.
Po

ol 
inv

es
tor

s w
ill 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e c
os

ts 
in 

ex
ce

ss
 of

 in
ve

stm
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t fe

es
, s

uc
h a

s o
pe

ra
tin

g e
xp

en
se

s a
nd

 cu
sto

dia
l fe

es
. T

he
se

 in
dir

ec
t c

os
ts 

ar
e n

ot 
re

fle
cte

d i
n t

he
 m

od
el 

fee
, o

r n
et 

of 
fee

s p
er

for
ma

nc
e.

In
te

rn
al 

Di
sp

er
sio

n:
 T

he
 di

sp
er

sio
n m

ea
su

re
 pr

es
en

ted
 is

 th
e a

ss
et-

we
igh

ted
 st

an
da

rd
 de

via
tio

n. 
Th

e a
ss

et-
we

igh
ted

 st
an

da
rd

 de
via

tio
n m

ea
su

re
s t

he
 di

sp
er

sio
n o

f in
div

idu
al 

po
rtf

oli
o r

etu
rn

s r
ela

tiv
e t

o t
he

 as
se

t-w
eig

hte
d c

om
po

sit
e r

etu
rn

. O
nly

 po
rtf

oli
os

 th
at 

ha
ve

 be
en

 in
clu

de
d i

n 
the

 co
mp

os
ite

 fo
r t

he
 fu

ll p
er

iod
 ar

e i
nc

lud
ed

 in
 th

e s
tan

da
rd

 de
via

tio
n c

alc
ula

tio
n. 

Lim
ita

tio
ns

 im
po

se
d b

y c
lie

nt 
gu

ide
lin

es
 or

 by
 la

w 
on

 a 
po

rtf
oli

o's
 ab

ilit
y t

o i
nv

es
t in

 ce
rta

in 
se

cu
riti

es
 or

 in
str

um
en

ts,
 su

ch
 as

 IP
O 

se
cu

riti
es

, a
nd

/or
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e f
irm

's 
Tr

ad
e A

llo
ca

tio
n P

oli
cie

s 
an

d P
ro

ce
du

re
s, 

ma
y c

au
se

 th
e p

or
tfo

lio
's 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 to

 di
ffe

r f
ro

m 
tha

t o
f th

e c
om

po
sit

e.
Ex

te
rn

al 
Di

sp
er

sio
n:

 T
he

 di
sp

er
sio

n m
ea

su
re

 pr
es

en
ted

 is
 th

e t
hr

ee
-ye

ar
 an

nu
ali

ze
d e

x-p
os

t s
tan

da
rd

 de
via

tio
n. 

It m
ea

su
re

s t
he

 va
ria

bil
ity

 of
 th

e c
om

po
sit

e a
nd

 th
e b

en
ch

ma
rk(

s) 
ov

er
 th

e p
re

ce
din

g 3
6-

mo
nth

 pe
rio

d. 
Fo

r p
er

iod
s p

rio
r t

o 1
 Ja

nu
ar

y 2
01

1, 
the

 F
irm

 w
as

 no
t r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 
pr

es
en

t th
e s

tan
da

rd
 de

via
tio

n.
3-

Ye
ar

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
De

via
tio

n 
(%

)
Ye

ar
Co

m
po

sit
e

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
20

11
24

.54
24

.99
20

12
19

.40
20

.20
20

13
16

.22
16

.45
20

14
12

.94
13

.12
20

15
13

.56
13

.96
Co

m
po

sit
e L

ist
in

g:
 W

ell
ing

ton
 M

an
ag

em
en

t's
 lis

t o
f c

om
po

sit
e d

es
cri

pti
on

s i
s a

va
ila

ble
 up

on
 re

qu
es

t.
Ot

he
r M

at
te

rs
: T

his
 m

ate
ria

l c
on

tai
ns

 su
mm

ar
y i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 re
ga

rd
ing

 th
e i

nv
es

tm
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h d
es

cri
be

d h
er

ein
 an

d i
s n

ot 
a c

om
ple

te 
de

sc
rip

tio
n o

f th
e i

nv
es

tm
en

t o
bje

cti
ve

s, 
po

lic
ies

, g
uid

eli
ne

s, 
or

 po
rtf

oli
o m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 re
se

ar
ch

 th
at 

su
pp

or
ts 

thi
s i

nv
es

tm
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h.
An

y 
de

cis
ion

 to
 en

ga
ge

 W
ell

ing
ton

 M
an

ag
em

en
t s

ho
uld

 be
 ba

se
d u

po
n a

 re
vie

w 
of 

the
 te

rm
s o

f th
e i

nv
es

tm
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t a

gr
ee

me
nt 

an
d t

he
 sp

ec
ific

 in
ve

stm
en

t o
bje

cti
ve

s, 
po

lic
ies

, a
nd

 gu
ide

lin
es

 th
at 

ap
ply

 un
de

r t
he

 te
rm

s o
f s

uc
h a

gr
ee

me
nt.

Pa
st

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

:P
as

t r
es

ult
s a

re
 no

t n
ec

es
sa

rily
 in

dic
ati

ve
 of

 fu
tur

e r
es

ult
s a

nd
 an

 in
ve

stm
en

t c
an

 lo
se

 va
lue

.

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 62 of 89



Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
 2

01
6 

Al
l R

ig
ht

s 
Re

se
rv

ed
20

00
00

02
98

/4
25

80
6_

0/
G

14
22

/G
14

22

A  C
it

y 
of

 T
am

pa
 G

en
er

al
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t F

un
d

A21
 J

un
e 

20
16

Im
po

rt
an

t n
ot

ic
e

Ti
tle

 L
in

e 
2

©
20

16
 W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t. 

Al
l r

ig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. 

|  
As

 o
f J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
6

W
el

lin
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

pa
ny

 l
lp

 (W
M

C
) i

s 
an

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 o
w

ne
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
is

er
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

U
S 

S
ec

ur
iti

es
 a

nd
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (S
EC

).
 W

M
C

 is
 a

ls
o 

a 
co

m
m

od
ity

 tr
ad

in
g 

ad
vi

so
r (

C
TA

) r
eg

is
te

re
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

U
S 

C
om

m
od

ity
 F

ut
ur

es
 T

ra
di

ng
 C

om
m

is
si

on
. I

n 
ce

rt
ai

n 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 W
M

C
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

co
m

m
od

ity
 tr

ad
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 to
 c

lie
nt

s 
in

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 e

xe
m

pt
io

ns
 fr

om
 C

TA
 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n.

 W
M

C
, a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 it
s 

affi
lia

te
s 

(c
ol

le
ct

iv
el

y,
 W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t)

, p
ro

vi
de

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
dv

is
or

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 in
st

itu
tio

ns
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
w

or
ld

. L
oc

at
ed

 in
 

B
os

to
n,

 M
as

sa
ch

us
et

ts
, W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t a

ls
o 

ha
s 

offi
ce

s 
in

 C
hi

ca
go

, I
lli

no
is

; R
ad

no
r, 

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

; S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
, C

al
ifo

rn
ia

; B
ei

jin
g;

 F
ra

nk
fu

rt
; H

on
g 

K
on

g;
 L

on
do

n;
 L

ux
em

bo
ur

g;
 S

in
ga

po
re

; 
Sy

dn
ey

; T
ok

yo
; a

nd
 Z

ur
ic

h.
  

  T
hi

s 
m

at
er

ia
l i

s 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 fo

r, 
an

d 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 fo
r i

nt
er

na
l u

se
 b

y,
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l a
nd

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l i
nv

es
to

rs
 a

nd
 th

ei
r c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
or

 fo
r s

uc
h 

ot
he

r u
se

 a
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 b

y 
W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t. 

Th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l a
nd

/o
r i

ts
 c

on
te

nt
s 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
t a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 w
ri

tin
g 

an
d 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
 o

r d
is

tr
ib

ut
ed

 in
 w

ho
le

 o
r i

n 
pa

rt
, f

or
 a

ny
 p

ur
po

se
, w

ith
ou

t t
he

 
ex

pr
es

s 
w

ri
tt

en
 c

on
se

nt
 o

f W
el

lin
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t. 
Th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l i

s 
no

t i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 c
on

st
itu

te
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
dv

ic
e 

or
 a

n 
off

er
 to

 s
el

l, 
or

 th
e 

so
lic

ita
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

off
er

 to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

sh
ar

es
 o

r o
th

er
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

. 
In

ve
st

or
s 

sh
ou

ld
 a

lw
ay

s 
ob

ta
in

 a
nd

 re
ad

 a
n 

up
-t

o-
da

te
 in

ve
st

m
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

n 
or

 p
ro

sp
ec

tu
s 

be
fo

re
 d

ec
id

in
g 

w
he

th
er

 to
 a

pp
oi

nt
 a

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
er

 o
r t

o 
in

ve
st

 in
 a

 fu
nd

. A
ny

 v
ie

w
s 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
he

re
in

 a
re

 th
os

e 
of

 th
e 

au
th

or
(s

), 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
w

ith
ou

t n
ot

ic
e.

 In
di

vi
du

al
 p

or
tf

ol
io

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

ea
m

s 
m

ay
 h

ol
d 

di
ffe

re
nt

 v
ie

w
s 

an
d 

m
ay

 
m

ak
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 in
ve

st
m

en
t d

ec
is

io
ns

 fo
r d

iff
er

en
t c

lie
nt

s.
 

 

In
 C

an
ad

a,
 th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l i

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

an
ad

a 
ll

c,
 a

 U
S 

S
EC

-r
eg

is
te

re
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
is

er
 a

ls
o 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 in

 th
e 

pr
ov

in
ce

s 
of

 A
lb

er
ta

, B
ri

tis
h 

C
ol

um
bi

a,
 M

an
ito

ba
, N

ew
 

B
ru

ns
w

ic
k,

 N
ew

fo
un

dl
an

d 
an

d 
La

br
ad

or
, N

ov
a 

S
co

tia
, O

nt
ar

io
, Q

ue
be

c,
 a

nd
 S

as
ka

tc
he

w
an

 in
 th

e 
ca

te
go

ri
es

 o
f P

or
tf

ol
io

 M
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 E
xe

m
pt

 M
ar

ke
t D

ea
le

r. 
 

  I
n 

th
e 

U
K

, t
hi

s 
m

at
er

ia
l i

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

by
 W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t I

nt
er

na
tio

na
l L

im
ite

d 
(W

M
IL

), 
a 

fir
m

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 a

nd
 re

gu
la

te
d 

by
 th

e 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l C

on
du

ct
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

 (F
C

A)
. T

hi
s 

m
at

er
ia

l i
s 

di
re

ct
ed

 o
nl

y 
at

 p
er

so
ns

 (R
el

ev
an

t P
er

so
ns

) w
ho

 
ar

e 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 e

lig
ib

le
 c

ou
nt

er
pa

rt
ie

s 
or

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l c
lie

nt
s 

un
de

r t
he

 ru
le

s 
of

 th
e 

FC
A

. T
hi

s 
m

at
er

ia
l m

us
t n

ot
 b

e 
ac

te
d 

on
 o

r r
el

ie
d 

on
 b

y 
pe

rs
on

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 n

ot
 R

el
ev

an
t P

er
so

ns
. A

ny
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
or

 in
ve

st
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 to

 w
hi

ch
 th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l r

el
at

es
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

ly
 to

 R
el

ev
an

t P
er

so
ns

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 o

nl
y 

w
ith

 R
el

ev
an

t P
er

so
ns

.  
  I

n 
G

er
m

an
y,

 th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l i
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

W
el

lin
gt

on
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t I

nt
er

na
tio

na
l L

im
ite

d,
 N

ie
de

rl
as

su
ng

 D
eu

ts
ch

la
nd

, t
he

 G
er

m
an

 b
ra

nc
h 

of
 W

M
IL

, w
hi

ch
 is

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 a

nd
 re

gu
la

te
d 

by
 th

e 
FC

A
 a

nd
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f c
er

ta
in

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f i

ts
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 b
y 

th
e 

B
un

de
sa

ns
ta

lt 
fü

r F
in

an
zd

ie
ns

tle
is

tu
ng

sa
uf

si
ch

t (
B

aF
in

).
 T

hi
s 

m
at

er
ia

l i
s 

di
re

ct
ed

 o
nl

y 
at

 p
er

so
ns

 (R
el

ev
an

t P
er

so
ns

) w
ho

 a
re

 c
la

ss
ifi

ed
 a

s 
el

ig
ib

le
 c

ou
nt

er
pa

rt
ie

s 
or

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l c
lie

nt
s 

un
de

r t
he

 
G

er
m

an
 S

ec
ur

iti
es

 T
ra

di
ng

 A
ct

. T
hi

s 
m

at
er

ia
l d

oe
s 

no
t c

on
st

itu
te

 in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
ic

e,
 a

 s
ol

ic
ita

tio
n 

to
 in

ve
st

 in
 fi

na
nc

ia
l i

ns
tr

um
en

ts
 o

r fi
na

nc
ia

l a
na

ly
si

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
34

b 
of

 th
e 

G
er

m
an

 S
ec

ur
iti

es
 T

ra
di

ng
 A

ct
. I

t d
oe

s 
no

t m
ee

t a
ll 

le
ga

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 o
f fi

na
nc

ia
l a

na
ly

se
s 

an
d 

is
 n

ot
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
ny

 p
ro

hi
bi

tio
n 

on
 d

ea
lin

g 
ah

ea
d 

of
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
na

ly
se

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
at

er
ia

l d
oe

s 
no

t c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 p
ro

sp
ec

tu
s 

fo
r t

he
 p

ur
po

se
s 

of
 th

e 
G

er
m

an
 C

ap
ita

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t C

od
e,

 th
e 

G
er

m
an

 S
ec

ur
iti

es
 S

al
es

 P
ro

sp
ec

tu
s 

A
ct

 o
r t

he
 G

er
m

an
 

S
ec

ur
iti

es
 P

ro
sp

ec
tu

s 
A

ct
.  

  I
n 

H
on

g 
K

on
g,

 th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l i
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 y

ou
 b

y 
W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t H

on
g 

K
on

g 
Li

m
ite

d 
(W

M
 H

on
g 

K
on

g)
, a

 c
or

po
ra

tio
n 

lic
en

se
d 

by
 th

e 
S

ec
ur

iti
es

 a
nd

 F
ut

ur
es

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 to

 c
on

du
ct

 T
yp

e 
1 

(d
ea

lin
g 

in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

), 
Ty

pe
 2

 (d
ea

lin
g 

in
 fu

tu
re

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
s)

, T
yp

e 
4 

(a
dv

is
in

g 
on

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
), 

an
d 

Ty
pe

 9
 (a

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t)

 re
gu

la
te

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

th
at

 y
ou

 
ar

e 
a 

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 In
ve

st
or

 a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 th
e 

S
ec

ur
iti

es
 a

nd
 F

ut
ur

es
 O

rd
in

an
ce

. B
y 

ac
ce

pt
in

g 
th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l y

ou
 a

ck
no

w
le

dg
e 

an
d 

ag
re

e 
th

at
 th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l i

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r y
ou

r u
se

 o
nl

y 
an

d 
th

at
 y

ou
 

w
ill

 n
ot

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
e 

or
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
m

ak
e 

th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 a
ny

 p
er

so
n.

  
  I

n 
S

in
ga

po
re

, t
hi

s 
m

at
er

ia
l i

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r y
ou

r u
se

 o
nl

y 
by

 W
el

lin
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
in

ga
po

re
 P

te
 L

td
 (W

M
 S

in
ga

po
re

) 
(R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

N
um

be
r 2

01
41

55
4

4
E)

. W
M

 S
in

ga
po

re
 is

 re
gu

la
te

d 
by

 th
e 

M
on

et
ar

y 
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

 o
f S

in
ga

po
re

 u
nd

er
 a

 C
ap

ita
l M

ar
ke

ts
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Li
ce

nc
e 

to
 c

on
du

ct
 fu

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 is

 a
n 

ex
em

pt
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

dv
is

er
. B

y 
ac

ce
pt

in
g 

th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l y
ou

 re
pr

es
en

t t
ha

t y
ou

 a
re

 a
 n

on
-r

et
ai

l i
nv

es
to

r a
nd

 th
at

 y
ou

 w
ill

 n
ot

 c
op

y,
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

e 
or

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

m
ak

e 
th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n.
  

  I
n 

A
us

tr
al

ia
, W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

us
tr

al
ia

 P
ty

 L
td

 (W
M

 A
us

tr
al

ia
) (

A
B

N
19

 1
67

 0
91

 0
9

0)
  h

as
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 th
e 

is
su

e 
of

 th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l f
or

 u
se

 s
ol

el
y 

by
 w

ho
le

sa
le

 c
lie

nt
s 

(a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
or

po
ra

tio
ns

 
A

ct
 2

0
01

).
 B

y 
ac

ce
pt

in
g 

th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l, 
yo

u 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
an

d 
ag

re
e 

th
at

 th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l i
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r y

ou
r u

se
 o

nl
y 

an
d 

th
at

 y
ou

 w
ill

 n
ot

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
e 

or
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
m

ak
e 

th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 a
ny

 
pe

rs
on

. W
el

lin
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

pa
ny

 l
lp

 is
 e

xe
m

pt
 fr

om
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t t
o 

ho
ld

 a
n 

A
us

tr
al

ia
n 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
lic

en
ce

 (A
FS

L)
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

C
or

po
ra

tio
ns

 A
ct

 2
0

01
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f fi
na

nc
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s,
 

in
 re

lia
nc

e 
on

 c
la

ss
 o

rd
er

 0
3/

11
0

0,
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 a

t t
he

 w
eb

 s
ite

 o
f t

he
 A

us
tr

al
ia

n 
S

ec
ur

iti
es

 a
nd

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 C
om

m
is

si
on

, h
tt

p:
//

w
w

w
.a

si
c.

go
v.

au
. T

he
 c

la
ss

 o
rd

er
 e

xe
m

pt
s 

a 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
is

er
 re

gu
la

te
d 

by
 th

e 
S

EC
, a

m
on

g 
ot

he
rs

, f
ro

m
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 h
ol

d 
an

 A
FS

L 
fo

r fi
na

nc
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 A
us

tr
al

ia
n 

w
ho

le
sa

le
 c

lie
nt

s 
on

 c
er

ta
in

 c
on

di
tio

ns
. F

in
an

ci
al

 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 W

el
lin

gt
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
pa

ny
 l

lp
 a

re
 re

gu
la

te
d 

by
 th

e 
S

EC
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

, w
hi

ch
 a

re
 d

iff
er

en
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

la
w

s 
ap

pl
yi

ng
 in

 
A

us
tr

al
ia

.  
  I

n 
Ja

pa
n,

 W
el

lin
gt

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t J
ap

an
 P

te
 L

td
 (W

M
 J

ap
an

) (
R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

N
um

be
r 1

9
95

0
49

87
R)

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 a
s 

a 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l I

ns
tr

um
en

ts
 F

ir
m

 w
ith

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 n

um
be

r:
 D

ire
ct

or
 

G
en

er
al

 o
f K

an
to

 L
oc

al
 F

in
an

ce
 B

ur
ea

u 
(K

in
-S

ho
) N

um
be

r 4
28

. W
M

 J
ap

an
 is

 a
 m

em
be

r o
f t

he
 J

ap
an

 In
ve

st
m

en
t A

dv
is

er
s 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

(J
IA

A)
 a

nd
 th

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t T
ru

st
s 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n,

 J
ap

an
 (I

TA
).

  
  

W
M

IL
, W

M
 H

on
g 

K
on

g,
 W

M
 J

ap
an

, a
nd

 W
M

 S
in

ga
po

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 a

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
dv

is
er

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
S

EC
; h

ow
ev

er
, t

he
y 

w
ill

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 U
S 

In
ve

st
m

en
t A

dv
is

er
s 

A
ct

 o
nl

y 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
ei

r U
S 

cl
ie

nt
s.

A
1

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 63 of 89



1
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.

C
ity

 o
f T

am
pa

 G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ir

em
en

t F
un

d 

Sm
al

l C
ap

 G
ro

w
th

Cl
ar

iV
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
LC

Fi
rs

t Q
ua

rte
r 2

01
6

36
11

 V
al

le
y 

Ce
nt

re
 D

riv
e,

 S
ui

te
 1

00
Sa

n 
Di

eg
o,

 C
A 

 9
21

30

M
ai

n:
 (8

58
) 4

80
-2

44
0

Fa
x:

 (8
58

) 4
80

-2
44

1

w
w

w
.c

la
riv

es
t.c

om

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 64 of 89



2
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.

W
hy

 C
la

riV
es

t?

1.
Se

as
on

ed
 T

ea
m

•
Tw

el
ve

 in
ve

st
m

en
t p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

, w
ith

 e
ig

ht
 o

f t
he

 m
em

be
rs

 h
av

in
g 

w
or

ke
d 

to
ge

th
er

 m
or

e 
th

an
 a

 d
ec

ad
e.

2.
O

ur
 P

hi
lo

so
ph

y

•
Fu

nd
am

en
ta

ls
 m

at
te

r, 
bu

t i
t i

s 
th

e 
in

te
ra

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 in

ve
st

or
 b

eh
av

io
r t

ha
t 

cr
ea

te
s 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty.

3.
  I

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
Ap

pr
oa

ch

•
In

te
gr

at
e 

re
se

ar
ch

, p
or

tfo
lio

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
an

d 
tra

di
ng

. 
Bl

en
d 

qu
an

tit
at

ive
 to

ol
s 

fo
r b

re
ad

th
 w

ith
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

l i
ns

ig
ht

 fo
r d

ep
th

. 

OVERVIEW

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 65 of 89



3
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.

In
ve

stm
en

t T
ea

m
St

ac
ey

 N
ut

t, 
Ph

.D
. –

Pr
es

id
en

t a
nd

 C
hi

ef
 In

ve
st

m
en

t O
ffi

ce
r

Pr
in

ci
pa

l a
nd

 L
ea

d 
Po

rtf
ol

io
 M

an
ag

er
•

T
en

 y
ea

rs
 a

t C
la

ri
V

es
t A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

•
Si

xt
ee

n 
ye

ar
s 

of
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 te

am
•

T
w

en
ty

-th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
•

Ph
.D

. –
G

eo
rg

ia
 I

ns
tit

ut
e 

of
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
•

M
.B

.A
. –

G
eo

rg
ia

 I
ns

tit
ut

e 
of

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

•
B

.S
. –

O
ra

l R
ob

er
ts

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity

Ry
an

 F
eg

ha
li

–
An

al
ys

t
•

T
w

o 
ye

ar
s 

at
 C

la
ri

V
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
•

T
w

o 
ye

ar
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
•

M
.B

.A
. –

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, S

an
 D

ie
go

 
•

B
.A

. –
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 S
ta

te
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

, F
ul

le
rt

on

Fr
an

k 
Fe

ng
, P

h.
D.

–
Pr

in
ci

pa
l a

nd
 L

ea
d 

Po
rtf

ol
io

 M
an

ag
er

•
T

en
 y

ea
rs

 a
t C

la
ri

V
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
•

Fi
ft

ee
n 

ye
ar

s 
of

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 te
am

•
E

ig
ht

ee
n 

ye
ar

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

•
Ph

.D
. –

G
eo

rg
ia

 S
ta

te
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 
•

M
.B

.A
. –

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f I
nt

er
na

tio
na

l B
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
E

co
no

m
ic

s 
 

•
B

.A
. –

Ji
ao

to
ng

U
ni

ve
rs

ity

Pr
iy

an
sh

u 
M

ut
re

ja
, C

FA
 –

Pr
in

ci
pa

l a
nd

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 P

or
tfo

lio
 M

an
ag

er
•

Se
ve

n 
ye

ar
s 

at
 C

la
ri

V
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
•

Se
ve

n 
ye

ar
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e
•

M
.F

.E
. –

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, B

er
ke

le
y

•
B

.S
. –

V
al

pa
ra

is
o 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity

Da
vi

d 
J.

 P
av

an
, C

FA
 –

Pr
in

ci
pa

l a
nd

 L
ea

d 
Po

rtf
ol

io
 M

an
ag

er
•

T
en

 y
ea

rs
 a

t C
la

ri
V

es
t A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

•
Si

xt
ee

n 
ye

ar
s 

of
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 te

am
•

T
w

en
ty

-th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e
•

M
.S

. –
C

ar
ne

gi
e 

M
el

lo
n 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
•

M
.B

.A
. –

Q
ue

en
’s

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
•

B
.M

at
h

–
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f W

at
er

lo
o

Ro
hi

tS
ar

m
a

–
An

al
ys

t
•

St
ar

te
d 

at
 C

la
ri

V
es

tA
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

M
ay

 2
01

6
•

Si
x 

ye
ar

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

•
M

.F
.E

. –
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f C

al
ifo

rn
ia

, B
er

ke
le

y
•

B
.T

ec
h

–
In

di
an

 In
st

itu
te

 o
f T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
M

ad
ra

s

Ae
ru

s 
Tr

an
 –

Pr
in

ci
pa

l
•

T
en

 y
ea

rs
 a

t C
la

ri
V

es
tA

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

•
Fi

ft
ee

n 
ye

ar
s 

of
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 te

am
•

T
w

en
ty

 y
ea

rs
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

•
B

.B
.A

. –
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f C

al
ifo

rn
ia

, R
iv

er
si

de

Al
ex

 T
ur

ne
r,

 C
FA

 –
Pr

in
ci

pa
l a

nd
 P

or
tfo

lio
 M

an
ag

er
•

Se
ve

n 
ye

ar
s 

at
 C

la
ri

V
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
•

E
le

ve
n 

ye
ar

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

•
B

.S
. –

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, B

er
ke

le
y

Da
vi

d 
Va

ug
hn

, C
FA

–
Pr

in
ci

pa
l a

nd
 L

ea
d 

Po
rtf

ol
io

 M
an

ag
er

•
T

en
 y

ea
rs

 a
t C

la
ri

V
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
•

T
hi

rt
ee

n 
ye

ar
s 

of
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 te

am
•

T
w

en
ty

 y
ea

rs
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

•
M

.S
. –

C
ar

ne
gi

e 
M

el
lo

n 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

•
B

.S
. –

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

Ed
 W

ag
ne

r,
 C

FA
–

Pr
in

ci
pa

l a
nd

 P
or

tfo
lio

 M
an

ag
er

•
E

ig
ht

 y
ea

rs
 a

t C
la

ri
V

es
t A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

•
T

w
el

ve
 y

ea
rs

 o
f e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 te

am
•

T
w

en
ty

-tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

•
M

.B
.A

. –
A

us
tr

al
ia

n 
G

ra
du

at
e 

Sc
ho

ol
 o

f M
an

ag
em

en
t

•
B

.A
. –

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, S

an
 D

ie
go

 

M
ik

e 
W

at
er

m
an

, C
FA

–
Pr

in
ci

pa
l a

nd
 P

or
tfo

lio
 M

an
ag

er
•

N
in

e 
ye

ar
s 

at
 C

la
ri

V
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
•

T
hi

rt
ee

n 
ye

ar
s 

of
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 te

am
•

Si
xt

ee
n 

ye
ar

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

•
M

iF
–

Lo
nd

on
 B

us
in

es
s 

Sc
ho

ol
•

B
.S

. –
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f C

al
ifo

rn
ia

, S
an

 D
ie

go

To
dd

 W
ol

te
r,

 C
FA

 –
Pr

in
ci

pa
l a

nd
 L

ea
d 

Po
rtf

ol
io

 M
an

ag
er

•
T

en
 y

ea
rs

 a
t C

la
ri

V
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
•

Si
xt

ee
n 

ye
ar

s 
of

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 te
am

•
T

w
en

ty
-o

ne
 y

ea
rs

 in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e
•

M
.B

.A
. –

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, I

rv
in

e
•

B
.A

. –
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f S

ou
th

er
n 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia

Ga
sh

i Z
en

ge
ni

, C
FA

 –
An

al
ys

t
•

St
ar

te
d 

at
 C

la
ri

V
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

15
•

N
in

e 
ye

ar
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e
•

B
Sc

 -
B

ri
st

ol
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

, U
K

  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 66 of 89



4
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.

Ph
ilo

so
ph

y
FOUNDATION

Hu
m

an
 e

m
ot

io
n/

be
ha

vi
or

 c
an

 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

bi
as

 in
to

 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 th

us
 m

ay
 

cr
ea

te
 m

ar
ke

t i
ne

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
.

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 67 of 89



5
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.

•
O

ur
 p

hi
lo

so
ph

y 
ce

nt
er

s 
on

 th
e 

in
te

ra
ct

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

ch
an

gi
ng

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
ls

 a
nd

 
in

ve
st

or
 b

eh
av

io
r

•
W

e 
be

lie
ve

 w
e 

ca
n 

“c
ap

tu
re

” 
th

e 
in

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

th
at

 e
xi

st
 b

et
w

ee
n 

in
tr

in
si

c 
va

lu
e 

an
d 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

s 
dr

iv
en

 b
y 

in
ve

st
or

 b
ia

s

•
W

e 
se

ek
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

un
de

ra
pp

re
ci

at
ed

 g
ro

w
th

In
ve

sti
ng

 in
 U

nd
er

ap
pr

ec
ia

te
d 

G
ro

w
th

PHILOSOPHY

Ci
ty

 o
f T

am
pa

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s 

(a
s 

of
 3

/3
1/

16
):

Ta
m

pa
R2

00
0G

Ac
tiv

e

Nu
m

be
r H

ol
di

ng
s

13
9

11
81

W
td

 A
vg

 M
ar

ke
t C

ap
 ($

B)
$1

.9
7 

$2
.0

3 

5-
Yr

 H
ist

or
ica

l E
PS

 G
ro

w
th

11
.3

12
.2

-0
.9

1-
Yr

 H
ist

or
ica

l E
PS

 G
ro

w
th

21
.9

11
.1

10
.7

Cu
rr

en
t P

/E
16

.7
21

.7
-5

.0

1-
Yr

 F
or

ec
as

t P
/E

14
.7

19
.0

-4
.3

Di
vid

en
d 

Yi
el

d
0.

8
0.

8
0.

0

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 68 of 89



6
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.

O
ur

 P
ro

ce
ss

 in
 T

w
o 

St
ag

es

PROCESS
O

ve
rv

ie
w

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 69 of 89



7
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.

Po
rt

fo
lio

 P
ro

fil
e

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s:

Ci
ty

 o
f T

am
pa

 -
Sm

al
l C

ap
 G

ro
w

th
 (a

s 
of

 3
/3

1/
16

)

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n

Pr
of

ile
 &

 O
bj

ec
tiv

es
:

Se
ct

or
 W

ei
gh

ts
:

Re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
Ho

ld
in

gs
*:

RESULTS

*T
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

de
sc

rib
ed

 d
o 

no
t r

ep
re

se
nt

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
se

cu
rit

ie
s 

pu
rc

ha
se

d,
 s

ol
d 

or
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
fo

r c
lie

nt
 a

cc
ou

nt
s.

 T
he

 re
ad

er
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t a
ss

um
e 

th
at

 a
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
se

cu
rit

ie
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

as
 o

r w
ill 

be
 p

ro
fit

ab
le

. 

Ta
m

pa
R2

00
0G

Ac
tiv

e

Nu
m

be
r H

ol
di

ng
s

13
9

11
81

W
td

 A
vg

 M
ar

ke
t C

ap
 ($

B)
$1

.9
7 

$2
.0

3 

5-
Yr

 H
ist

or
ica

l E
PS

 G
ro

w
th

11
.3

12
.2

-0
.9

1-
Yr

 H
ist

or
ica

l E
PS

 G
ro

w
th

21
.9

11
.1

10
.7

Cu
rr

en
t P

/E
16

.7
21

.7
-5

.0

1-
Yr

 F
or

ec
as

t P
/E

14
.7

19
.0

-4
.3

Di
vid

en
d 

Yi
el

d
0.

8
0.

8
0.

0

29
.0

25
.7

17
.5

12
.7

6.
2

4.
7

2.
0

1.
4

0.
4

0.
0

25
.5

23
.7

18
.2

14
.1

4.
3

8.
4

1.
0

3.
6

1.
0

0.
1

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy

He
al

th
 C

ar
e

Co
ns

um
er

 D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry

In
du

st
ria

ls

M
at

er
ia

ls

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

Co
ns

um
er

 S
ta

pl
es

En
er

gy

Ut
ili

tie
s

Ci
ty

 o
f T

am
pa

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

Gr
ow

th

Cl
ar

iV
es

t S
m

al
l C

ap
 G

ro
w

th
Ex

ce
ss

 R
et

ur
n

3-
5%

Tr
ac

ki
ng

 E
rr

or
3-

6%
# 

of
 H

ol
di

ng
s

10
0-

20
0 

St
oc

ks
Tu

rn
ov

er
10

0-
20

0%

St
oc

k
%

 o
f P

or
tfo

lio
Va

il 
Re

so
rts

, I
nc

.
1.

94
%

PA
RE

XE
L 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
or

po
ra

tio
n

1.
63

%
Bo

yd
 G

am
in

g 
Co

rp
or

at
io

n
1.

58
%

M
ic

ro
se

m
i C

or
po

ra
tio

n
1.

46
%

Ex
pr

es
s,

 In
c.

1.
42

%
Tr

in
se

o 
SA

1.
42

%
M

an
ha

tta
n 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
.

1.
34

%
Ha

w
ai

ia
n 

Ho
ld

in
gs

, I
nc

.
1.

32
%

Le
id

os
 H

ol
di

ng
s,

 In
c.

1.
31

%
Em

er
ge

nt
 B

io
So

lu
tio

ns
 In

c.
1.

30
%

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 70 of 89



8
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.

Po
rt

fo
lio

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

*In
ce

pt
io

n 
da

te
 o

f 3
/1

6/
20

06

Ci
ty

 o
f T

am
pa

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n

RESULTS

QT
D

1-
Ye

ar
3-

Ye
ar

5 
Ye

ar
IT

D*

Gr
os

s
-3

.6
9

-8
.4

4
10

.4
7

9.
84

4.
86

Ne
t

-3
.9

0
-9

.2
2

9.
54

8.
91

3.
97

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

Gr
ow

th
-4

.6
8

-1
1.

84
7.

91
7.

70
5.

94

-1
5

-1
0-5051015

Percent
Ci

ty
 o

f T
am

pa
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

s 
of

 3
/3

1/
20

16

AU
M

 (a
s 

of
 3

/3
1/

16
): 

   
$1

4,
30

8,
92

4

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 71 of 89



9
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.

Po
rt

fo
lio

 A
ttr

ib
ut

io
n

Ci
ty

 o
f T

am
pa

 (3
/3

1/
15

 to
 3

/3
1/

16
)

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n

RESULTS

*P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 th
es

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 n
um

be
rs

 d
o 

no
t r

ef
le

ct
 in

tra
da

y 
ef

fe
ct

s.

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
TA

M
PA

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

G
ro

w
th

V
ar

ia
tio

n
A

tt
ri

bu
tio

n 
A

na
ly

si
s

Po
rt

.
Po

rt
.

Po
rt

.
Be

nc
h.

Be
nc

h.
Be

nc
h.

A
ve

ra
ge

To
ta

l
C

on
tr

ib
.

A
ve

ra
ge

To
ta

l
C

on
tr

ib
.

A
ve

ra
ge

To
ta

l
C

on
tr

ib
.

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
To

 R
et

ur
n

A
llo

ca
tio

n
Se

le
ct

io
n 

+
To

ta
l

E
co

no
m

ic
 S

ec
to

r
W

ei
gh

t
Re

tu
rn

To
 R

et
ur

n
W

ei
gh

t
Re

tu
rn

To
 R

et
ur

n
Di

ff
er

en
ce

Di
ff

er
en

ce
Di

ff
er

en
ce

Ef
fe

ct
In

te
ra

ct
io

n
Ef

fe
ct

C
on

su
m

er
 D

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

17
.7

6
-9

.0
2

-1
.3

1
17

.3
4

-1
0.

96
-1

.6
1

0.
42

1.
94

0.
30

-0
.1

0
0.

47
0.

37
C

on
su

m
er

 S
ta

pl
es

2.
73

27
.4

0
0.

69
3.

60
-3

.2
4

-0
.0

7
-0

.8
8

30
.6

4
0.

75
-0

.0
6

0.
73

0.
67

En
er

gy
0.

70
-3

5.
59

-0
.2

8
1.

65
-4

7.
65

-0
.7

7
-0

.9
4

12
.0

6
0.

48
0.

27
0.

17
0.

45
Fi

na
nc

ia
ls

5.
38

-4
.4

0
-0

.1
5

7.
75

0.
86

0.
12

-2
.3

7
-5

.2
6

-0
.2

6
-0

.3
4

-0
.3

1
-0

.6
5

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e

28
.1

2
-1

1.
71

-4
.6

8
26

.3
3

-2
1.

58
-7

.3
3

1.
78

9.
88

2.
64

-0
.5

2
3.

37
2.

84
In

du
st

ria
ls

11
.5

5
-1

8.
29

-1
.5

2
13

.3
6

-1
0.

00
-0

.8
8

-1
.8

2
-8

.2
8

-0
.6

4
0.

03
-0

.9
3

-0
.8

9
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

27
.2

4
-2

.7
9

-0
.4

7
24

.7
8

-5
.0

2
-0

.8
8

2.
46

2.
23

0.
41

0.
05

0.
62

0.
67

M
at

er
ia

ls
4.

41
-1

2.
75

-0
.4

0
4.

13
-1

5.
70

-0
.5

4
0.

28
2.

95
0.

13
0.

01
0.

25
0.

26
Te

le
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s

1.
18

2.
23

-0
.1

0
0.

88
12

.0
6

0.
12

0.
30

-9
.8

3
-0

.2
2

0.
01

-0
.2

8
-0

.2
7

U
til

iti
es

--
--

--
0.

17
-7

.1
1

--
-0

.1
7

7.
11

--
-0

.0
2

--
-0

.0
2

To
ta

l
10

0.
00

-8
.2

3
-8

.2
3

10
0.

00
-1

1.
83

-1
1.

83
--

3.
60

3.
60

-0
.5

0
4.

10
3.

60

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 72 of 89



10
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.
Pl

ea
se

 s
ee

 th
e 

di
sc

lo
su

re
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

on
tin

ue
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

xt
 p

ag
e.

DISCLOSURES
Sm

al
l C

ap
 G

ro
w

th
C

la
ri

V
es

t 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
is

cl
os

u
re

s
Sm

al
l C

ap
 G

ro
w

th
 

 

Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

IR
M

 
A

SS
E

T
S 

($
M

IL
L

IO
N

S)
 

C
O

M
P

O
SI

T
E

 
A

SS
E

T
S 

($
M

IL
L

IO
N

S)
 

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

S 
IN

 
C

O
M

P
O

SI
T

E
 

A
N

N
U

A
L

 
C

O
M

P
O

SI
T

E
 

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
   

   
   

(G
R

O
SS

 O
F

 F
E

E
S)

 

A
N

N
U

A
L

 
C

O
M

P
O

SI
T

E
 

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
   

   
  

(N
E

T
 O

F
 F

E
E

S)
 

R
U

SS
E

L
L

 2
00

0 
G

R
O

W
T

H
 

C
O

M
P

O
SI

T
E

 
D

IS
P

E
R

SI
O

N
 

C
O

M
P

O
SI

T
E

 3
-

Y
R

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 
D

E
V

IA
T

IO
N

 

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K
 3

-
Y

R
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 

D
E

V
IA

T
IO

N
 

20
06

1  
68

2 
30

1 
5 

or
 fe

w
er

4.
29

%
 

3.
79

%
 

2.
36

%
 

N
/A

1  
N

/A
2  

N
/A

2  

20
07

 
40

21
 

61
1 

6 
3.

55
%

 
2.

97
%

 
7.

05
%

 
N

/A
1  

N
/A

2  
N

/A
2  

20
08

 
29

88
 

34
5 

6 
-4

1.
57

%
 

-4
1.

97
%

 
-3

8.
54

%
 

0.
03

%
 

N
/A

2  
N

/A
2  

20
09

 
21

74
 

45
4 

6 
19

.6
3%

 
18

.8
2%

 
34

.4
7%

 
0.

07
%

 
23

.6
6%

 
24

.8
5%

 

20
10

 
26

30
 

17
7 

5 
or

 fe
w

er
30

.1
3%

 
29

.1
8%

 
29

.0
9%

 
N

/A
1  

26
.6

8%
 

27
.7

0%
 

20
11

 
25

18
 

17
5 

5 
or

 fe
w

er
-3

.6
3%

 
-4

.4
0%

 
-2

.9
1%

 
N

/A
1  

24
.3

2%
 

24
.3

1%
 

20
12

 
31

13
 

17
8 

5 
or

 fe
w

er
18

.0
9%

 
17

.1
7%

 
14

.5
9%

 
N

/A
1  

21
.2

3%
 

20
.7

2%
 

20
13

 
34

09
 

22
5 

5 
or

 fe
w

er
49

.0
0%

 
47

.8
6%

 
43

.3
0%

 
N

/A
1  

17
.8

6%
 

17
.2

7%
 

20
14

 
38

54
 

23
5 

5 
or

 fe
w

er
5.

09
%

 
4.

27
%

 
5.

60
%

 
N

/A
1  

12
.8

4%
 

13
.8

2%
 

20
15

 
46

15
 

22
7 

5 
or

 fe
w

er
2.

69
%

 
1.

88
%

 
-1

.3
8%

 
N

/A
1  

13
.7

2%
 

14
.9

5%
 

 1 R
es

ul
ts

 sh
ow

n 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r 2
00

6 
re

pr
es

en
t p

ar
tia

l p
er

io
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 fr

om
 M

ar
ch

 1
6,

 2
00

6 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
6 

N
.A

.1 
– 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is 
no

t s
ta

tis
tic

all
y 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l d

ue
 to

 a
n 

in
su

ffi
ci

en
t n

um
be

r o
f p

or
tfo

lio
s i

n 
th

e 
co

m
po

sit
e 

fo
r t

he
 e

nt
ire

 y
ea

r. 
N

.A
.2 

– 
Th

re
e-

ye
ar

 st
an

da
rd

 d
ev

iat
io

n 
is 

on
ly

 sh
ow

n 
w

he
re

 3
 y

ea
rs

 o
f d

at
a 

ar
e a

va
ila

bl
e.

 
 20

16
 gr

oss
 a

nd
 n

et 
qu

ar
ter

ly 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce 

for
 th

e c
om

po
sit

e i
s a

s f
oll

ow
s: 

 1
Q

16
: -

3.
70

%
 an

d -
3.

90
%

 re
sp

ect
ive

ly.
  2

01
6 

qu
ar

ter
ly 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce 

is 
as

 fo
llo

ws
: 1

Q
16

: -
4.

68
%

. 
 Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 r

es
ul

ts
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
“g

ro
ss

” 
an

d 
“n

et
” 

of
 in

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ee
s, 

an
d 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
re

in
ve

st
m

en
t o

f d
iv

id
en

ds
 a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l g
ain

s. 
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 r

es
ul

ts
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 U
.S

. 
do

lla
rs

.  
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 re
tu

rn
s i

nc
lu

de
 p

or
tfo

lio
s u

nd
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t w

hi
ch

 a
re

 d
isc

re
tio

na
ry

 in
st

itu
tio

na
l a

cc
ou

nt
s w

ith
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 ri

sk
s. 

 Cl
ar

iV
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
LC

 (t
he

 “
Fi

rm
”)

 d
oe

s 
no

t g
ua

ra
nt

ee
 a

ny
 m

in
im

um
 le

ve
l o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

r t
he

 s
uc

ce
ss

 o
f a

ny
 in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tra

te
gy

.  
It

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
as

su
m

ed
 

th
at

 fu
tu

re
 re

su
lts

 o
f a

ny
 p

ro
du

ct
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

of
ita

bl
e 

or
 si

m
ila

r t
o 

pa
st

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

.  
A

s w
ith

 a
ny

 in
ve

st
m

en
t, 

th
er

e 
is 

a 
po

te
nt

ial
 fo

r p
ro

fit
 a

s w
ell

 a
s t

he
 p

os
sib

ili
ty

 o
f l

os
s. 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
ris

ks
as

so
cia

te
d 

w
ith

 in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 a 
pr

od
uc

t o
f t

hi
s t

yp
e, 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s m

ay
 v

ar
y o

ve
r t

im
e a

s a
 re

su
lt 

of
 ch

an
gi

ng
 m

ar
ke

t c
on

di
tio

ns
, e

co
no

m
ic 

in
st

ab
ili

ty
, i

nv
es

tm
en

t d
ec

isi
on

s a
nd

 th
e 

co
m

po
sit

io
n

of
 th

e 
po

rtf
ol

io
.  

 Th
e 

Sm
all

 C
ap

 G
ro

w
th

 c
om

po
sit

e 
in

clu
de

s a
ll 

di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 a
cc

ou
nt

s p
rim

ar
ily

 in
ve

st
ed

 in
 S

m
all

 C
ap

 G
ro

w
th

 e
qu

iti
es

.  
Se

cu
rit

ies
 in

 S
m

all
 C

ap
 G

ro
w

th
 c

om
po

sit
e 

po
rtf

ol
io

s a
re

 p
rim

ar
ily

 
se

lec
te

d 
fr

om
 an

 in
ve

st
m

en
t u

ni
ve

rs
e t

ha
t i

nc
lu

de
s a

ll 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 tr
ad

ed
 o

n 
U

S 
ex

ch
an

ge
s w

ith
in

 th
e m

ar
ke

t c
ap

ita
liz

at
io

n 
ra

ng
e o

f t
he

 R
us

se
ll 

20
00

 G
ro

w
th

 In
de

x.
  I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 in

 eq
ui

tie
s 

ar
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
ris

k 
th

at
 s

to
ck

 p
ric

es
 w

ill
 fa

ll 
ov

er
 s

ho
rt 

or
 lo

ng
 p

er
io

ds
 o

f t
im

e. 
In

 th
e 

pa
st

, t
he

 e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke

ts
 h

av
e 

m
ov

ed
 in

 c
yc

le
s, 

an
d 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
 c

lie
nt

’s 
eq

ui
ty

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 m

ay
 

flu
ct

ua
te

 d
ra

st
ica

lly
 fr

om
 d

ay
 to

 d
ay

.  
Th

e s
m

all
 an

d 
m

id
 ca

pi
ta

liz
at

io
n 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 th

at
 th

is 
co

m
po

sit
e i

nv
es

ts
 in

 m
ay

 b
e m

or
e v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e t
o 

ad
ve

rs
e b

us
in

es
s o

r e
co

no
m

ic
 ev

en
ts

 th
an

 la
rg

er
,

m
or

e 
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

 c
om

pa
ni

es
, a

nd
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

or
e 

vo
lat

ile
 th

an
 th

os
e 

of
 la

rg
er

 c
om

pa
ni

es
. T

he
se

 se
cu

rit
ie

s m
ay

 b
e 

tra
de

d 
ov

er
-th

e-
co

un
te

r o
r l

ist
ed

 o
n 

an
 e

xc
ha

ng
e. 

A
cc

ou
nt

s a
re

 in
clu

de
d 

in
 

th
e 

co
m

po
sit

e 
on

ce
 th

ey
 a

re
 fu

lly
 tr

an
sit

io
ne

d 
to

 o
ur

 in
ve

st
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
. 

 Th
e 

Sm
all

 C
ap

 G
ro

w
th

 c
om

po
sit

e 
w

as
 c

re
at

ed
 o

n 
3/

16
/2

00
6 

an
d 

is 
m

an
ag

ed
 to

 a
 sm

all
 c

ap
 g

ro
w

th
 st

ra
te

gy
.  

Pr
io

r t
o 

A
ug

us
t 1

, 2
00

6,
 th

e 
co

m
po

sit
e 

co
ns

ist
s e

nt
ire

ly 
of

 n
on

-fe
e-

pa
yin

g 
ac

co
un

ts
, a

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
“n

et
” 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 n
um

be
rs

 s
ho

w
n 

in
clu

de
 th

e 
fe

es
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

aid
 h

ad
 th

es
e 

be
en

 fe
e-

pa
yin

g 
ac

co
un

ts
, c

alc
ul

at
ed

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t a

pp
lic

ab
le 

an
nu

al 
m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ee

 sc
he

du
le 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 th

e 
Fi

rm
’s 

Fo
rm

 A
D

V
, a

s s
et

 fo
rth

 b
elo

w
: 

 
Fi

rs
t $

25
,0

00
,0

00
   

   
   

.8
5%

 
N

ex
t $

50
,0

00
,0

00
   

   
   

.7
5%

 
O

ve
r $

75
,0

00
,0

00
   

   
  .

70
%

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 73 of 89



11
cl

ar
iv

es
t.c

om
   

   
 | 

  
Th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
 a

re
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.

DISCLOSURES
Sm

al
l C

ap
 G

ro
w

th
A

fte
r A

ug
us

t 1
, 2

00
6,

 th
e 

Sm
all

 C
ap

 G
ro

w
th

 c
om

po
sit

e 
co

ns
ist

s e
nt

ire
ly 

of
 fe

e-
pa

yi
ng

 a
cc

ou
nt

s. 
 T

he
 “

ne
t”

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 n
um

be
rs

 sh
ow

n 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ac
tu

al 
fe

e 
ra

te
 in

cu
rr

ed
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t 
to

 e
ac

h 
ac

co
un

t. 
 A

ct
ua

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t a

dv
iso

ry
 fe

es
 in

cu
rr

ed
 b

y 
cli

en
ts

 m
ay

 v
ar

y.
 

 Be
gi

nn
in

g 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
00

7,
 ac

co
un

ts
 w

ith
 in

flo
w

s o
r o

ut
flo

w
s g

re
at

er
 th

an
 2

0%
 o

f a
cc

ou
nt

 v
alu

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 ta
ke

 m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 b

us
in

es
s d

ay
 to

 in
ve

st
 a

re
 e

xc
lu

de
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

co
m

po
sit

e.
 

 Th
e 

an
nu

al 
co

m
po

sit
e 

di
sp

er
sio

n 
is 

an
 a

ss
et

-w
eig

ht
ed

 st
an

da
rd

 d
ev

iat
io

n 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 fo
r t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s i

n 
th

e 
co

m
po

sit
e 

th
e 

en
tir

e 
ye

ar
.  

 In
de

x 
Re

tu
rn

s a
re

 o
bt

ain
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
w

eb
sit

e: 
 w

w
w

.ru
ss

ell
.co

m
.  

Th
e 

Ru
ss

ell
 2

00
0 

G
ro

w
th

 G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s I
nd

ex
 is

 th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k,
 a

nd
 is

 sh
ow

n 
fo

r c
om

pa
ris

on
 p

ur
po

se
s o

nl
y.

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 c
an

 n
ot

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k.
  I

nv
es

to
rs

 c
an

no
t i

nv
es

t i
n 

a b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

di
re

ct
ly.

 
 Fr

an
k 

Ru
ss

el
l C

om
pa

ny
 is

 th
e 

so
ur

ce
 a

nd
 o

w
ne

r o
f t

he
 tr

ad
em

ar
ks

, s
er

vi
ce

 m
ar

ks
 a

nd
 c

op
yr

ig
ht

s r
el

at
ed

 to
 th

e 
Ru

ss
ell

 In
de

xe
s. 

Ru
ss

ell
®

 is
 a

 tr
ad

em
ar

k 
of

 F
ra

nk
 R

us
se

ll 
Co

m
pa

ny
. A

ny
 

fu
rth

er
 d

isc
lo

su
re

, c
op

yi
ng

, d
iss

em
in

at
io

n 
or

 re
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
is 

str
ict

ly 
pr

oh
ib

ite
d.

 F
ra

nk
 R

us
se

ll 
Co

m
pa

ny
 is

 n
ot

 re
sp

on
sib

le 
fo

r t
he

 fo
rm

at
tin

g 
or

 c
on

fig
ur

at
io

n 
of

 th
is 

m
at

er
ial

 o
r f

or
 a

ny
 

in
ac

cu
ra

cy
 in

 C
lar

iV
es

t‘s
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

th
er

eo
f. 

 Th
e 

Fi
rm

 c
lai

m
s c

om
pl

ian
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

G
lo

ba
l I

nv
es

tm
en

t P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (G

IP
S)

®
 a

nd
 h

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

an
d 

pr
es

en
te

d 
th

is 
re

po
rt 

in
 c

om
pl

ian
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

G
IP

S 
st

an
da

rd
s. 

 T
he

 F
irm

ha
s b

ee
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 v
er

ifi
ed

 fo
r t

he
 p

er
io

d 
M

ar
ch

 9
, 2

00
6 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5.
  T

he
 v

er
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

po
rts

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
up

on
 re

qu
es

t. 
  

 V
er

ifi
ca

tio
n 

as
se

ss
es

 w
he

th
er

 (
1)

 t
he

 f
irm

 h
as

 c
om

pl
ied

 w
ith

 a
ll 

th
e 

co
m

po
sit

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
G

IP
S 

st
an

da
rd

s 
on

 a
 f

irm
-w

id
e 

ba
sis

 a
nd

 (
2)

 th
e 

fir
m

’s 
po

lic
ies

 a
nd

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
re

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 c
alc

ul
at

e 
an

d 
pr

es
en

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 c

om
pl

ian
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

G
IP

S 
st

an
da

rd
s. 

 V
er

ifi
ca

tio
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
f a

ny
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
co

m
po

sit
e 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n.

 
 Th

e 
Fi

rm
 h

as
 u

se
d 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 re

su
lts

.  
A

ll 
su

ch
 th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
as

 o
bt

ain
ed

 fr
om

 so
ur

ce
s t

ha
t t

he
 F

irm
 b

eli
ev

es
 a

re
 re

lia
bl

e.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 F
irm

 d
oe

s n
ot

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
 th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
, a

de
qu

ac
y 

or
 c

om
pl

et
en

es
s o

f t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 
 Cl

ar
iV

es
t A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t L

LC
 is

 a 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
ise

r u
nd

er
 th

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t A
dv

ise
rs

 A
ct

 o
f 1

94
0 

w
ith

 th
e 

U
.S

. S
ec

ur
iti

es
 an

d 
E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n.

  F
ou

nd
ed

 in
 2

00
6,

 th
e 

Fi
rm

 m
an

ag
es

 d
om

es
tic

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
qu

ity
 p

or
tfo

lio
s p

rim
ar

ily
 fo

r i
ns

tit
ut

io
na

l c
lie

nt
s. 

 A
 li

st
 o

f c
om

po
sit

e 
de

sc
rip

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ol

ici
es

 fo
r v

alu
in

g 
po

rtf
ol

io
s, 

ca
lcu

lat
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
,

an
d 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
co

m
pl

ian
t p

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
up

on
 re

qu
es

t. 
 F

or
 m

or
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t a

ny
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

du
ct

s 
av

ail
ab

le
 fr

om
 C

lar
iV

es
t, 

in
clu

di
ng

 m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ee
s 

an
d

ot
he

r c
ha

rg
es

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

s, 
or

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
a 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

th
at

 c
om

pl
ies

 w
ith

 th
e 

G
IP

S 
st

an
da

rd
s, 

pl
ea

se
 c

all
 8

58
-4

80
-2

44
0.

   
 Li

st
 o

f c
om

po
sit

e 
de

sc
rip

tio
ns

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

up
on

 re
qu

es
t. 

 E
ag

le 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (

“E
ag

le”
) p

ur
ch

as
ed

 4
5 

pe
rc

en
t o

f C
lar

iV
es

t A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t L
LC

 (“
Cl

ar
iV

es
t”

) i
n 

20
12

, c
re

at
in

g 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
re

lat
io

ns
hi

p 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ad
di

tio
na

l d
ist

rib
ut

io
n 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s f

or
 C

lar
iV

es
t p

ro
du

ct
s. 

E
ag

le 
en

te
re

d 
in

to
 a 

Sa
le

s, 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

Cl
ien

t S
er

vi
ce

s A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 C

lar
iV

es
t. 

 In
 2

01
6,

 th
at

 ag
re

em
en

t w
as

 as
sig

ne
d 

to
 C

ar
ill

on
 T

ow
er

 A
dv

ise
rs

 
(“

CT
A

”)
, a

n 
af

fil
iat

e 
of

 E
ag

le
.  

Pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t, 

Cl
ar

iV
es

t, 
an

 a
ffi

lia
te

 o
f C

TA
, h

as
 re

ta
in

ed
 C

TA
 to

 a
ct

 a
s a

 so
lic

ito
r o

n 
Cl

ar
iV

es
t’s

 b
eh

alf
, w

he
re

by
 C

TA
 in

tro
du

ce
s p

ro
sp

ec
tiv

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
dv

iso
ry

 c
lie

nt
s 

to
 C

lar
iV

es
t. 

Cl
ar

iV
es

t p
ay

s 
CT

A
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ee
 C

lar
iV

es
t r

ec
eiv

es
 fr

om
 c

er
ta

in
 in

ve
st

m
en

t c
lie

nt
s 

w
ho

 e
ng

ag
e 

Cl
ar

iV
es

t
du

rin
g 

th
e 

te
rm

 o
f t

he
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

al,
 E

ag
le 

ha
s e

nt
er

ed
 in

to
 a 

se
rv

ic
e 

ag
re

em
en

t w
ith

 C
lar

iV
es

t f
or

 sh
ar

in
g 

ce
rta

in
 p

er
so

nn
el 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 
 Th

is 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

an
y 

in
ve

st
m

en
t t

o 
w

hi
ch

 th
is 

do
cu

m
en

t r
ela

te
s 

is 
in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r t
he

 s
ol

e 
us

e 
of

 th
e 

pe
rs

on
s 

to
 w

ho
m

 it
 is

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
, b

ein
g 

pe
rs

on
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 E
lig

ib
le

 
Co

un
te

rp
ar

tie
s 

or
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l C

lie
nt

s 
as

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 th
e 

U
K

’s 
Fi

na
nc

ial
 C

on
du

ct
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ru
les

 o
r 

pe
rs

on
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 in
 A

rti
cle

s 
19

(5
) (

In
ve

st
m

en
t p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls)

 o
r 4

9(
2)

 (H
ig

h 
ne

t
w

or
th

 c
om

pa
ni

es
, u

ni
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
as

so
cia

tio
ns

, e
tc

.) 
of

 T
he

 F
in

an
cia

l S
er

vi
ce

s a
nd

 M
ar

ke
ts

 A
ct

 2
00

0 
(F

in
an

ci
al 

Pr
om

ot
io

n)
 O

rd
er

 2
00

5 
(a

s 
am

en
de

d)
 o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

er
so

n 
to

 w
ho

m
 th

is 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

m
ay

 la
w

fu
lly

 b
e 

di
re

ct
ed

.  
It

 is
 n

ot
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 b
e 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 o

r p
as

se
d 

on
, d

ire
ct

ly 
or

 in
di

re
ct

ly,
 to

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 c

las
s o

f p
er

so
ns

 a
nd

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
lie

d 
up

on
 b

y 
su

ch
 p

er
so

ns
 a

nd
 

is 
th

er
ef

or
e 

no
t i

nt
en

de
d 

fo
r 

pr
iv

at
e 

in
di

vi
du

als
 o

r 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
cla

ss
ifi

ed
 a

s 
Re

ta
il 

Cl
ien

ts
. A

ny
 v

iew
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
en

ta
ry

 a
re

 t
he

 v
iew

s 
of

 th
e 

au
th

or
 a

nd
 a

re
 n

ot
 o

b j
ec

tiv
e 

or
in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e d
oe

s n
ot

 co
ns

tit
ut

e I
nv

es
tm

en
t R

es
ea

rc
h.

  T
he

 v
iew

s a
re

 n
ot

 a 
pe

rs
on

al 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
an

d 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

as
se

ss
ed

 as
 to

 w
he

th
er

 o
r n

ot
 th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 b
e s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r a

ny
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 in
ve

st
or

.  
A

ny
 p

ric
es

 o
r q

uo
ta

tio
ns

 in
 th

is 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
ar

e i
nd

ica
tiv

e o
nl

y a
nd

 ar
e s

ub
jec

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
 w

ith
ou

t n
ot

ice
 an

d 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e u
se

d 
or

 re
lie

d 
up

on
 fo

r a
ny

 p
ur

po
se

.
 If

 h
ol

di
ng

s a
re

 in
clu

de
d,

 th
ey

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s o

nl
y 

an
d 

ar
e 

in
 n

o 
w

ay
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 b
e 

a 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
or

 th
e 

sa
le 

of
 a

ny
 se

cu
rit

y. 
Th

e 
Fi

rm
, i

ts
 

af
fil

iat
es

 o
r t

he
ir 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
po

sit
io

n 
in

 th
e 

se
cu

rit
ies

 li
st

ed
. T

he
 h

ol
di

ng
s, 

if 
in

clu
de

d,
 a

re
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 fo
r a

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
po

rtf
ol

io
 a

s o
f e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
da

te
s n

ot
ed

. 
 Th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
he

re
in

 is
 fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s 

on
ly 

an
d 

is 
no

t a
 d

ist
rib

ut
io

n,
 o

ffe
r t

o 
se

ll 
or

 s
ol

ic
ita

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
of

fe
r t

o 
bu

y 
se

cu
rit

ie
s. 

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

he
re

in
 s

ha
ll 

no
t c

on
st

itu
te

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t, 
ta

x,
 le

ga
l o

r o
th

er
 a

dv
ice

. I
nv

es
to

rs
 sh

ou
ld

 c
on

sid
er

 th
eir

 in
ve

st
m

en
t o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 b
ef

or
e 

in
ve

st
in

g 
an

d 
m

ay
 w

ish
 to

 c
on

su
lt 

ot
he

r a
dv

iso
rs

.  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 74 of 89



 

 

 
 

 

 

General Employees Retirement Fund 

Fund’s Net Investment Return 
 

Actual Rate of Return for the Period 
 

October 1, 2015 – March 31, 2016 

DROP Option 1: +3.49% 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Past performance is not an indicator of future results. 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 75 of 89



C
it

y
 o

f 
T

a
m

p
a

, 
F

lo
ri

d
a

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 R
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t 

F
u

n
d

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

C
a

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
D

ro
p

 R
a

te
 o

f 
R

e
tu

rn
 

F
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 e
n

d
e

d
 M

a
rc

h
 3

1
, 

2
0

1
6

C
a

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

 O
f 

N
e

t 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
R

a
te

 O
f 

R
e

tu
rn

F
o

r 
T

h
e

 P
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
1

0
/0

1
/2

0
1

5
 -

 0
3

/3
1

/2
0

1
6

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

S
B

e
g

in
n

in
g

 A
s

s
e

ts
 A

v
a

il
a

b
le

 +
 (

(T
o

ta
l 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

)-
(T

o
ta

l 
D

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

))
/2

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

:
E

m
pl

oy
er

$
8,

00
4,

93
5

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s

24
,4

57
S

ta
te

 o
f F

lo
rid

a 
0

21
,7

85
,7

22
O

th
er

0
To

ta
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
8,

02
9,

39
2

In
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s:

In
te

re
st

 a
nd

 d
iv

id
en

ds
4,

81
7,

12
0

N
et

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

of
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
18

,6
34

,2
70

To
ta

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s

23
,4

51
,3

90
Le

ss
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

1,
66

5,
66

8
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s
21

,7
85

,7
22

To
ta

l a
dd

iti
on

s,
 n

et
29

,8
15

,1
14

D
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

S

P
en

si
on

 b
en

ef
its

21
,6

55
,0

24
W

ith
dr

aw
al

 p
ay

m
en

ts
11

6,
68

5
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

0
To

ta
l d

ed
uc

tio
ns

21
,7

71
,7

09
3

.4
9

%
(F

o
r 

th
e

 S
ix

 M
o

n
th

s
)

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s
8,

04
3,

40
5

6
.9

9
%

(A
n

n
u

a
li

z
e

d
)

N
e

t 
a

s
s

e
ts

 -
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

63
0,

23
6,

66
8

N
e

t 
a

s
s

e
ts

 -
 e

n
d

in
g

$
6

3
8

,2
8

0
,0

7
3

O
r

N
e

t 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
E

a
rn

in
g

s

O
r

O
r

21
,7

85
,7

22

O
r

21
,7

85
,7

22
62

3,
36

5,
51

0

62
3,

36
5,

51
0

G
e

n
e

ra
l

62
3,

36
5,

51
0

F
u

n
d

R
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 76 of 89



 

 

 
 

 

General Employees Retirement Fund 

 
Actual 2a-7 Money Market Fund  

Rate of Return 
(Low Risk, Variable Rate) 

  
October 1, 2015 – March 31, 2016 

 
 

DROP Option 2:  +0.04% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Past performance is not an indicator of future results. 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 77 of 89



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 78 of 89



 

 

 
 

 

 

General Employees Retirement Fund 

 
JP Morgan Funds – Daily Rate  

U.S. Government Money Market Fund 
 

Annualized Rate of Return  
As of June 1, 2016 

 
DROP Holding Account Rate: +0.14% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Account where DROP participant’ funds are held until payout date. 
 

Past performance is not an indicator of future results. 

 
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 79 of 89



J
P

M
o

rg
a

n
 F

u
n

d
s
 -

 D
a

il
y
 R

a
te

 R
e
p

o
rt

0
6

/0
1

/2
0

1
6

T
A

F
u

n
d

 #

F
u

n
d

 N
a

m
e

T
ic

k
e
r

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

F
a
c
to

r*

1
 D

a
y

S
im

p
le

7
 D

a
y

A
v
g

7
 D

a
y

S
E

C

3
0
 D

a
y

A
v
g

W
A

M
W

A
L

N
e
t 

A
s
s
e
ts

A
g

e
n

c
y

V
M

IX
X

 0
.3

3
%

 0
.3

3
%

 0
.3

3
%

 0
.3

3
%

0
.0

0
0

0
0

9
0

5
5

 P
ri
m

e
 M

M
3

4
9

 3
4

 1
0

7
,1

4
5

,1
9

2
,8

9
1

.2
8

4
0

A
JL

X
X

 0
.3

1
%

 0
.3

1
%

 0
.3

1
%

 0
.3

2
%

0
.0

0
0

0
0

8
6

1
0

 L
iq

u
id

 A
ss

e
ts

 M
M

3
9

0
9

 2
7

 9
,6

9
6

,5
9

8
,0

9
3

.5
9

3
1

O
G

A
X

X
 0

.1
4

%
 0

.1
5

%
 0

.1
5

%
 0

.1
6

%
0

.0
0

0
0

0
3

9
4

2
 U

.S
. 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

M
M

1
6

0
3

 3
6

 6
5

,7
6

3
,8

7
5

,8
4

5
.5

9
1

0
2

A
JT

X
X

 0
.1

1
%

 0
.1

2
%

 0
.1

2
%

 0
.1

2
%

0
.0

0
0

0
0

3
11

6
 U

.S
. 
T

re
a

su
ry

 P
lu

s 
M

M
3

9
1

7
 3

0
 2

0
,0

3
6

,9
9

8
,7

4
5

.9
5

9
3

V
F

IX
X

 0
.1

4
%

 0
.1

3
%

 0
.1

3
%

 0
.1

4
%

0
.0

0
0

0
0

3
7

2
9

 F
e

d
e

ra
l M

M
3

5
5

 3
1

 2
,7

2
1

,5
7

1
,1

2
4

.2
7

11
4

V
P

IX
X

 0
.0

8
%

 0
.1

0
%

 0
.1

0
%

 0
.0

9
%

0
.0

0
0

0
0

2
3

0
3

 1
0

0
%

 U
.S

. 
T

re
a

s 
M

M
6

7
6

 4
4

 2
3

,9
7

2
,5

2
5

,5
9

4
.8

7
1

0
4

V
T

IX
X

 0
.1

3
%

 0
.1

3
%

 0
.1

3
%

 0
.1

2
%

0
.0

0
0

0
0

3
6

2
1

 T
a

x 
F

re
e

 M
M

2
4

4
 1

1
 1

7
,8

2
8

,3
0

9
,8

3
9

.5
8

11

JM
A

X
X

 0
.1

8
%

 0
.1

8
%

 0
.1

8
%

 0
.1

7
%

0
.0

0
0

0
0

4
8

1
2

 M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
M

M
3

9
5

3
 1

0
 3

,0
2

4
,3

1
6

,6
4

3
.2

3
1

0

F
O

R
 R

E
P

O
R

T
IN

G
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

N
L

Y
/N

O
T

 T
O

 B
E

 U
S

E
D

 A
S

 A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
IN

G
 O

R
 S

A
L

E
S

 L
IT

E
R

A
T

U
R

E

M
u

s
t 

b
e

 p
re

c
e

d
e

d
 b

y
 a

 p
ro

s
p

e
c

tu
s

P
a

s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 g

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 r
e
s
u

lt
s
. 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

o
r 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

 s
h

o
w

n
. 

A
n

 in
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
in

 a
 m

o
n

e
y 

m
a

rk
e

t 
fu

n
d

 is
 n

o
t 

in
su

re
d

 b
y 

th
e

 F
D

IC
 o

r 
a

n
y 

o
th

e
r 

g
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

a
g

e
n

cy
. 

A
lth

o
u

g
h

 m
o

n
e

y 
m

a
rk

e
t 

fu
n

d
s 

st
ri
ve

 t
o

 p
re

se
rv

e
 t

h
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

th
e

 in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a

t 
$

1
.0

0
 p

e
r 

s
h

a
re

, 
it 

is
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 

lo
se

 m
o

n
e

y 
b

y 
in

ve
st

in
g

 in
 a

 m
o

n
e

y 
m

a
rk

e
t 

fu
n

d
.

T
h

e
 F

u
n

d
s 

m
a

y 
cu

rr
e

n
tly

 b
e

 w
a

iv
in

g
 c

e
rt

a
in

 f
e

e
s 

a
n

d
 e

xp
e

n
se

s.
  

P
le

a
se

 n
o

te
 t

h
e

 r
e

m
o

va
l o

f 
th

e
 w

a
iv

e
r 

w
o

u
ld

 r
e

d
u

ce
 r

e
tu

rn
s.

JP
M

o
rg

a
n

 F
u

n
d

s 
a

re
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 b
y 

JP
M

o
rg

a
n

 D
is

tr
ib

u
tio

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s,
 I

n
c.

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

a
n

 a
ff
ili

a
te

 o
f 

JP
M

o
rg

a
n

 C
h

a
se

 &
 C

o
. 

A
ff
ili

a
te

s 
o

f 
JP

M
o

rg
a

n
 C

h
a

se
 &

 C
o

. 
re

ce
iv

e
 f

e
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 F
u

n
d

s
. 

JP
M

o
rg

a
n

 D
is

tr
ib

u
tio

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s,
 I

n
c.

, 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
F

IN
R

A
/S

IP
C

. 

*F
ri
d

a
y'

s 
fa

ct
o

r 
in

cl
u

d
e

s 
th

e
 w

e
e

ke
n

d
.

P
a
g

e
 1

 o
f 

1

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 80 of 89

rf87
Highlight



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 81 of 89



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 82 of 89



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 83 of 89



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 84 of 89



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 85 of 89



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 86 of 89



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 87 of 89



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 88 of 89



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - June 21, 2016 Page 89 of 89


	id_2000927352: 
	bartleby: http://prod-booktool.wellmanage.com/epgonline/bartleby/book/121268@AUTH@PCSSA:Bart!3by;@AUTH@http://pcsonline.wellmanage.com:8080/epgonline/jobaction.jsp@AUTH@offline
	id_2000927355: 
	pagenumber_2000927355: 
	bookdate_2000927355: 
	booktitle_2000927355: 
	subtitle1_2000927355: 
	title_2000927355: 
	bookdate_2000927360: 
	booktitle_2000927360: 
	pagenumber_2000927360: 
	subtitle1_2000927360: 
	title_2000927360: 
	id_2000927360: 
	id_2000927543: 
	pagenumber_2000927543: 
	bookdate_2000927543: 
	booktitle_2000927543: 
	subtitle1_2000927543: 
	title_2000927543: 
	bookdate_2000635965: 
	booktitle_2000635965: 
	pagenumber_2000635965: 
	subtitle1_2000635965: 
	title_2000635965: 
	id_2000635965: 
	bookdate_2000562857: 
	booktitle_2000562857: 
	pagenumber_2000562857: 
	subtitle1_2000562857: 
	title_2000562857: 
	id_2000562857: 
	bookdate_2000572767: 
	booktitle_2000572767: 
	pagenumber_2000572767: 
	subtitle1_2000572767: 
	title_2000572767: 
	id_2000572767: 
	bookdate_2000562587: 
	booktitle_2000562587: 
	pagenumber_2000562587: 
	subtitle1_2000562587: 
	title_2000562587: 
	id_2000562587: 
	bookdate_2000828135: 
	booktitle_2000828135: 
	pagenumber_2000828135: 
	subtitle1_2000828135: 
	title_2000828135: 
	id_2000828135: 
	bookdate_2000674693: 
	booktitle_2000674693: 
	pagenumber_2000674693: 
	subtitle1_2000674693: 
	title_2000674693: 
	id_2000674693: 
	bookdate_2000581417: 
	booktitle_2000581417: 
	pagenumber_2000581417: 
	subtitle1_2000581417: 
	title_2000581417: 
	id_2000581417: 
	bookdate_2000590354: 
	booktitle_2000590354: 
	pagenumber_2000590354: 
	subtitle1_2000590354: 
	title_2000590354: 
	id_2000590354: 
	bookdate_2000590358: 
	booktitle_2000590358: 
	pagenumber_2000590358: 
	subtitle1_2000590358: 
	title_2000590358: 
	id_2000590358: 
	bookdate_2000561466: 
	booktitle_2000561466: 
	pagenumber_2000561466: 
	subtitle1_2000561466: 
	title_2000561466: 
	id_2000561466: 
	id_2000926934: 
	pagenumber_2000926934: 
	bookdate_2000926934: 
	booktitle_2000926934: 
	subtitle1_2000926934: 
	title_2000926934: 
	id_2000926943: 
	pagenumber_2000926943: 
	bookdate_2000926943: 
	booktitle_2000926943: 
	subtitle1_2000926943: 
	title_2000926943: 
	id_2000926945: 
	pagenumber_2000926945: 
	bookdate_2000926945: 
	booktitle_2000926945: 
	subtitle1_2000926945: 
	title_2000926945: 
	bookdate_2000347501: 
	pagenumber_2000347501: 
	booktitle_2000347501: 
	subtitle1_2000347501: 
	title_2000347501: 
	id_2000347501: 
	bookdate_2000581422: 
	booktitle_2000581422: 
	pagenumber_2000581422: 
	subtitle1_2000581422: 
	title_2000581422: 
	id_2000581422: 
	bookdate_2000828256: 
	booktitle_2000828256: 
	pagenumber_2000828256: 
	subtitle1_2000828256: 
	title_2000828256: 
	id_2000828256: 
	id_2000000507: 
	bookdate_2000000298: 
	booktitle_2000000298: 
	pagenumber_2000000298: 
	subtitle1_2000000298: 
	title_2000000298: 
	id_2000000298: 


